Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take
no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

This announcement, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Neo Telemedia Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and

belief:

1. the information contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading;

2. there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
announcement misleading; and

3. all opinions expressed in this announcement have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.



The board of Directors (the “Board”) announces the audited consolidated results of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016. This announcement,
containing the full text of the 2016 Annual Report of the Company, complies with the relevant
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules in relation to information to accompany preliminary
announcement of annual results. Printed version of the Company’s 2016 Annual Report will be
delivered to the shareholders of the Company and available for viewing on the GEM website at
www.hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.neo-telemedia.com by end of March 2017.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors. Given
the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible
to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Exchange and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Neo
Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief:

1. the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading;

2. there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading, and

3. all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at
after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present to the shareholders of the Company the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
operations mainly comprises sales of telecommunication
products and services and operation of Internet finance platform
business.

During the year under review, the Group continued to seize
the opportunities brought by the Internet and big data era,
strengthening its presence in the Internet Data Center (“IDC”)
business in China by acquiring 60% equity interest in BT
&R R AR 2 7] (Guangzhou Nowtop Technology Company
Limited*) (“Guangzhou Nowtop”). At the same time, in order to
devote more resources to other projects and mitigate the risk
exposure, the Group has disposed of the loss making business
in Hughes China Group and CERNET Wifi (as defined below).

SALE OF TELECOMMUNUCATIONS
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Bluesea Mobile Group

During the year under review, ERE S¥ HERER A A
(Guangdong Bluesea Mobile Development Company Limited®)
(“Bluesea Mobile”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “Bluesea Mobile Group”) acquired 60% of equity interest
in Guangzhou Nowtop. Guangzhou Nowtop is principally
engaged in providing IDC services in the PRC and is currently
managing over 2,000 IDC server cabinets in various cities
in the PRC, including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and
Shenzhen. Meanwhile, Bluesea Mobile Group has also kicked
off its IDC project in Panyu and started the construction of its
IDC. The turnover contributed to the Group of approximately
HK$271.9 million for the year under review represented trading
of telecommunication products and provision of IDC, WIFI and
value-added Internet services.

*for identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

Million Ace Group

Million Ace Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as “Million Ace Group”) is mainly engaged in trading of mobile
phones, computers and the relevant devices. Although there
is a worldwide slowdown in smartphone sales in 2016, Million
Ace Group managed to record a turnover of approximately
HK$2,162.9 million in the year under review.

Hughes China Group

In view of the continuous loss made by HCH Investments
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Hughes
China Group”) in the two preceding financial years, on 19
February 2016, the Company entered into a sale agreement
in relation to the disposal of the entire equity interest of HCH
Investments Limited at a consideration of HK$156,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on 14 March 2016
and a gain of approximately HK$143 million was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016.

CERNET Wifi

Although the common seal, contract chop and business
registration (and its duplicate) of BEREGALEEE (LR A
R A 7] (CERNET Wifi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited*)
(“CERNET Wifi”) had been returned to CERNET Wifi and the
Group held the controlling interest of CERNET Wifi, the Group
was not able to resume its personal broadband business (the
“Broadband Business”) during the period under review due
to: 1) the broadband business projects, the books and records
of CERNET Wifi, and etc., which were essential for operating
the Broadband Business, had been taken away by CERNET
Investment Limited (“CERNET Investment”), the holder of
the non-controlling interest of CERNET Wifi, and its staff
members, including the former general manager and the former
employees of CERNET Wifi; and 2) the possibility of resuming
the Broadband Business by CERNET Wifi substantially relied on
the outcome of the asset leasehold arbitration, details of which
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
December 2014 (the “Asset Leasehold Arbitration”). Should
the outcome of the Asset Leasehold Arbitration be unfavourable
to CERNET Wifi, CERNET Wifi would not be able to recover
the broadband business projects, the books and records
of CERNET Wifi and the assets under the Asset Leasehold
Agreement which were necessary for operating the Broadband
Business.

*for identification purpose only

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

BEREH

EXBERAALEMNBAR (RETBRE
BDIENETFHR ERLEEREES-
BE_T-A"FERERTRHEEINE
EREBDRNEESFERINEF42,162.98
BETzEXE-

PR 5 o Bl R

ZEHHCH Investments Limited & £ M8 A &)
(S (AT EEE])FTMENKTERF
BHGSEBER R_E—X"F-_A+hB &
A A) i LA156,000,000/% 7T &9 A (B ) & HCH
Investments Limited 892 &A% 4E ([ HEEE])
AV HERZ LEFEEER _E—XF=
A+ BRA #1438 B8 Ta 2 R E
ECE—XFET+_A=ZT—HILFENES
BmikPER-

EWER

BEEBAESABMX (AR AR2A (18
BRI CEREELAE ARELRIRE
ARXf (REEIRN) RAKERAERER L
ZhEm AEBEREBEMBEDRERER
BMARGER ([REEK]) ERAR/ )
HRERTEBEHREENRHEFEAE
ERESNEREMMBCRFORERERE
ERAR([RBRE ERERNIEER
BEmBA)REET (BREBERIAL
ELAEE)WE: M) BREGRENNRER
HEBNAEEIEREEEHREMRNG
R ABEBERERARFAEAR TN
Ft-ATNRZAE(EEHEEMHR]) -
HWEEHEFRRNERYEBERATH B
BERESE T REHEEREEBNE B
VENREHEBRE BERERNEKRE R
BLSEANEERERAETEE-

Y EREE



Meanwhile, the legal disputes between, among others,
CERNET Wifi and CERNET Investment involved CERNET Wifi's
claims and CERNET Investment’s counter claim. Based on
the latest legal opinion, the outcome of the Asset Leasehold
Arbitration remained uncertain. China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission (F° B BB 48 & 5 (& &
B2 ) (“CIETAC”) had kept delaying its decision on the Asset
Leasehold Arbitration and we were informed that more time
was required by CIETAC to gather information and to review
such information. As such, the Group had incurred additional
cost in order to support CERNET Wifi for the Asset Leasehold
Arbitration and it was expected that further related costs would
be incurred by the Group. Up to the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group had incurred approximately HK$2,529,000 for
legal claims relating to CERNET Wifi and the Asset Leasehold
Arbitration. However, it was possible that the outcome of
the Asset Leasehold Arbitration might not be favourable to
CERNET Wifi. With a view to saving time and costs involved
in the legal proceedings, on 17 February 2016, the Group
entered into agreements (the “Unwinding Agreements”) with
X— PRI AER AT (‘A1 Net”), the immediate holding
company of CERNET Wifi and a subsidiary of the Company by
way of structured contracts (the “Structured Contracts”), the
shareholders of A1 Net and two independent third parties (the
“Purchasers”) to unwind the Structured Contracts. Pursuant
to the Unwinding Agreements, among others, 1) the Structured
Contracts under which the Group had obtained control over
CERNET Wifi would be unwound; and 2) the shareholders
of A1 Net disposed of their entire interests in A1 Net to the
Purchasers. The financial impact of the unwinding the Structured
Contracts on the Group’s consolidated financial statements was
insignificant.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

In addition, upon the unwinding of the Structured Contracts,
while the Group will not incur further costs in relation to the
legal proceedings, A1 Net has undertaken to repay the Group
its share of any claimed amount received by CERNET Wifi if the
outcome of the legal proceedings is in favour of CERNET Wifi.

INTERNET FINANCE PLATFORM BUSINESS

During the year under review, the Group continued to expand its
customer base of its Internet finance platforms in & 5P ;i
B B 1% 8 EIE B R A 7] (Guangdong Avatar Wealth Investment
Management Company Limited*) (“Avatar Wealth”) and &3/
BRSIREBBSMRIEBR QA (Shenzhen Bees Financial
Internet Financial Services Co. Ltd.*) (‘Bees Financial”). The
revenue of approximately HK$72.9 milion contributed to the
Group represented service or commission income through the
operations of those platforms.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will continue to expand its IDC
business. In addition to the IDC project in Panyu, the Group
has made successful bid on a land parcel in Heshan City
on 6 January 2017. The land parcel will be used for the
construction of the “Bluesea Big Data Industrial Park” which
will feature a big data enterprise incubation platform through
government guidance, market operation and policy support.

Moreover, the Group will continue to explore potential
investment opportunities in IDC, cloud computing and related
businesses. With favorable policies and support from the
PRC government towards these fast growing sectors, the
management is optimistic that the Group will regain its strength
and be able to reward shareholders with better results in the
foreseeable future.

*for identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

FHRBREE
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS VERE
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hHF
Turnover (HK$’000) BERE(THT) 2,513,845 1,914,902
Net Profits/(loss) (HK$ 000) wA (E518) F58 (F%&T) 202,187 (44,255)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of KAEEE ARG RF,
the Company (HK$’000) (B1E) (FA1) 192,009 (32,227)
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK Cents) BRAEFN(BE) (BI) 2.02 (0.47)

Building on the momentum from the acquisitions of Bluesea
Mobile and Million Ace Group in 2015, the Group found
continued success in the year under review and recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$2,513.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, representing a surge of approximately
HK$598.9 million or 31.3% from approximately HK$1,914.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group also
recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company and
earnings per share of approximately HK$192.0 million and
2.02 HK Cents, respectively, for the year ended 31 December
2016, turning around from a loss attributable to the owners of
the Company and loss per share of approximately HK$32.2
million and 0.47 HK Cent, respectively, for the year ended 31
December 2015. The turnaround was mainly due to the gain on
disposal of HCH Investments Limited of approximately HK$143
million as well as the profit contribution from the businesses
acquired in 2015.

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings of HK$55.9 million (2015: HK$26.2 million) which
are repayable within one year. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group also had interest-bearing other loan of HK$27.3 million.
The other loan had been repaid during the current year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEREE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$925.9 million (2015: HK$1,384.1 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$188.9 million (2015: HK$1,111.9 million), trade receivables,
prepayments and other receivables, promissory note, loan
receivables and other financial assets of approximately
HK$711.0 million (2015: HK$246.8 million); and current liabilities
of approximately HK$207.0 million (2015: HK$374.0 million). The
Group’s current ratio had been increased from approximately 3.7
times as at 31 December 2015 to approximately 4.5 times as at
31 December 2016.

The Group had total assets of approximately HK$1,852.8 million
(2015: HK$1,729.6 million) and total liabilities of approximately
HK$305.3 million (2015: HK$410.7 million), representing a
gearing ratio (expressed as total liabilities to total assets) of
approximately 16.5% as at 31 December 2016 (2015: 23.7%).

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December
2016 amounted to approximately HK$2,513.8 million (2015:
HK$1,914.9 million).

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group were set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, there were no material charges on
the Group’s assets.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Most of the Group’s cash balances and transactions are either
denominated in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars, i.e. functional
currencies of relevant group entities. The Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise. As
at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any
outstanding hedging instruments.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Writ of summons

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
14 June 2015, a writ of summons (the “Writ”) was issued by
Arch Capital Limited and Hillgo Asia Limited (the “CN Holders”)
against the Company under Court of First Instance of the High
Court of Hong Kong Action No.1281 of 2015 (“Action”). In
the statement of claim under the Writ, the said two companies
purportedly claim as the holders for value of two convertible
notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$144,000,000
issued by the Company (the “Convertible Note(s)”), and
claim for the principal amount of HK$144,000,000 under the
said Convertible Notes together with interest and costs. The
Convertible Notes were issued by the Company in relation
to the acquisition of HCH Investments Limited in April 2013
as part of the consideration payable to Oberlin Asia Inc. (the
“Vendor”). The Vendor nominated the said two companies to
hold the Convertible Notes; and it was expressly provided in
the Convertible Notes that they were non-transferable. There
are on-going disputes between the Company and the Vendor
regarding the said acquisition. Further, subsequent to the
said acquisition and without the prior knowledge or consent
of the Company, the ultimate beneficial ownership of the said
two companies was transferred to Next-Generation Satellite
Communications Limited (“Next-Gen”), a company listed on
the Singapore Stock Exchange. It is the Company’s position
that the said transfer was in breach of aforesaid provision of
non-transferability, and therefore the said two companies and
Next-Gen are not entitled to claim on the Convertible Notes.
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The Directors have therefore given instructions to the
Company’s legal adviser to contest and defend the Action
and to raise a counterclaim against the said two companies. A
defence and counterclaim has accordingly been filed on behalf
of the Company on 26 August 2015, disputing the claim of the
said two companies and counterclaiming them for damages (the
“Counterclaim”).

On 6 January 2016, an order for discontinuance of the
Counterclaim and a Tomlin order (the “Tomlin Order”) were filed
with the High Court that all further proceedings in relation to the
Action be stayed except for carrying out the terms that include
the following, among other things, into effect:

- The Company shall, within 3 business days after closing
of the open offer completed on 30 December 2015, pay
to the said two companies the sum of HK$10,080,000,
representing the outstanding interest on the Convertible
Notes for the period from 5 October 2014 to 4 October
2015.

= The Company shall comply with all terms of the
Convertible Notes.

— The obligation of the Company to pay interest of the
Convertible Notes at the rate of 7% per annum from
5 October 2015 until full payment is expressly waived by
the said two companies.
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On 12 April 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Settlement Agreement’) with the CN Holders and A R
Evans Capital Limited (the “Subscriber”) pursuant to which the
Company will allot and issue 375,875,000 ordinary shares to the
Subscriber at the price of HK$0.40 per share (the “Subscription
Share(s)”). Upon the issue of the Subscription Shares, the
obligation of the Company under the Tomlin Order and the
Convertible Notes shall be fully and completely discharged and
all claims of the CN Holders under the action in respect of the
Tomlin Order shall stand dismissed. The CN Holders shall have
no legal right to take any further action on the Tomlin Order and
the Convertible Notes. The Subscriber shall sell or procure the
sale of the Subscription Shares at a price not less than HK$0.38
per Subscription Share and make payments of HK$145,680,000
to the CN Holders. The Settlement Agreement has lapsed as
the conditions precedent have not been fulfilled by 13 May
2016, i.e., the long stop date agreed by the Company and the
Subscriber.

On 18 June 2016, a hearing of an application on the part of
the CN Holders for the Tomlin Order that the Company failed to
redeem the Convertible Notes on 5 April 2016 was held at the
High Court and the High Court granted an order (the “Order”)
in favour of the CN Holders for the amount of HK$144,000,000
together with the interest thereon at the judgement rate from 13
June 2016 until full payment.

On 27 June 2016, the Company filed the Notice of Appeal to
Judge in Chambers to appeal against the Order (the “Appeal’).

On 29 June 2016, the Company received a statutory demand
from the CN Holders requiring the Company to pay the amount
of HK$144,000,000 together with the interest thereon at the
judgement rate from 13 June 2016 until full payment pursuant
to the Order (the “Statutory Demand”).
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On 7 July 2016, the Company filed an application for stay of
execution of the Order (the “Application”), and the hearing on
the Application was fixed for 29 July 2016 whereas the hearing
on the Appeal was fixed for 26 September 2016 at the High
Court. The High Court dismissed the Application and the Appeal
on 29 July 2016 and 26 September 2016 respectively.

On 15 August 2016, the Company received a winding-up
petition (the “Petition”) filed by the CN Holders against the
Company in relation to the Statutory Demand.

At the hearing on 7 November 2016, as the matter concerned
in the Petition had been fully resolved through the Company’s
settlement of the Convertible Notes and the outstanding interest
thereon, the High Court had granted an order that the Petition
be dismissed.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 460
staff (2015: 320). The total remuneration, including that of the
Directors, for the year under review is approximately HK$40.8
million (2015: HK$30.3 million). The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performances, experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Employee remuneration, excluding
Director’s emoluments, is reviewed annually. In addition to the
basic salaries, employees are also entitled to benefits including
bonus and mandatory provident fund. On 19 December 2012,
the Company had adopted a share option scheme under which
full time employees, including Directors, of the Company and
its subsidiaries, might be granted options to subscribe for the
Company’s ordinary shares.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my appreciation to the Group’s shareholders and
customers for their utmost support, and to the management and
staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group during
the year.

CHEUNG Sing Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Biographies of Directors
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 55, was
appointed as an executive Director on 21 June 2013 and
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer on 20 March
2014. He is also the chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Department of
Thermal Engineering of Tsinghua University and the Sun Yat-sen
Business School with a bachelor degree in engineering and a
master degree in business administration respectively.

Mr. Cheung was engaged in trade between Mainland and Hong
Kong in his early years. He had served as deputy manager in
Strategic Development Department of Guangdong Investment
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, while he was
also a director of Guangdong Tannery Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung previously served as the managing director of CL
China Group Limited and the general manager of Coastland
Development (Int’l) Co., Limited, both are engaged in investment
in securities and real estate.

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu, aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and Vice President on 1 May 2014,
Mr. Zhang Xinyu holds a Master of Business Administration
degree and is familiar with the securities market regulations
in Hong Kong. He was a licensed responsible officer under
the SFO and an advisor of the Management Consulting
Committee of China Enterprise Confederation. He has over 20
years working experience in banking and investment banking
industries and accumulated extensive network resources and
experience in capital management. He has been engaged
in research and practice in listing, merger and acquisition,
reorganisation, spin-off and asset securitisation. In 1990, he was
appointed by the head office of Bank of China to hold senior
position in Bank of China (Hong Kong) in Hong Kong and mainly
to provide financial support to relevant Chinese entities under
the State Council based in Hong Kong.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. XU Gang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 June 2015. He graduated from School
of Economics and Management, Tsinghua University with an
executive master degree of business administration in 2006. He
obtained his double bachelor’s degree from Beijing University of
Technology in 1995 Mr. Xu is the general manager of & & B /&
B EEEAFMR A G (Guangdong Bluesea Mobile Development
Co., Ltd.") (Bluesea ). He has extensive experience in the
strategy planning, operation, marketing and capital management
of international high-tech enterprises and the strategy
management, risk management and concentrative management
of large financial institutions. Prior to joining Bluesea, Mr. Xu
served as the general manager of business intelligence division
of FEX (FE)EMM4HZFAERAF (Oracle (China) Software
System Company Limited®).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Zihua, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is also the
chairman of each of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. He holds a Graduate Diploma
of Chartered Accounting from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia and New Zealand and a Degree
of Bachelor of Economics in Accounting from Guangdong
University of Technology. He is a member of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and New
Zealand.

Mr. Zhang Zihua is currently a partner of Addsum Accountants
Pty Ltd (“Addsum”). Before joining Addsum, he has worked
in public practice at KPMG and PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Australia, China and Europe for over 17 years. He participated
in a wide range of auditing, initial public offering and due
diligence projects to a wide portfolio of private and multinational
companies operating in Australia, Europe, mainland China, and
Hong Kong.
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Biographies of Directors
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Xl Lina, aged 34, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 May 2014. She is also a member
of each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. She graduated with
a degree in economics and international trade from Zhejiang
University of Finance and Economics and holds a master of
science in banking and international finance from the City
University, London. She has extensive experience in economics
and futures market.

Mr. HUANG Zhixiong, aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 13 May 2015. He
is also a member of the audit committee of the Company.
He holds a doctoral degree in business management. He is
the senior advisor of &R % m B & AN FTET (Institute of
Guangdong South China Science and Technology Capital®)
and was appointed as the extramural tutor of the master
programme of professional accounting of the South China
University of Technology in November 2015. Mr. Huang
obtained the Independent Director Qualification awarded by
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in January 2015 and obtained
the Board Secretary Qualification awarded by the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in April 2015. Mr. Huang was certified with
(1) the Securities Certificate Level Il in 2005, (2) the Securities
Institutions Senior Management Personnel Qualification in
20083, (3) the Securities Investment Fund Qualification and
Securities and Futures Qualification in 2002, (4) the Securities
Investment Analysis Qualification in 2001, (5) the Securities
Trading Brokerage Qualification and Securities Issuance and
Underwriting Qualification in 2000, and (6) the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange Initial National Debt and Futures Qualification in
1994. He obtained the Intermediate Economist Title awarded by
National Ministry of Personnel in 1994. Mr. Huang is currently
the deputy general manager and the board secretary of
Guangdong Macro Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000533)), in which he was the
vice chairman from August 2013 to July 2016.

*for identification purpose only
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 (“Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
financial position of the Group at 31 December 2016 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 246.

The Directors recommended to the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Thursday, 25 May 2017 (“AGM”) a
final dividend of HK cent 0.38 per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 to be paid on Thursday, 6 July 2017 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on Wednesday, 7 June 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made
HK$27,000 charitable donations (2015: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the shareholders to attend and
vote at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 19 May 2017 to Thursday, 25 May 2017,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
18 May 2017.
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For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 7 June 2017 to
Thursday, 8 June 2017, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 June 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
247 to 248. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review, analysis using financial key performance
indicators and future development in the Company’s business
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 5 to 15
of this annual report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and relationships with employees
are also discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” on pages 56 to 61.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FERBRIAEERE
Risk Areas Risks Description Risk Response

Bk 4ESE B B 3 3t [ B PE

Strategic Risks Risk of concentration of a

B 2 B single business segment

BE-XBoEETER

The revenue of the Group According to the management, although sale of

was mainly generated telecommunication products and services is the single
from the segment sale of largest business segment within the Group, it consists
telecommunication products  of different lines of products and services, including
and services. This is high mobile phones, large-scaled telecommunication
concentration of a single equipment, and wifi services, while different types of

business segment. In case of customers are served.
any dispute and/or breakup EEEEEAL REHEEMERAREALE l

with relevant customers, BAE—XBoE BETREEMNERKRS &
sales of the Group could be  #EFH# « KA EF X2 Rwifi iR 7% - 12 F’JTH*E\*”
significantly affected. H % P IR AR TS o

AEBRFEEZRERIEE I addition, the Group is seeking opportunity in
BNERMMBRBEHE BESE other business field by acquiring and/or cooperating
ERE-ZEBOE MBI with other companies. On 8 March 2017, the
BEPBEUD R KEBER  Group entered into a non-legally binding strategic
2 AEBREEREBZEIE cooperation memorandum of understanding with a
j(,g/; major insurance company in the PRC for the strategic
cooperation in the insurance industry.
BEAN - N6 B IF 3 A IS K S B E fth R RS 1R R
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Therefore, the management oonsidered the risk
of concentration of a single business segment is
minimal.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Risk Areas

[ B R

Risks Description
| B 4 4t
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Risk Response

2 e FE

Operational Risks
2B R

System Failure due to
disaster

KEERARRHE

The Group will launch its
Internet data center (“IDC”)

in 2017. The server room

is a very important asset to
the Group. It may suffer from
natural disaster such as power
outage, fire, etc.
AEEBR T —EFHH
HEBASBEF O ([IDC]) °
fAREEREAEENEHE
EMEE HFEINESE-
NKEBRKETE -
Critical computer systems and
equipment may be severely
damaged or destroyed in the
event of disaster. In addition,
backup data may not be
available for processing and
recovery purpose.
BEEREASRLRBMEEE
KEFREGXIBERREL
83 o LA W1 BUR R B
EEITRRIR RIRAE

As a result, the Company’s
ability to conduct business
may be significantly impaired
resulting in revenue deduction.
Bt - ARAIEEENIEXR
e HISS EB s T

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

According to the management, the IDC has
emergency power system which is an independent
source of electric power to the IDC in case of the
loss of normal power supply. This standby power
system is run by fuel. It protects the IDC from the
consequences of loss of primary electric power

supply.
BERERL DCHERSBENRG REBEEZR

IDC KB HKIRE 1 - NP ERHEPE - ZEHE
NEGEEMENE  REEIDCRRKETENHE
HIER -



BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Risk Areas

[ B R

Risks Description
| B 4 4t

Report of the Directors
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Risk Response

22, B E

Compliance Risks Risk of non-compliance

& 5= b with the changing law and
regulations
TEEZ N EN R ARSI
HARERER

There are a number of
regulations that are related

to the Group’s operations,
including laws and regulations
in relation to money lending,
personal data collection

and employment (such as
Employee Compensation,
Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes, documents filing
to the Inland Revenue
Department), etc.
HAEEZEFUANERR
% BIEENE  EABIEK
SRER (MEEHIE &

HREREE AREBFE

) AR EVED ROER
If the Group is unaware of
the change in rules and
regulations, the Group would
be exposed to the risk of
legal or regulatory sanctions,
material financial loss or loss
of reputation.

i A £R B SR TR A BR VA DI )2

ERNEE AEBBRZ

BRIEEHER BAMBEKX

HBEBZBHOER -

The Group has currently engaged an external legal
advisor and a company secretarial firm to update the
management on changes in rules and regulations.
REBRFERE —BINDEERER R —FR AW
ERBARIEFFERNE S REEEEINHA -
Moreover, employees are encouraged to attend
training courses and seminars that are related to their
duties. Cost of the training courses and seminars are
reimbursable.

BEAN - B 45 5% B 22 hi B 15 5 B8, 745 AR B B 35 5| AR A2
R g - FIRERANGNERBE TEN -
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of or
non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by
the Group that has a significant impact on the businesses and
operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing
a caring environment to employees and emphasis the personal
development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers
and suppliers. The Group aims to continue providing quality
services and consumption experiences to our customers and
establishing cooperation strategy with our suppliers.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 74
to 75.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has distributable
reserves of approximately HK$430,487,000 available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company (31 December
2016: HK$395,883,000). Under the Companies Law (Revised)
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is distributable to the Shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium may also be distributed in form of fully paid bonus
shares.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Movements in the Company’s convertible notes during the year
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as followed:

PURCHASES

- the largest supplier 25% (2015: 32%)

- five longest suppliers combined 66% (2015: 82%)

SALES

- the largest customer 30% (2015: 30%)
- five largest customers combined 58% (2015: 64%)

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
when the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”) which were notified
to the Company and the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests or short positions
which they were deemed or taken to have under such provisions
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) relating to securities transactions by directors, to
be notified to the Company and the Exchange, were as follows:
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RZE—R"E+ZRA=+—H BFRER
AIETAABEIE (EXRAESMBERK
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REFETESRHIREAMEARA R
B P R BOR RN T -

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SECURITIES OF RAEQARRBEFZHE
THE COMPANY
Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholding
FEER®R,
E=nE 514 HERMHE BHNFRBE DL
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu Beneficial owner 45,600,000 0.48%
RITFERE En#EAA (Note 1)
(BfFzE1)
Mr. XU Gang Beneficial owner 1,422,000 0.01%
RExE EmEBA
Interest of spouse (Note 2) 72,000 Negligible
fefB s (MI5E2) M RE
Mr. HUANG Zhixiong Interest of spouse (Note 3) 17,034,000 0.18%

mEERE FofB s (F5E3)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1. These 45,600,000 underlying shares are derived from the share
options granted by the Company.

2. Mr. Xu is interested in 72,000 shares of the Company held by his
spouse, Ms. Yang Jintong.

& Mr. Huang is interested in 17,034,000 shares of the Company
held by his spouse, Ms. Gao Suzhen.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors did not have any other
interests or short positions in the securities of the Company as
at 31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 19 December 2012, the Company adopted a new share
option scheme (the “New Scheme”) as the share option
scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) expired
on 21 July 2012. The purpose of the share option schemes is
to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
participants of the share option schemes include Directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, independent non-executive
Directors and employees of the Group, and suppliers of goods
or services to the Group. Upon the expiration of the Old
Scheme, share options granted under the Old Scheme remained
outstanding until they lapse in accordance with the terms of the
Old Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Scheme and Old Scheme
is 305,792,079 and 6,840,000 respectively, representing
approximately 3.21% and 0.07% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of this annual report.

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as those disclosed in the sections headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this Directors’ Report and also note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, no other equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities” and “Share Option Scheme”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other corporate granted to any Directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu

Mr. XU Gang

Mr. LIAN Xin (retired on 1 April 2016)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS:

Mr. ZHANG Zihua
(appointed on 20 September 2016)
Ms. Xl Lina
Mr. HUANG Zhixiong
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong
(retired on 1 April 2016)
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo
(resigned on 15 September 2016)

*for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Articles, the Directors have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr. ZHANG Zihua who was appointed
as a Director on 20 September 2016 shall retire from office and
eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that the chairman of the Board
and/or the managing director of the Company shall not, whilst
holding such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors to
retire in each year. Accordingly, Mr. ZHANG Xinyu shall retire
from office and eligible for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules, every director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Accordingly, notwithstanding Article 87(1) of
the Articles provided that the Chairman of the Board shall not
be subject to retirement by rotation, Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai,
Chairman of the Board, shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at the AGM in accordance with the Corporate Governance
Code.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
on pages 16 to 18 of the annual report.

*for identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai entered into a service contract with
the Company on 22 June 2015 for a term of 2 years with
retrospective effect from 21 June 2015.

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu entered into a service contract with the
Company on 1 April 2016 for a term of 2 years from 1 April
2016.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No significant transaction, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly
subsisted at the year-end or at any time during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2016, the Company had been notified of the
following substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions,
being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These
interests are in addition to those disclosed above in respect of
the Directors and chief executives.

RIBER S LEROIETRE
ZIBRER AR

Y|

4
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N

RIEE 5 K HIE 15 58 XV 5 533615 2 i &
IFREZIEMRECSMBER R_F—RX
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PRz RKR - BMEAR AR E#HITRAE%
FA LS N FRAEY B A LXARE
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LONG POSITIONS HE
Number of Approximate
shares/underlying percentage of
Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding
EERE, BRRER
% R E HER B BE AL
LIE Haiquan Beneficial owner 1,910,848,000 20.05%

g HE EnEA A
Interest in controlled

corporations (Note) 2,091,328,357 21.95%

G R Bz ()

Note: 2,055,887,357 shares and 35,436,000 shares are held by Winner
Mind Investments Limited and Golden Ocean Assets Management
Limited respectively, both companies are wholly-owned by
Mr. LIE Haiquan. Thus, he was deemed to be interested in these
2,091,3283,357 shares pursuant to the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest
in a business which compete or may compete with the business
of the Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES

On 4 April 2016, EREEZBER AR Q2 a (Guangdong
Bluesea Mobile Development Company Limited*) (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and #1LJR B % EBR A A (Foshan Yuanhai Development
Limited*) (the “Vendor”) entered into ten sales and purchase
agreements (the “Property Acquisition Agreements”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser has agreed to purchase and
the Vendor has agreed to sell the ten office units, namely room
1403, room 1404, room 1501, room 1502, room 1503, room
1504, room 1601, room 1602, room 1603 and room 1604 of
Block 3, located at Smart City, No. 1 Zhi Hui Road, Chan Cheng
District, Foshan, the PRC at the aggregate consideration of
RMB62,020,620.

The Vendor is substantially owned by Mr. Lie Haiquan, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The Vendor, being
an associate of Mr. Lie, is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Property Acquisition
Agreements constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DISPOSAL OF THE ENTIRE EQUITY INTEREST
OF HCH INVESTMENTS LIMITED

On 19 February 2016, the Company as the vendor and OAF
(BJ) Limited (“OAF”) as the purchaser and Mr. Chong Hock
(Charles) Lau as the guarantor entered into the sales and
purchase agreement (the “SP Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company conditionally agreed to sell and OAF conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire equity interest of HCH
Investments Limited (‘HCH Investments”) at a consideration of
HK$156,000,000 (the “Disposal”).

The ultimate beneficial owner of OAF who is also the guarantor
is a director of a subsidiary of HCH Investments, and therefore
was a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules when the SP
Agreement was entered into. Accordingly, the SP Agreement
and the Disposal constituted connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

*for identification purpose only
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Other than the aforementioned connected transactions,
the related party transactions disclosed in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance report of the Company is set out on
pages 35 to 55 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2016.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”). The term of appointment of
HLB as auditor of the Company shall expire at the conclusion
of the AGM. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM for the
reappointment of HLB as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
CHEUNG Sing Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the Board, the
Company has complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2016, with the exception for the following deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be divided.
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board
which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive
directors.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should
be appointed for specific term. There is no specific term of
appointment of the non-executive Directors; however, they are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (“Articles”) and the Code.
Accordingly, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to deal with the requirement in respect of the
appointment terms of non-executive Directors as required under
the Code.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXERKRSE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

Under code provision A.5.1, the Company should establish
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
comprises a majority of independent non-executive Directors.
Following the resignation of Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo (“Mr. Leung”)
as independent non-executive Director on 15 September
2016, Mr. Leung ceased to be a member of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee failed to comprise a
majority of independent non-executive Directors since then
until the appointment of Mr. ZHANG Zihua, an independent
non-executive Director, as a member of the Nomination
Committee on 20 September 2016.

Under code provision D.1.4, the Company should have formal
letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. Except for Mr. CHEUNG
Sing Tai and Mr. ZHANG Xinyu, the Company did not have
formal letters of appointment for Directors. However, the
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Articles. In addition, the Directors are required to refer
to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and
“Guide for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if applicable)
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing
their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the
Directors are required to comply with the requirements under
statute and common law, the GEM Listing Rules, legal and
other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.
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Corporate Governance Report

INSUFFICIENT NUMBER OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS DURING
THE YEAR

On 15 September 2016, Mr. Leung resigned as independent
non-executive Director. Following his resignation, the number of
independent non-executive Directors was below the minimum
number required under Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company also failed to meet the requirement set out in Rule
5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules with regard to at least one of
the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In addition, the number of members
of audit committee of the Company (‘Audit Committee”) was
below the minimum number required under Rule 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Subsequently on 20 September 2016,
Mr. ZHANG Zihua was appointed to fill the vacancies of
independent non-executive Directors and the chairman of each
of the Audit Committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company (‘Remuneration Committee”) and a member of the
Nomination Committee which met the requirements of Rules
5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company also had made
specific enquiry of all Directors and the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard of dealings
and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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EXERKRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of accounts, which shall give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group and of the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. Details
of the basis of preparation of financial statements are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. The Board
is also responsible for formulating the Group’s long term
strategy, determining and approving the Group’s significant
transactions and supervising the management to ensure
thorough implementation of the Group’s policies and effective
performance of their duties. Other decisions are to be delegated
to management. As at 31 December 2016, the Board comprised
six Directors, including three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The executive Directors
are Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai, Mr. ZHANG Xinyu and Mr. XU Gang.
The independent non-executive Directors are Mr. ZHANG
Zihua, Ms. X| Lina and Mr. HUANG Zhixiong. Biographies of the
existing Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, 14 Board
meetings were held. Details of the attendance of Directors are
as follows:

-

ESAPEBEDREEERATREAEAS
ERZFUBsMRA R AEB T HERRKLIE
CRECKRB -MBHRERBRALEFFE
NMrEM SRR A -EETSNEaEHT
AEBZRERE RATRILEAEEZE
AXGREEERE UERESZEHT
AEBZHERBERBITERS - EM kK
ARETFEEEREE- R_Z—"F+=A8
=t H EZTeHAREZAN BE=%
HWITESR -—RBIUFRTEET -RITES
BRERLAE RAIFAERGRELE-BYL
IFMITEE AR TE (ZHANG Zihua) £ 4E -
EBM TR EEHEE - BAEECLRERE
HNFE16EF18H -

RBE_Z—R"EF+_A=+t—HLFER
BRTIARESEER EFHEHFBOT:

Directors’
Name of the Directors Attendance
EEER BEEHER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai SRR A 14/14
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu R F LA 13/14
Mr. LIAN Xin (retired on 1 April 2016) ek (RZE—RFWMA—RBEME) 5/6
Mr. XU Gang TREEE 14/14
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKBITES
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo RRIEHE 8/11

(resigned on 15 September 2016) (R=ZE—ARFLAT+EABET)
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong (retired on 1 April 2016) RBEBLEE 6/6
(R=ZZE—A"FMA—BEMT)

Ms. X! Lina EZB L4 14/14
Ms. HUANG Zhixiong mEMEE 13/14
Mr. ZHANG Zihua SR FEE* (ZHANG Zihua) %4 2/3

(appointed on 20 September 2016)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors
should be appointed for specific term. There is no specific
term of appointment of the non-executive Directors of the
Company, however, they are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles. Accordingly the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to deal
with the requirement in respect of the appointment terms of
non-executive Directors as required under the code provision.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The
Board held a board meeting for each quarter to discuss and
approve the Group’s results. The then board members attended
the meetings.
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EXERKRSE

CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1, the responsibilities between
chairman and chief executive officer should be divided.
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the
roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within
the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board believes that the
balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and is adequately ensured by current Board
which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they received for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016 to the Company.
The Company has also continuously updated Directors on
the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (Continued)

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is summarized below:

Corporate

Governance Report
EXERKRE

SEH 21w

HE_Z-—RF+A=+—BHILEFE &
E=MEASEICEBANT

Attending or
participating

in seminars/
workshops
reading materials
relevant to roles,
functions, and
duties of a listed
company director

HER 2 m st

g THESME

EBELETAF

EEAG.

BEER

Name of Directors EEnA BENTHR

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai SRR A v

Mr. ZHANG Xinyu SRFTF AL v

Mr. XU Gang RE A& v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYBTES

Mr. ZHANG Zihua 3 F 2+ (ZHANG Zihua) %4 v

Ms. XI Lina Bt v

Mr. HUANG Zhixiong ELERE v
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EXERKRSE

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 1 general meeting,
being the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company (“2016
AGM”) was held on 1 April 2016.

RS

RBE_ZT—R"F+-_A=+—BLFE"
AARBRTIABEREAG AR =_Z—X
FUNA—HRTZ_T— A NFREBFRE
([ZB—RERRBEAE])-

Directors’
Name of the Directors Attendance
EEgE BEEHFEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai REFRILAE 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Xinyu RITF LA 1/
Mr. LIAN Xin BRET A& 0/1
(retired on 1 April 2016) (R=—Z—XFWMA—ABEME)
Mr. XU Gang RE A 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo RRAF&HE 1/
(resigned on 15 September 2016) (R=ZZE—RFNAT+EBEET)
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong REHEE 0/1
(retired on 1 April 2016) (RZZF—ARFMHA—HREME)
Ms. XI Lina EBMit 0/
Ms. HUANG Zhixiong R RE 0/1
Mr. ZHANG Zihua iR FEE* (ZHANG Zihua) 74 N/A
(appointed on 20 September 2016) (RZE—AR"FNAZTHEZT) N3 A

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue
with shareholders and in particular, uses annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with them
and encourage their participation. The executive Directors
and the chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee attended the 2016
AGM to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by three board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s annual
reports, interim reports and quarterly reports; (b) to discuss
and review with the auditor of the Company on the scope
and findings of the audit; and (c) to supervise the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Zihua, Ms. XI
Lina and Mr. HUANG Zhixiong. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. ZHANG Zihua, who possesses extensive
experience in finance and accounting.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year and
reviewed the Group’s audited annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2015 and the unaudited quarterly
and interim results for the year ended 31 December
2016, which is of the opinion that the preparation of
such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made. The Audit Committee also reviewed the
internal control systems of the Company and considered
the engagement of professionals in relation to the risk
management and internal control and environmental,
social and governance reporting requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Gontinued)

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

B
I\
YA

Details of the members’ attendance of the Audit EZZEgeENKELBEFBEAT
Committee meetings are as follows:
Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
REHE REHER
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo BRI 2/3
(resigned on 15 September 2016) (R=ZE—ARFhLA+HEABET)
Mr. CHOU Jianzhong BB LE 11
(retired on 1 April 2016) (R=ZZE—XFWMA—BEME)
Ms. XI Lina EEM+ 5/5
Mr. Huang Zhixiong ELMERE 4/4
(appointed as a member on 1 April 2016) (RZZ—RFNUA—HEZITAEKE)
Mr. ZHANG Zihua iR FEE* (ZHANG Zihua) &4 2/2

(appointed on 20 September 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee according to the relevant provisions of the
GEM Listing Rules with written terms of reference. lIts
primary duties are (a) to make recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management; (b)
to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals

(RZE—ARFNLA-T+REEE)

FHEES

ARABERBAIZR EHARUZBRER
EXRZHFEWNEE S WO BETHEER
BEE - HX2RED@MUARAZE
EZRRREBEABZHFMBRERE
MESERHERZSR O)AEEEZMHME
©ETEHEBEMmE RitEEEEN
R ROBEENATEFTRS
MERANBF B

and objectives; and (c) to determine the remuneration
packages on individual executive Directors and senior

management.

The Remuneration Committee consists of

Director and two independent non-executive Directors,

namely Mr. ZHANG Zihua (as chairman),
Sing Tai and Ms. XI Lina as members.
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TEERMRE
BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) =ELEE ()
2. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) FMEES (8)

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee held 2 meetings and (1) reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, (2) assessed the performance of two
executive Directors and discussed and approved their
remuneration, and (3) assessed the performance of one
independent non-executive Director and discussed and
recommended her remuneration.

Details of the members’ attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are as follows:

REBEFERA - #ﬁ@dﬂz@cé\mﬂﬁfﬂu\
ERITNRIESASREEEGT M
Fi8 - ()%16?@%#%??%2%%@ Dl
A MBEBREHM RO T E—BBL
ERITEB KRB IFE T Kt EF N
REER-

FMZESERNKEBLREFBNT

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
REHA REHFEE
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo BRF%& A4 11

(resigned on 15 September 2016) (R=ZZE—A"FNLA+RHAEHIT)

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai R ZR ST A 1/2
Ms. Xl Lina EEML+ 2/2
Mr. ZHANG Zihua ok F 2 * (ZHANG Zihua) 7t 4 11

(appointed on 20 September 2016)

Apart from attending the above meetings, the members
of the Remuneration Committee by passing of written
resolutions determined the remuneration of the new
executive Director.

The executive Directors are considered to be senior
management of the Company. The emoluments payable
to them are determined by the Remuneration Committee
based on their qualifications, experience and the prevailing
market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(R=ZZFB-—RFLA-THEEE)

BHELRERZI FHEBEEKE
BRERRZEENRTESHHN-

BITEEHRRERAANSRER
B-BRNREZMeaFMESFER
REZEE KBIBITHREERE -
EEMENHBENGE M BHRRWME
14 0
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Gontinued)

3.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee
on 28 March 2013 with written terms of reference in
accordance with requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee shall comprise at least three
members with a majority of independent non-executive
Directors, and the Chairman of the Board or an
independent non-executive Director should take up the
role of chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai (as chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG
Zihua and Ms. XI Lina. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee is currently made available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference adopted by the Nomination Committee
are aligned with the code provisions set out in the Code.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review
and monitor the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement of the Group’s
strategy; to identify qualified individuals to become
members of the Board; to assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors; and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive.

The Board adopted on 30 August 2013 a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated certain
duties under the Policy to the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee and the Board had also reviewed
on 26 March 2015 the structure of the Board and is of
the opinion the Board consisted of members with different
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge,
which met the requirements under the terms of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

SEELETHm)

3.

REZEE

ARARZE—=F=A =+ N\ARE
B ZHRERIREEZEE Wi E
EHBEGE -REEZESARAEL=
BRREHEK MEFRRZE BB LI
TEF VTHEFSXI R —BBEIF
WITEFAREZLZEGEIR -BEZLE
EEAEE—RRTESTRERLE (B
EEFE)RMBBIIFNTERRFE
(ZHANG Zihua) o4 R ZBIH 2 Lo 1%
HEE G BEEERD T AT
MARNTMRE -

REZBERMNZBRLETATHIAA
BT RAIMR 2 E

REZBEZBEARIMEEESS
ZHRE - RENEK REZFSRUE
MEREENLEEAKRERE -WEA
EMABLTESENE FAEBIF
HTES 2B EURRETRERZ
TEEMES (BRIRER RITHAE)
METHEREFTSRMHES

EEgRN_ZT—=FN\A=THERHE
FELBR ([ESEZTBE])
FHERRAEATHNETHREZERIRES
ZEE -RAZBGREFEIN_F
—HFE=ZA-t+RARISEFTGZIR
B IRREFTEHATRMLR  Fik-X
ERBEES Bk FELR Wk
Mz BHEK ENREZTEZ T
BRI 2 T

Y EREE



Corporate Governance Report

e sehe s/
tEERRE
BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EXZE®®
3. NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued) 3. BEZEE @)
During the year under review, the Nomination Committee REBFEAN RAZEE2ETIR
held 1 meeting and (1) reviewed the Board composition, FRTMNMBATETSZAK QBB
(2) reviewed the independence of the independent VHERTEEZRB I ERQ) ZEERE
nonexecutive Directors and (3) considered the re-election EEEBEET-

of retiring Directors.

Details of the members’ attendance of the Nomination REZEGCRNKXEREFBOT:
Committee meetings are as follows:

Members’
Name of the Members Attendance
REHA REHER
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai REFILAE 1/1
Mr. LEUNG Ka Wo AR AE 1/1
(resigned on 15 September 2016) (RZZ—ARFNAT+HEBEIE)
Ms. XI Lina Bzt 11
Mr. ZHANG Zihua iR FEE* (ZHANG Zihua) &4 N/A
(appointed on 20 September 2016) (RZZE—ARFNAZTHEZT) N3 A
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR EEEAREMBHMERZEE
THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the ZEEZMEBHASHEEANEEZHBKHREK I
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and ensure HRBBUBHREDIIBBEEZERE,RERS
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with =t #B|FE& -EHNER A EBEMEHRKRE
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. R A °

The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial

statements of the Group.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, ZEEWR &IEL—VAEEHE MBS
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, &1~ BT & M B2 @ % 2 I A A (E(A] Al fE & &
they are not aware of any matters uncertainly relating to AR B EKLERE N ER B A B 2 SFk
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the B2 THEEHEZ=-

Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

* for identification purpose only Y EHREE
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EXERKRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions were performed by the
Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance to comply with the Code and other legal or
regulatory requirements, to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director, to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
held 1 meeting for reviewing the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2015 and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The responsibility statement of external auditor of the
Company, HLB about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 62 to 69. During the year, auditor’s
remuneration for audit services was HK$1,080,000 and
non-audit services for review of financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2016 was HK$120,000. Save as
disclosed above, there was no other significant non-audit
services assignment undertaken by the external auditor during
the year.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external professional company
secretarial services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited
(“Uni-17), to provide compliance and full range of company
secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the Group
to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
difference commercial needs.

Mr. TSE Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company.

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai, the Chairman of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company
Secretary.

According to the requirement of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rules, Mr. Tse, being a person who was a company secretary of
a listed issuer before 31 December 1994, will take no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training for the financial year
commenced on 1 January 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each
year and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company according to the provisions as set out in the
Articles and The Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The procedures shareholders can use to convene an
extraordinary general meeting are set out in the document
entitled “Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director”, which is currently available on the
Company’s website.
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EXERKRSE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

To ensure effective communications between the Board and
the shareholders and the investment community at large, the
Company’s information is communicated to the shareholders
and the investment community mainly through the Company’s
financial reports (quarterly reports, interim reports and
annual reports), and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders and the investment
community may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
as at the date of the requisition carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING (Continued)

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shalll
be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution
or circulating any necessary statement, at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:—

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than
six weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed
with the necessary procedures.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company’s general meeting is a
valuation forum for the Board to communicate directly with
the shareholders. The Chairman of the Board as well as the
chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee together with the
external auditor are present to answer shareholders’ questions.
The annual report together with annual general meeting circular
is distributed to all the shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the annual general meeting.
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EXERKRSE

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to
be voted on by a show of hands.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on
an ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review
of both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, with
a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Risk Assurance Limited (“Baker Tilly”) to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management
measures as recommended by Baker Tilly to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based
on the findings and recommendations of Baker Tilly as well as
the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered
the internal control and risk management systems effective and
adequate.

OUR ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK

The Company has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall
responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal controls
are maintained, management is responsible for designing and
implementing an internal control system to manage all kinds of
risks facing by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments.
QOur risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the Audit
Committee that oversees risk management and internal audit
functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

OUR RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by Baker Tilly. The Group maintains a risk
register to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks.
Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The
risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the risk register and are aware of
and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they
can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk
management framework will be evaluated at least annually, and
periodic management meeting is held to update the progress
of risk monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure
that risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate
goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

OUR RISK CONTROL MECHANISM (Continued)

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet
its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit function.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Future Commission
in June 2012 to ensure inside information remains confidential
until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently
and consistently made. The Company regularly reminds the
Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies
regarding the inside information. Also, the Company keeps
Directors, senior management and employees appraised of the
latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update
appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance with
regulatory requirements.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERHRE

The Company is pleased to present our first Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report. The report summarises
our performance in ESG during the year ended 31 December
2016.

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL

EMISSIONS

The Group’s business operations do not involve in production
of air, water and land pollutions and hazardous waste. We have
implemented eco-friendly measures to reduce carbon footprint
in our business operations.

USE OF RESOURCES

Green and low-carbon is the only way of sustainable
development of our society. The Group has been committed to
become a resource-saving and environment-friendly enterprise
to promote environmental protection. We have been actively
strengthened the energy-saving in order to reduce emission, and
adhered to reduce energy consumption as a green data centre.

Electricity and Water Saving

Electricity and water saving notices are posted to remind our
employees to save energy.

Paper

The Group encourages our employees to work in a paperless
environment. To avoid unnecessary wastage and promote
effective usage of paper, our employees are encouraged to use
emails instead of hardcopies. If printing is still necessary, we
encourage double-sided printings and copying, or to collect
and reuse single-sided recycle printings and copying for internal
documents.

Besides, containers of ink cartridges and toner of printers and
copiers are recycled by the suppliers. Envelopes and files are
also reused by our employees.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

ARRMAZINBEMANENRR HLERE
BURRE - HERER]DBE AHmEH M
BARBE_ZE-R"RF+T_A=+—HLF
ERRRE e hEARE-

EARN:IRE

235 &)

AEFENKEEHIEEZER KELH)5
AYRBEREY BRACEBRRRERE K
D IR AT SRS AR B R RO PRI

ERER

RARMEREEMALEAIRERROLHEZ
o AEBE-—EHINKAHOERIRR
2% W T EREFRE - RAVER H05R 50 BE R
BE B ARIBE RIRIRAVAZ D ©

EE R E K

BB ERSKORN REEIHH
4B -

HKR

AEEZBHETINERENRETIIIE-R
BRTIMBENRE MEERKRNERNA
BMEBEIERAEFBARBEREF-
ENABEITE BAREEmITEIREE
i e 5= Ko AR AR 0 e ) BB TET 4T BN S 4B ENAR -
PAFT EN R 48 EN R &R S A ©

SN AT ENHE R 4B ENHE ) 2 245 /i 1 7 [
W-BMMmBETHREEEMMBEHRX -



Environmental, Social and Governanc

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group believes that corporate development should not
come at the expense of the environment. Therefore, we adopt
environmental friendly practices in various aspects. For example,
we use energy saving lighting such as tube lights in office; adopt
paperless working environment to reduce unnecessary wastage.

SECTION B: SOCIAL

EMPLOYMENT

Our Group treats our staffs as the most valuable asset as they
help to develop our core values and cultures. Without their
continued commitment and contribution, we will not be able to
operate or serve our customers. It is therefore our top priority
to make sure that our employees work in a fair, safe, healthy
and pleasant working environment that facilitate their personal
growth and career development.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

We are dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, such as recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training and staff promotion. We strongly believe
that each individual has his/her unique strengths that adds
value to the company and the society. We therefore have
comprehensive equal employment opportunities policies in
place that protect potential and existing employees from being
discriminated because of their backgrounds, gender, age,
family status, sexual orientation, disability, race or religion. All
employees are assessed based on their ability, performance
and contribution to the company. The employment contracts
are strictly following the relevant laws and regulations. During
the reporting period, there was no discriminatory act reported
or complaint received in relation to equal opportunity, transfer,
promotion, recruitment, termination, severance, holidays,
benefits and training.
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RIE - HERERHRE

HUMAN RIGHTS

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of our
approach to sustainability. We fully comply with labour laws or
other relevant legislations that prohibits child labour and forced
labour. We do not employ any person below the age of eighteen
at our workplace. Our employees’ resting time is flexible and well
respected and the employees enjoy paid holidays in accordance
with the laws. Overtime compensation hours and pays are in
line with the local laws and regulations. No employee is made
to work against his/her will or work as forced labour, or subject
to corporal punishment or coercion of any type related to work.
During 2016, we did not identify any breach in legislation related
to these areas.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for our employees. The Group promise that it fully
complying with all the regulations regarding occupational health
and safety, providing an effective and safe working environment
for our employees. Under this mechanism and measures, no
death or permanent disability case was noted during 2016.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

In 2016, the Group provided approximately 130 hours of training
to our employees, including training of internal policies of the
Group, safety knowledge and environmental protection. All
newly recruited employees attended induction training.

In addition, the Government also organizes regular training
on occupational safety and environmental awareness, and
the Group encourages and requires our employees to attend
such training. Finally, the Group’s internal policies provide that
it is not allowed to detain personal documents and wage of
our employees, nor can it be violent or engraved, such as
deliberately causing difficulties, threats and corporal punishment,
and any person that should be taken to force employees to
work.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group believes in nurturing and developing top talents
regardless of race, gender, age, religious belief, pregnancy,
marital status, family status or disability. The Group has
policies to ensure all employees and job applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fair treatment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Appeal Principles and Channels

The Group encourage the management to dialogue with our
employees through a variety of ways to collect staff voices, in
order to maintain a harmonious relationship with our employees.
All of our employees and management of the Group can
use multi-communication channels for horizontal or vertical
communication, such as e-mail or interviews.

SUPPLIERS CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group implemented rigorous management of the suppliers.
The Group has established a list of approved suppliers, and will
review their background (including their recognized qualifications
and licenses), pricing and terms and conditions of supply before
the supplier is approved for inclusion. The review concerns
whether they are still in compliance with our requirements
and standards in terms of pricing, product or service quality,
performance, reliability, ability to deliver products or services on
time, renewal of licenses, and technical capabilities.

The Group encourage our suppliers to promote corporate
social responsibility activities and to comply with corporate
social responsibility codes for their business ethics, workplace
operations, marketing activities, social contacts and
environmental responsibilities. High standards of morality
should include total completeness expected in all commercial
transactions; bribes or other unfair benefits cannot be provided
or accepted; information on business activities, structure,
financial status and performance should be disclosed only in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group recognises the importance of the quality of the
services provided by the Group. To enable to provide customers
with the best experience, understanding their needs, the Group
has set up various channels for customers to express their
comments and recommendations, such as hotline and social
networking tools.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - HERERHRE

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To promote a good and ethical business culture, we have
established the Code of Conduct (“CoC”) for all employees.
Our CoC are in reference to the anti-corruption policy published
by Hong Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption
(“ICAC”) and to the Prevention of Bribery Ordiance (Cap. 201 of
HKSAR Law). Our employees are required to comply strictly with
applicable laws relating to the above acts.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

INTRODUCTION

The Group always remember the social responsibility during
the Group’s operation and development process, with actively
promoting the social development by Internet science and
technology innovation. In view of this, the Group participates
in various community charitable activities and encourage
the participation of employees. In 2016, the contribution to
public charities was approximately HKD27,000. There were 13
employees who participated in such activities for a total of 132
hours.

“ZHUXISHUGU”

E-commerce business development brings new industry
direction and entrepreneurial direction to the community. The
Group strives to promote social development in the e-commerce
business and cooperate with the Jiangmen Government by
actively promoting the [ 2k 78 £t A | project. Through its extensive
experience, we provide incubation services for emerging small
and medium-sized enterprises and advancing the development
of data trading platforms to serve the social industries.

“DRESS CASUAL DAY”

The Group is heartily involved in the’Dress Casual Day”. Our
employees enthusiastically donated in order to their support,
and wear casual clothes to work in the "Dress Casual Day”.
The Group is hoping to help those in need of the society by
participating this event.
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Environmental, Social and Governanc

CARE FOR THE ELDERLY, DELIVER
KINDNESS AND WARMTH

In December 2016, the Group sponsored the [ELEEEZ ]
hosted by the B ZE =T KBREMEH L, which aims to
bring the elderly out of the city area where they live, and intimate
to the beauty of nature. About 120 elderly people enjoyed a
healthy vegetarian luncheon for a pleasant day.

SUPPORT CHILDREN SUFFER IN HEART
DISEASE FROM MAINLAND MOUNTAIN

In September 2016, the Group and our employees actively
responded the fundraising activities hosted by the A B £ A
H £ by donating books and stationery for the children’s daily
necessities.

SUPPORT SPECIAL NEEDS

The Group sponsored the physiotherapy services of the 185
&R E to provide tailor-made professional physiotherapy
services for disabled and needy people who are struggling to
live alone or in poverty to help.

In addition, at the beginning of October 2016, some of our
employees, on behalf of the Group and FH 2 A E &, visited
children with congenital heart disease and their families located
in the Zhaotong City.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating
to emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during the reporting
period.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
18 3L 4% BB R

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEO TELEMEDIA LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 70 to
246, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

KEY AUDIT MATTERSs are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BBk E ()

AR ET SR

BRETESESRBERMANERHE RA
BAHGRAMBERERNETRAEENER-
EULEREERMBFBREEMBHRERNK
HARRBETREN -RMATEHELS
HEHEBNER -

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEETER BMWETONMEEEARETSEE

Acquisition of 60% equity interest in EMHEHRBZER AT
Limited*) (“Guangzhou Nowtop”)

Al (Guangzhou Nowtop Technology Company

BREMNTEANEERAT ([EMNER]) 260% KA ER

2R4R A M IS RR MY FE3 K MY 7E35(a) ©

Refer to notes 3 and 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

On 4 March 2016, the Group acquired 60% of equity | Our a

determining the fair value of the acquired intangible
assets, cash flow forecast has been prepared by |
the Group with the assistance from an independent
external valuers. As a result of the acquisition | e
principally the following intangible assets, customer
relationships of approximately HK$178,399,000 | e
and license of approximately HK$8,220,000 were
recognised respectively.

RZZE—XR"E=ZFMNB: BE£EBENEREHD
170121ooaayc%w%f‘uyéﬁﬁzﬁo%Hxiwg/\o o
REETHMBBERNEEZ ATFER: £EE

ﬁez%m\gma@aﬂmmaﬂzﬁ ‘Jfﬁuémgi‘é‘ﬁu &
RETBWRETIEFLEE CORNERECBIEL | o
178,399,000/% 7T & 5 # #8,220,000/%8 T °

We focused on this area because accounting for |
acquisition requires the identification and valuation of
intangible assets and the allocation of purchase price
to the assets and liabilities acquired, which involves a | e
number of judgements and assumptions.
BMAIETENRAARZWE L ST RETEY | .
ERVEEETHIRGEUNRBEEBSEZMK
BEERBE WP RKREHERRE-

A

udit procedures in this area included, amongst

interest in Guangzhou Nowtop for an aggregate | others:
consideration of approximately HK$170,121,000. In | ®MEH S EETZ B RFETE:

Evaluating of the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
FHEBIINER R ER 2 B EE - e R FEIE

Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts;
ERBAHEETEZR @*&Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂmﬁ
ERAEARAZAEREIERR 2B

Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and
BREZRMEEARBRITEZRBBTEIER

REBRE: M

Checking, on sampling basis, the accounting
and relevance of the input data used.

MEBREMREARE 2 S5 RIERARIE-

We found the acquisition-date fair values of the
identifiable assets acquired supported by the available
evidence.
REMBEAIBNEERNKRBBERZ 2 FES
BRAIGHEEXE-

*for identification purpose only

Y ERES
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

SRR AT E 18 (@)

Key audit matters

MEEtER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BN ES O NEERRETSR

Impairment assessments on goodwill and intangible assets

BEREBREEZREE

Refer to notes 3, 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

2B AP BERERMES ~ 19K&20 °

The Group has goodwill and intangible assets with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$195,139,000
and HK$317,058,000 respectively which are
allocated to the cash-generating-units of sale of
telecommunication products and services and internet
finance platform (‘“CGUs”) as at 31 December 2016.
Management performed impairment assessment
of CGUs and concluded that no impairment on the
goodwill and intangible assets is necessary to provide.
This conclusion was based on value-in-use model that
required management judgment with respect to the
discount rate and underlying cashflows, in particular
future revenue growth and capital expenditure.
Independent external valuation reports were obtained
in order to support management’s estimates.
EA:% NE+-_A=+—H EBE£EBSEBREH

EEEERIRBEALEBEcRTAEB RS
%iiuﬂﬁiﬁiﬁunzﬁ%&ﬁﬁéé il
#)/195,139,0007% 7T %317,058,000/& L - BEE E B
HESEFBMETRENGIRABAREER
BIEEETREBRERE WERDENEREERR
fEH ZERFREETRERTRERMEFAR e RIEL
FIE L HRARRBEE R REARL - B FHER
B2 st BEEITHEILIMNEB(E(E -

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment included:

B EREREMEETIRFEE:

° Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
e FMEBMAMNEBHER ZBEN e REEI:

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts;

e HERBMEMEBITRZRBHLRBARMNMGEE
ERAEARBZAERIERRZAEM:

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

e BRERMEAAERBELTRZABEFEIZR
RREEAE R

° Checking, on sampling basis, the accounting
and relevance of the input data used.
e  MBBEMAWABE R EERKMBRE-

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.

HPMRBEIERRAAISEEE

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHIEEEBEFR LA




Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BBk E ()

SRR AT E 18 (@)

Key audit matters

REEtER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EMNEFNTEEEEENSE

5 BWIRAR  HtERRER ERE K 2B EFE

Impairment assessments on trade receivables, other receivables and loan receivables

2R B W RERMIFES - 23 124125 ©

Refer to note 3, 23, 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has trade receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables of approximately
HK$192,956,000, HK$150,853,000, and
HK$165,000,000, respectively. Management
judgement is required in assessing and determining
the recoverability of trade receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables and adequacy of
allowance made.
ESBECESRKER EMERFEBERERE
;9 B4 /192,956,000 7T + 150,853,000/ 7T &
165,000,000/ 7T © 71 1t [ 7 £ & 5 JE W BR K - ELAth &
WK TE I W S R AT B DA R P E RS B 2 B 3R
MEEEEE L -

The judgement mainly includes estimating and
evaluating expected future receipts from customers
based on past payment trend, age of the debtors,
knowledge of the customers’ businesses and financial
condition.
HEFEEERBEEENRBY BEFKK HEF
EBRERVBIRA THREARFHERRKREER
WHR 2 5RIA

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment on trade receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables included:

BB EIRE L E 5 e WERR - H At & WK IE K e Uk
EFOREREET I IEFEE:

° Discussing the Group’s procedures on credit
limits and periods given to customers with the
management;

e HERBENH BEEELATEFPEELREE
EHZERF:

° Evaluating the management’s impairment
assessment on trade receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables;

e HEEREHZEZEWERNR EMEKRFIER
ERE R 2 mERE:

° Assessing, validating and discussing with the
management and evaluating their assessment
on the recoverability of the outstanding debts
and the adequacy of allowance made based
on the trade and loan receivables ageing
analysis, collections subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, past collection history and
trend analysis and knowledge of the businesses,
with focus on long outstanding debts and debts
which are past due but not impaired; and

e REZEZFRUWRAKREBUERZEKRERSNT RN
wERERE ZWBER BERKE £ NS
DAMAREEB (LEIERARERES
REBPERBEZER) 2T @I G REYL
HERENm LA ERSEHRERER 2K
EEELR 2 A RAEBERERE &

° Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of information included in the
impairment assessment of trade receivables,
other receivables and loan receivables.

s MBEREEZEUEER - b EUIE R EK
B FOR BT AT E A R R 2R 1 AR B -

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.

BPRBEERB 2 EmEMBERAEN-
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors * report
thereon. (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BB EmEmE (8)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the KEY AUDIT MATTERSs. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui

Practising Certificate Number: P05895

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GRERmkEtEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —ZF—NE+—=H=+—HI FF

2016 2015
ZB-XRF —T-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTEx FHET
Turnover HER 7 2,513,845 1,914,902
Costs of sales $HE R (2,290,382) (1,813,983)
Gross profit EF 223,463 100,919
Other income and gains E A R s 8 19,873 537
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QAR Z W 36 143,229 -
Changes in fair value of contingent ERZAREZATE
consideration payable gz 35(a) (6,029) -
Selling and marketing costs BHE RIS HEE KA (15,540) (18,775)
Administrative and other expenses THRERHEMER (108,874) (87,695)
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FLE & EFER 2 B (E
of intangible assets B8 20 - (6,378)
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FL& X ZiEFER 2 B (E
of promissory note B8 45 (22,800) -
Finance costs L= DN 10 (10,356) (24,541)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEBADRF, (EE) 12 222,966 (35,933)
Income tax expense PSR X 11 (20,779) (8,322)
Profit/(loss) for the year FRmH, (EE) 202,187 (44,255)
Other comprehensive loss FREMZEERE
for the year, net of tax (HBRFLIE)
Iltems that may be reclassified HEnEEN I E B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEEA -
Exchange differences arising during FAEECZIEHZERE
the year (39,599) (7,435)
Reclassification adjustment relating to 4 A& B L & /850
foreign operations disposal during ¥ EFDERAE
the year (2,353) -
Reclassification adjustment relating to 4 A A BIEUH & 50
deregistration of foreign branch BIND AT Z
during the year EOBAE (105) -
(42,057) (7,435)
Total comprehensive income/(l0ss) FREEEA (EE)
for the year FEEE 160,130 (51,690)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

GAeEEkEMEERER (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —ZF—NE+—=H=+—HIF F/F

2016 2015
ZB-XRF —T—h*F
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year UTATEEFERER
attributable to: (FH|) :
Owners of the Company VN/NEIE ZEDN 192,009 (32,227)
Non-controlling interests FEIE i 10,178 (12,028)
202,187 (44,255)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) MW TATEEZEBA
attributable to: (B8] &%
Owners of the Company PN/NEIE ZEDN 152,333 (38,998)
Non-controlling interests eI i = 7,797 (12,692)
160,130 (51,690)
HK Cents HK Cents
A4l B
Earnings/(loss) per share BRERN(FHE) 13
Basic BN 2.02 (0.47)
Diluted #E 2.01 (0.47)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBI R

As at 31 December 2016 R=-FE—NE+=-H=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
MIEE FHET FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE KR 17 414,662 28,880
Interests in an associate R—EBE R R 2 Ex 18 = =
Goodwill EES 19 195,139 121,741
Intangible assets mEEE 20 317,058 194,866
926,859 345,487
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 26,033 25,286
Trade receivables B 5 R 23 192,956 91,235
Prepayments, deposits A RIE - 2e RE M E
and other receivables U sRIR 24 239,239 155,613
Promissory note R 36(a) 65,200 =
Loan receivables JEWE X 25 165,000 =
Derivative financial assets TEESMEE 31 - -
Financial assets at fair value BAFETAEZR
through profit or loss LEREBE 26 48,631 =
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEEY 27 188,882 1,111,947
925,941 1,384,081
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables B I ENERR 28 30,353 46,093
Other payables and accruals H M JE < 5RI8 I FE 5T IR 29 59,101 120,971
Receipt in advances T8 U BR 3Kk 2,029 8,688
Bank borrowings |ITIER 30 55,897 26,271
Convertible notes Al AR R 31 = 157,364
Contingent consideration payable JERT S ARAB 35(a) 20,000 =
Tax liabilities BIEAE 39,613 14,584
206,993 373,971
Net current assets RBEEFE 718,948 1,010,110
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 1,645,807 1,355,597

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHIEEEBEFR LA



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

caMBRAE ()

As at 31 December 2016 R-E—NE+=H=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
MIaE FExT FET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Contingent consideration payable FERT S ARAE 35(a) 24,350 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 32 73,950 36,737
98,300 36,737
Net assets EEFE 1,547,507 1,318,860
Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital R% 2 33 952,884 952,884
Reserves ] 489,522 337,189
Equity attributable to owners of RAEIEB ARG ER
the Company 1,442,406 1,290,073
Non-controlling interests JEE R 105,101 28,787
Total equity RSB 1,547,507 1,318,860

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017

and signed on its behalf by:

CHEUNG Sing Tai

RER

DIRECTOR

EF

HEVBEBERNR_T—tF=-A-_THhhAE

A

RR

EESHERKETE XA NIEEAR

ZHANG Xinyu
RETF
DIRECTOR
4
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g Z —F—NF+—-H=+—HIFFZF
Attributable to owners of the Company
KAAREARE
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share options notes  Translation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TERER
e RBEE  BRERE i BEGE EERE RithA Mt FERER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T T TR TiEn TEL TEx T TEL
Note)
(H3E)
At 1 January 2015 R-F-15-A-8 275,492 1,043,755 20,657 7,131 1,060 7,375 (1,486,912 (131,442) 28,373 (103,089)
Loss for the year FNER o = o = = o (82,227) (32,227) (12,028) (44,255)
Exchange diflerence on translating of MEBEEZ
foreign operations ERZE = = - - 6,771) - - 6.771) (664) (7,435)
Total comprehensive loss ENZEFREE
for the year - - - - 6,771) - (82,227) (38,998) (12,692) (51,690)
Issue of shares in relation to HRBHBAARRG
acquisition of subsidiaries 49972 208,639 - - - - - 268,611 - 268,611
Non-controling Interests arising from ~ WEEHBAAZEL 2
acquisttion of subsidiaries FRRE - - - - - - - - 4,685 4,685
Capital contribution by FinhER 2 TE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 8421 8,421
Issue of shares upon BT ERERTRG
exercise of share options 2,000 16,177 (6,617) - - - - 12,560 - 12,560
Bonus issue of shares BAR 307,792 (307,792) - - - - - - - -
Open offer of shares RAEERHD 317,628 889,359 - - - - - 1,206,987 - 1,206,987
Transaction costs RAFERERSNA
attrioutable to open offer = (17,645) = = 2 = = (17,645) = (17,645)
At 31 December 2015 R=F-75+-A=1-H 952,884 1,832,493 15,040 7,131 5711) 7,375 (1519,139) 1,290,073 28,787 1,318,860
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE — =&

(Continued)
HEREEHR (F)

—AEFZAZ AU

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAREARE
Share  Convertible Non-
Share Share options notes Translation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
TAREE
B% RGER  BREGE B BERE EERE iR Mt FERER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Fr T T Tk TEn Tn Thn AR iR
(Note)
(M)
At 1 January 2016 R-ZF-~"§-A-R 952,884 1,832,493 15,040 7,131 6,711) 7,375 (1,519,139) 1,290,073 28,787 1,318,860
Profit for the year FRER o = = = £, > 192,009 192,009 10,178 202,187
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ H462 (B8) /KA
ltems that may be reclassified AR EH PR BRI BE
Ssubsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference on translating of Rt BN EREE 2 ELZH
foreign operations = = = S (37,218) = = (37,218 (2,381) (39,599)
Reclassfication adjustment FRERLERNEEL
relating to foreign operations BNARRE
disposal during the year - - - - (2,353) - - (2,353) - (2,353)
Reclassification adjustment ENERRHEERENA DAL
relating to deregistration of ENHERE
foreign branch during
the year - < - - (105) - - (105) (105)
Total comprehensive oss)fincome  FR27E (FE) /RAEE
for the year - - - - (39,676) - 192,009 152,333 7,197 160,130
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - - - 4,155 4,155
Early redemption of convertible notes 2 REE AT ARE K - - - (713 - - 3 - -
Release of reserve upon maturity RIBRREHSERRGER
of convertible notes - - - (6,418) - - 6,418 - - -
Capital contribution by FiaRERTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - - 4,149 4149
Non-controling interests arising WEHBAREE FERES
from acquistion of a subsidiary = = = = = = = = 60213 60,213
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-H 952,884 1,832,493 15,040 - (45,387) 7375 (1,319,999 1,442,406 105,101 1,547,507
Note: Bt 5 -

According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”), subsidiaries of the Company established in the
PRC are required to transfer 10% of their net profit, as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards and regulations, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of
their respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of dividends to owners of these subsidiaries.
Statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off previous years’ losses,
if any, and may be converted into capital in proportion to existing
equity owners’ equity percentage, provided that the balance after such
issuance is not less than 25% of their registered capital.

RBEPEARKME ([HE)BBED FOER
ARARPERTIZMBARAEREMRN 2
10% (RREHHEE uﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁmkui
Em%ﬁ%.ﬁi&ﬁﬁZm%gﬁADQZﬁﬁ
BARZ250% - BREZFHELARAZEHER
ZHEBAD KBS AEL R ER %QET%WE
%LEEVZ%E(WE)IT&EEF*%E
AZ%ﬁﬁ D EC B RS  HEB BB TTIR 2 A5 8
PEEREEMER225% °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

2016 2015
ZE-AE —_T-h¥F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Operating activities R
Profit/(loss) before tax BEBADR A, (EE) 222,966 (35,933)
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Finance costs &R 10,356 24,541
Interest income FEWA 4,112) (86)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - = LR EITE 6,177 6,084
Amortisation of intangible assets | E EE 35,970 34,613
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBA Rz W (143,229) =
Loss on early redemption of convertible notes REBRLOABRERERZ
&8 54 _
Gain on deregistration of a branch BBEER —HoRFZ
W zs (1,277) -
Fair value change of contingent FERSARE 2 A FE
consideration payable =) 6,029 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of AN ZBRERCRE
promissory note 518 22,800 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ME  WE RFEEER
property, plant and equipment 2B IEEE - 2,366
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MEREERRZ
intangible assets BEEE - 6,378
Impairment loss recognised in respect of L B WK TE T 5R
other receivables BEEE - 1,552
Operating cash flows before movements EELESRBAI2RER
in working capital ERE 155,734 39,515
Increase in trade receivables H 5 e IR BR 8 N (76,051) (80,733)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FENHIE - Ze REMmE
other receivables W R I 38 N (81,385) (108,177)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEM R (1,250) 649
Increase in trade payables H 5 e R E 8 N (25,814) 20,760
Decrease in other payables and accruals H fib B 3118 R AT R
A (49,152) (5,611)
(Decrease)/increase in receipt in advances BUBRFR CRiA) /1 (6,659) 8,612
Cash used in operations REXEKRFMARS (84,577) (124,985)
Income tax paid BB (4,207) (1,350)
Net cash used in operating activities REERFTARSFE (88,784) (126,335)

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

SAaRERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—A0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investing activities RETH
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of cash W BSBB 2 A (4408 (BT
and cash equivalent (disposed of)/acquired) HE) JFkERS KR
TEEW) (124,363) 4,267
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash HERTB A A (LHBRATIL
and cash equivalent acquired) BRERREEEY) 57,285 =
Deregistration of a branch (net of BUEZ R —Mo A7
cash and cash equivalent disposed of) (M ERe KB
cEEY) (11) =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEK&E (404,878) (3,951)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (110) (7,171)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEABR
through profit of loss LEMEE (50,277) -
Advances of loans BER (165,000) =
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR EMiES - (20,000)
Interest received B U 8 2,012 86
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFARSFE (685,342) (26,769)
Financing activities MEEH
Net proceeds from issue of shares upon 17150 B8 e 1 35 1T AR D
exercise of share options Z TS RIREFE - 12,560
Bank borrowings raised E& IRITER 57,790 26,271
Repayment of bank borrowings EEIRITER (25,428) =
Loan advanced from a substantial shareholder £ Z R E #1F 2 B - 100,000
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests =G #EzE 2 /5 & 4,149 8,421
Net proceeds from open offer of shares NRABERGN 2 MBFIE
R - 1,089,342
Repayment of convertible notes after maturity % #i14 (218 Al 2 A% Z & (144,000) =
Early redemption of convertible notes RREERBRKEEE (16,000) =
Interest paid ERHE (7,774) (66)
Net cash (used in)/generated BEER (FTA) EE
from financing activities ZHREFHE (131,263) 1,236,528
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRBELZEEY
and cash equivalents (GR) /B (905,389) 1,083,424
Cash and cash equivalents FURERBELSEEY
at the beginning of the year 1,111,947 31,668
Effect of foreign exchanges rate changes EXEHHTE (17,676) (3,145)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRBRERBEEZEY 188,882 1,111,947
Analysis of balances of cash FRESRESEEY
and cash equivalents at the end of the year &85 #7
Bank balances and cash RITAEBR KRR € 188,882 1,111,947
188,882 1,111,947
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

GENERAL INFORMATION

Neo Telemedia Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the Company
is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands, and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at
Room 1906-8, 19th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
whose functional currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”) and some
subsidiaries’ functional currency in US Dollars (“USD”),
the functional currency of the Company and its remaining
subsidiaries are HK$. The reason for selecting HK$ as
its presentation currency is that the Company is a public
company listed on the GEM, where most of the investors
are located in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the provision of
transmedia advertising services, sale of telecommunication
products and services and operation of peer-to-peer
lending platform business.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lllli\

CLZECEES

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE

CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current

year:
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

(Amendments)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 to 2014 Cycle

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of

HKFRS 14

Interests in Joint Operations
Regulatory Deferral Accounts

A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 11
ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 11
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to account for
the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes a
business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant
principles on accounting for business combinations in
HKFRS 3 and other standards (for example, HKAS 12
Income Taxes regarding the recognition of deferred taxes at
the time of acquisition and HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets
regarding impairment testing of a cash-generating unit
to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint operation has
been allocated) should be applied. The same requirements
should be applied to the formation of a joint operation if
and only if an existing business is contributed to the joint
operation by one of the parties that participate in the joint
operation.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 11
ACCOUNTING FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
INTERESTS IN JOINT OPERATIONS
(Continued)

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1
DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Disclosure Initiative for the first time in the current year.
The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need
not provide a specific disclosure required by an HKFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure is not
material, and give guidance on the bases of aggregating
and disaggregating information. However, the amendments
reiterate that an entity should consider providing
additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share
of the other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures accounted for using the equity method should be
presented separately from those arising from the Group,
and should be separated into the share of items that, in
accordance with other HKFRSs: () will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (i) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or
grouping of the notes.

A MR MR

FERFEI BRI mEE
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NEBIIEHREER 2 E
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B TERNERHEETEBY R
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SIER 2 EREHIES R ZFE
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BRETRNEMBRRZERE T H
ARG EHREHFHEBOHMBEM
ARMBRANTE NERBEEBFE
HERSMK EE -

SO R FERES  EREMERL
ETEREZEBNIEHERRRE
ShEHEMPAKSEEG AEBME
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REFOBERR -

I BHRRZEBN S ZFEIT RN
AR R LB R MR E BT -

Annual Report 2016 —E— A F £ 3]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS
38 CLARIFICATION OF ACCEPTABLE
METHODS OF DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 838 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment prohibit entities from using a revenue-based
depreciation method for items of property, plant and
equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 Intangible Assets
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset.
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two
limited circumstances:

a)  when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure
of revenue, or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated.

In addition, the amendments also clarify that in choosing an
appropriate amortisation method an entity could determine
the predominant limiting factor that is inherent in the
intangible asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS
41 AGRICULTURE: BEARER PLANTS

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants for the first time in the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment and HKAS 41 Agriculture define a bearer
plant and require biological assets that meet the definition
of a bearer plant to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS
41. The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 AND HKAS 28 INVESTMENT
ENTITIES: APPLYING THE
CONSOLIDATION EXCEPTION

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception for the first time in the current
year. The amendments clarify that the exemption from
preparing consolidated financial statements is available to
a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity,
even if the investment entity measures all its subsidiaries at
fair value in accordance with HKFRS 10. The amendments
also clarify that the requirement for an investment entity to
consolidate a subsidiary, whose main purpose is to provide
services and activities that are related to the investment
activities of the investment entity parent, applies only to
subsidiaries that are not investment entities themselves.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSS
2012-2014 CYCLE

The Group has applied the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle for the first time in the current
year which include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs as summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify when an entity
reclassifies an asset (or a disposal group) from held for
sale to held for distribution to owners (or vice versa), such
a change should be considered as a continuation of the
original plan of disposal and hence requirements set out
in HKFRS 5 regarding the change of sale of plan do not
apply. The amendments also clarify the guidance for when
held-for-distribution accounting is discontinued.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance
to clarify whether a servicing contract constitutes continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used
to discount post-employment benefit obligations should
be determined by reference to market yields at the end
of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds.
The assessment of the depth of a market for high qualify
corporate bonds should be at the currency level (i.e.
the same currency as the benefits are to be paid). For
currencies for which there is no deep market in such high
quality corporate bonds, the market yields at the end of the
reporting period on governments bonds denominated in
that currency should be used instead.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKAS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosure Initiative*

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts'

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets

(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers!

HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarification to HKFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE — =&
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
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§

(Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

JERRFTa] BB MGl E 4

B ([ BB HREAER]])

N BB REER 2 &

EHENC )

B8 B I6 H & E Bl os 2

T A (i)

BB R R EOR T BT

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

° The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under
HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and
the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS
9 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January
2018 and that the application of the new standard may
have a significant impact on amounts reported in respect
of Group'’s financial assets. However, it is not practical to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM
CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15
in relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognized in the respective reporting periods.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid
lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as financing cash flows.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 2
CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT
OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The amendments clarify the following:

1. In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled
share-based payment, the accounting for the effects
of vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow
the same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments.

2. Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which is
then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified
as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the
share-based payment would have been classified as
equity-settled had it not included the net settlement
feature.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERFEIBEMBHREE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG Al ([BEMBHREER])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS REBEBUBREER 2E
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) EIENE:)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 2 ERMBREELF2R 21

CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT Rl RN EEURG B E BT

OF SHARE-BASED PAYMENT XEWHDERE (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. A modification of a share-based payment that 3. BEXSHBESHEEZRBREL
changes the transaction from cash-settled to ERURND ABERNRIEFTER
equity-settled should be accounted for as follows: ATHAAR:

()  the original liability is derecognised; () HUERRRBAE:

(i)  the equity-settled share-based payment is (iy MREEE ARG BERMRK
recognised at the modification date fair value B TERTANEETR
of the equity instrument granted to the extent ANEEER WAEEEE]
that services have been rendered up to the BEREMRBE AR &

modification date; and

(iy any difference between the carrying amount iy BFBAGEMNRAEEEZR
of the liability at the modification date and MERN SR ZENER
the amount recognised in equity should be FES BN B e P TR o

recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the KRR ESHBERZEEIISITEY
application of these will have a material effect on the REBEGEEHBRREKNERTE-

Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 10 AND
HKAS 28 SALE OR CONTRIBUTION OF
ASSETS BETWEEN AN INVESTOR AND
ITS ASSOCIATE OR JOINT VENTURE

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments
state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control
of a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a
transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognised
in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the
remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new
associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7
DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require
the following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: () changes from financing cash
flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (i) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier
application permitted. The application of the amendments
will result in additional disclosures on the Group’s financing
activities, specifically reconciliation between the opening
and closing balances in the consolidated statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities
will be provided on application.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

FERFE] BB EImELE
Al (BB BRmEEL])
RBEBI G mELER 21E
BN (@)

EBEHERETR BT R
wEE A

HEETHRTE BB EHHRRED
T EREEDAELHR ERD
MEBERN BERSRBEANS

RHFRLEHARME HEEHE
SPHERMEEBE A TAEED
(RERSRBELHED: () RNGL
Y SENSEESTES L £k 00
28 (i) EEELBHYE: (VAT
CE LR AVET TR

ZEBIRARERELERAR_-F
—tEF-A-ARZEFRBNFERR
VA e REA BRAZFETHEHEA
RASERETHELRIMNE AR
ERERZEFTRBERZREMBMRRE
PRERSMAELN R BRI E
RABERH R o

ARBEEBEARFETRIEH
AEBGRAMBRRENEATE -

Annual Report 2016 —E— A F £ 3] @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 12
RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX
ASSETS FOR UNREALISED LOSSES

The amendments provide guidance on how an entity
determines, in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes,
whether to recognise a deferred tax asset in relation to
unrealised tax losses of a debt instrument that is classified
as an available-for-sale financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement under certain specific facts and
circumstances.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the

application of these will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of the Growth Enterprise Market of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing rules”).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustments in the next year are discussed in Note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are  observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the noncontrolling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the noncontrolling
interests are adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant
equity component, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share- based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquire (if any) over the net amount of identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (i
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39 with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case or the portion so classified is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any retained portion
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture that has
not been classified as held for sale shall be accounted for
using the equity method.

Under equity method, an investment in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate (which includes and long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinued recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company directly
or indirectly controls more than half of the voting power,
or controls the composition of the board of directors.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried in the Company’s
financial statements at cost less impairment loss.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

Revenue from sales of telecommunication products is
recognised when goods are delivered to customers which
generally coincides with the time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue is recorded after deduction of any
trade discount.

Network and satellite telecommunication services income
based on usage of the Group’s network and facilities is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Telecommunication services provided for fixed periods is
recognised on straight-line basis over the applicable fixed
period.

Traffic signboard advertising income is recognised when
services are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Income from licensing and sub-licensing of distribution
rights over films is recognised upon delivery of the
prerecorded audio visual products and the materials for
video features including the master tapes to the customers
in accordance with the terms of the contracts.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress (“CIP”), held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method at the following rate per annum:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Office equipment 25%
Furniture and fixtures 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Traffic signboards 20%

Buildings Over the unexpired lease terms
of land on which the building

is erected

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Nonmonetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Nonmonetary items are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gain and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributable to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 July 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The employees in the Company’s subsidiaries operating
in the PRC are members of retirement benefits scheme
(the “PRC RB Schemes”) operated by the local municipal
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligation of all existing and
future retired employees of the PRC subsidiaries. The only
obligation of the PRC subsidiaries with respect to the PRC
RB Scheme is to meet the required contributions under the
PRC RB Schemes. The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share options granted to directors and
employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options granted.

The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless
the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016

3.

BE2—FE—NFIT_A=1—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
asset with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.

Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EA@=TEE (&)

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) BEEE (&)

Derecognition of intangible assets RIEEABLEE

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when BIEEERLEERKBHISHEAL
no future economic benefits are expected from use or HEBBRREENDFFLIEER K
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of ItHERBEFEEEE WS REBEBZD
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between EMERIEFHENEERASE AN
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the EZHIAE RRIBREEFNERRE
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is R o

derecognised.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE BERIEERELEE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER 1B &5 18

THAN GOODWILL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the ReEHR ~EEHEERLRERE
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to ENREEETIZ UBEREFE
determine whether there is any indication that those assets AR ERPZEEEE RRBAEEER-
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication WEEEMZETR SHEENATK
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in Bl fEEL A ARTERERRE (1EF)
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. WIEE W AMETEEEE T IE
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount e AAKBHFEEMBREESE
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable Bz RESBE - WAZRNIEZE
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset BE-HEE BRAEENSEER L
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of ReEABM BTHNASEEA#ANE
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also B-—HEEZRESEESBUR/NER -

allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories, representing finished goods for resale, are
stated at the lower of costs and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using first-in, first-out method. Net realizable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where effect of the time
value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

PROVISIONS (Continued)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ACQUIRED
IN A BUSINESS COMBINATION

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are
initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. At
the end of the subsequent report periods, such contingent
liabilities are measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in accordance with HKAS 37 and the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortization
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognized on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of asset within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated as
at FTVPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

3. EREFTHR @

€@ IR &)
EREE (#)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised

in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in note 6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables, promissory note, loan receivables and
cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
accumulated impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EA@=TEE (&)

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) E@MIA (®m)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TRIEERE @

Objective evidence of impairment could include: RERHBERBE:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or e BOASBFAILEBBERENNB
counterparty; or R 2 5k

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in o ERAHNHE WMREHERIZA
interest and principal payments; or FERAES 3K

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter o [ERATREBENGETHHE
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or 4Bk

e the disappearance of an active market for that e HAUWBREmMSZEMEELRSE
financial asset because of financial difficulties. RIGER TG

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade RETEENEREE (N8 5 EREEK

receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired F)ME WA EATSERRENE

individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on ERGREREEETHETE B

a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for RIBEAG TR BRENEBEZEIRER

a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past SENBTRKER HEAETEN

experience of collecting payments, an increase in the FEBBN TOOXE180XKEEHNE B

number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit 3 00 A K2 B 2R sk b 75 A7 AR 5 B LUK

period ranging from 90 to 180 days, observable changes HEF R E R TR ER I EREL -

in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in convertible notes reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be released
to the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

BAREETHBR (8)

£RTHE®

SHEMRBATA

(%)

AT 15 ()

RN FERE  BESBONRFETIR
BUT AR ESORTHISH REE
BITABRBRRENMERAREERE
BEFNNAFENEZR (RREFEA
ABREBEERBBRANBRAE)EIIA
QESEES SR

RERBARE JRERENEER DD
PAE BR A ROR IR © 8 35 A AN D B © A AR
B (RRABRERDEBERR/EAQF
EREBROBREE) SRERATRRER
- EERANBBREETESL (R
BRI AT R R SR R R e O S R S B
BERMEE) - HEBRERIIHE &
AREETTEE - AT IR I 5 18 B0 A8 B S R
BREREBR - MREESR I K
TeRBRTHATANAE-

BTABRRERRBRNR HKA 1R
SRRAREN DL PIBERERBRA
B RAMODARHUAEEERK
AR - BERRODHORZRAFT AR
BEMD M BREEF - WA B R A ZER
AR SRR HAR O 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition or contingent consideration that may be paid
by an acquirer as part of a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration that may be paid by
an acquirer as part of a business combination may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes at fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

3.

A MR MR

BE-F—AF+AS+—AILFE

BAREETHER (8)

€@ IR &)
cRMEBRRAIA (@)

BAFEAA R T HEE
ETRABARYMSHRARIEERER
FEFABRSRERET BB REER
FEIFRWWBL ATRE X M EREKE G
—HWoMAARE AZERBESE
R AFEFFAEBR-

BREFEEEZSRMABEIKET A

NEREBEH—RDHRRREZIN
TR B ERE N IE RN RSt
ERBAFERF AR :

o  ZEEHBBEIAREAIESH
Bt E kMR A — 2
%

s ZEoRMAGBEN HEBMEEX
TRAEEIEREERERAEE
ez MBREAKEGTE
R R B IR SR B R B - 2R B TY
ARFEAEELEITEE LG
By BAEROMAZEMTIRIE
R AP ES X

e HBKEE BIZTERANE
TAMNANZ 8D MEBG
EHFEIFAFBEEEASAL
(EESAB) HER/EAFERF
Nkl

BAVE A EGZeREBERATE
AECBEMAEMELAZAFEEIN
EXMRAERERG PR N EakE
R amHERFETEEREN S
BEMXMZHE -

Annual Report 2016 —E— A F £ 3]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL,
of which the interest expense is excluded in net gains or
losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank borrowings and convertible
notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

A related party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

U)

(i)

)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016

3.

BE2—FE—NFIT_A=1—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision for inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of
the Group at the end of each reporting period and makes
provision if considered necessary. Management estimate
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately HK$26,033,000 (2015: HK$25,286,000)
after netting off the allowance for inventories of
approximately HK$800,000 (2015: HK$800,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset, which required
significant judgment relating to level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was approximately
HK$414,662,000 (2015: HK$28,880,000) (net of
accumulated impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$2,310,000 (2015: HK$2,310,000)). Details are
disclosed in Note 17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of
the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of goodwill amounted to approximately HK$195,139,000
(2015: HK$121,741,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss amounted to approximately HK$898,881,000 (2015:
HK$1,104,316,000)) and carrying amount of intangible
assets amounted to approximately HK$317,058,000
(2015: HK$194,866,000) (net of accumulated amortisation
and impairment loss amounted to approximately
HK$347,547,000 (2015: HK$379,406,000)). Details are
disclosed in Note 19 and 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Determination of fair values of identifiable
intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group’s share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of
the reporting period or recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. In the absence of an active market for the
business combination/acquisition transactions undertaken
by the Group, in order to determine the fair values of
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the directors of
the Company had made their estimates according to the
valuation results produced by external valuers. During year
ended 31 December 2016, the fair value of identifiable
intangible assets arising from the acquisition of /& /1 T &
B AR A A) (Guangzhou Nowtop Technology Company
Limited*) (“Guangzhou Nowtop”) is approximately
HK$186,619,000. During year ended 31 December 2015,
the fair value of identifiable intangible assets arising from
the acquisitions of Bluesea Mobile Group and Million
Ace Group are approximately HK$100,947,000 and
HK$69,749,000 respectively. Details of the identifiable
intangible assets are disclosed in Note 20.

*for identification purpose only
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of trade receivables and
other receivables are approximately HK$192,956,000
(2015: HK$91,235,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$41,000 (2015: HK$41,000)
and HK$150,853,000 (2015: HK$100,837,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debt of HK$19,451,000 (2015:
HK$26,309,000)).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimate are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes bank borrowings and convertible notes
disclosed in Notes 30 and 31 respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associates with each class of capital. Based on the
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the new share issues
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. T H
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL £ET BEER
INSTRUMENTS
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FHET
Financial assets SREE
At amortised cost T H AR
Loan and receivables B ERERIR
Trade receivables B 5 MW AR 5K 192,956 91,235
Deposits and other receivables e K& E b IE 172,898 122,553
Promissory note HH R 65,200 =
Loan receivables EUKE R 165,000 2
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 188,882 1,111,947
784,936 1,325,735
At fair value through profit or loss BATER AERE
Derivative financial assets PTEEMEE - =
Financial assets at fair value BATEE AER
through profit or loss L EREE 48,631 -
833,567 1,325,735
Financial liabilities cRMERE
At amortised cost bi7g: =D
Trade payables B I EMNERR 30,353 46,093
Other payables and accruals H b RIE R
FEETFRIAE 59,101 120,971
Bank borrowings RITIE K 55,897 26,271
Convertible notes Al R K - 157,364
145,351 350,699
At fair value through profit or loss BRATVEAER
Contingent consideration payable FET s ARE 44,350 =
189,701 350,699
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan and loan interest
receivables, promissory notes, financial assets at FVTPL,
cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial assets, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, deposits received,
bank borrowings and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial
risks of changes in foreign currency, interest rates and price
risk.

Market risk exposures are further measured by sensitivity
analysis. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:

@ Neo Telemedia Limited @ B % % {5 & B4 IR /4 7
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TR THE @

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT cREREEEERBEK (@)
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) % &k (@)

Currency risk =gy

Several subsidiaries of the Group have certain foreign REBZETHBARBEER TINER
currency transaction, which expose the Group to foreign 5 LAEEHEINE R

currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s USD denominated RmEMR ARBUETHECER
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of BEMEEBENEREBENT

reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
8% BE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE “T-hE —E-AF “E-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAL TER AT
Usb e - 5,200 206 225
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency NG BRI AT A ONEE PR o A
hedging policy. However, the management has closely - B e R BRI AN & B 2 SNE R
monitored the Group’s foreign exchange exposure and will % BR WM ERSZE B hERINEE
consider hedging significant foreign currency risk should % o

the need arise.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

As HK$ is pegged to USD, the financial impact on
exchange risk is exposed to be insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the fixed-rate loan receivables, convertible notes,
and cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable rate
bank balances for both years.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Price risk

The Group did not have investments in equity securities for
treasury purpose and therefore is not exposed to equity
price risk. The management has a policy to monitor the
Group’s exposure to price risk by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arises.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 33.6% (As at
31 December 2015: 26.2%) of trade receivables due from
the Group’s largest customer of the Group. The Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations is
in South-east Asia (2015: the PRC), which accounted for
33.6% (As at 31 December 2015: 82.6%) of total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2016.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has reviewed the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables, other receivables, promissory
note, loan and loan interest receivables at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made to irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group deposited its cash and cash equivalents
and invested its other financial assets investments with
approved and reputable bank. Bankruptcy and insolvency
of the bank may cause the Group’s right with respect to
cash and cash equivalents held to be delayed or limited.
Management of the Group monitors the credit rating of
these banks on an ongoing basis, and considers that the
Group’s exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 were minimal.

Further qualitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables disclosed in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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6.

. AN T =
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. =T E @
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT tREAREEBEEREE (&)
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk nBE & ER
In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and EERRDECRBROBRES K&
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed FEEFVHBEEEERATHANE SR
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s ReFEYKE BASEMNEERM
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash BoWRERSTEBNTE-
flows.
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMIAAREEFTESRAER
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. TEAME R 2R DIRERBARE
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted RAEEA R ERKEENXTE B
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date KRMBRBEREAEERR ZKRET
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table THEERAERERE-WAEREAR
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the FEEE AR SERBENREH
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted RZHNEHFEAESL -
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. ERBEMNERAERERE  WHE
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the MERZEEE AIRMBSERER
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at WEBR N ERBEFTESL -
the end of the reporting period.
Weighted Within More than More than Total
average 1 year 1 year but 2 years but More contractual Total
effective oron less than less than than  undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cashflow amount
mERS 1ER% 1E0 2B L ARXER BEE
ERAE 2ER  EMEMT  ESEMT SENE  2REME T
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER THR FH7T FE THR THT
At 31 December 2016 —2-XE+tZB=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ ¥4 & RE &
Trade payables B EARR - 30,353 - - - 30,353 30,353
Other payables and accruals Hi A RER B RE - 59,101 - - - 59,101 59,101
Bank borrowings BITER 5.66% 58,270 - - - 58,270 55,897
147,724 - - - 147,724 145,351
At 31 December 2015 —T-RF+-A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties FTESRARE
Trade payables BT - 46,093 - - - 46,093 46,093
Other payables and accruals HERE A - 120,971 - - - 120,971 120,971
Bank borrowings ] 5.52% 26,271 - - - 26,271 26,271
Convertible bonds ABRES 11.29% 162,937 - - - 162,937 157,364
356,272 = = = 356,272 350,699
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

° the fair value of financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices and ask prices respectively;

° the fair value of financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) is determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis;

° the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, use is made of discounted cash flow
analysis using the applicable yield curve for the
duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives; and

° the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is
determined using option pricing models where the
main assumptions are the probability of default
by the specified counterparty extrapolated from
market-based credit information and the amount of
loss, given the default.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) o.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Except for the liability component of convertible notes
which recorded at amortised cost as below, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
consolidated financial statements approximately to their fair

TRt T A @)
SMITAEZAYE @)

Bk EBRAKKN B ERD (T
XIABEEAAR) N AR EER
B AGEMBERENEREEL SR
BENEEENSERERFE

values.
2016 2015
—E-XRE “T-1F

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE A¥E RAEE »¥E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL AT FTET
Convertible notes aREE - - 157,364 163,538

The fair value of the liability component is the present
value of the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the interest applied at that time by the
market to instruments of comparable credit status and
providing substantially the same cash flows, on the same
terms, but without conversion option.
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BESNHNAFEDENEEARRE S
MERERAALRERRL REE
AHERRERE  RFERE B E
MTEMERMESNRUENRE:



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) b-

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

ST H )

AT AL
TREHR NP ERRRAFEAEZ
ERITEZDN HREAFEATESE
BEDRE—REFE=R-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8 £ Y st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTEx THT THT
31 December 2016 “E-R"E+ZA=+-H
Assets BE
Derivative financial assets TEEREE - - - =
Financial assets at fair value RATEFAER
through profit or loss LeREE - 48,631 - 48,631
Liabilities &
Contingent consideration S ARE
payable - - 44,350 44,350
31 December 2015 “E-RFE+-RA=1+-H
Assets EE
Derivative financial assets TESREE - = = =

There were no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 in both
year and period.

RREFELRSR F-—R F-_AR
FE= R T AT B
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) TRt T A @)
N\

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

Some of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets
and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial

FEAE (@)

EERARTZBHEBMEERSH
 ERSRERRIZAFEHE-TE
BRI E XL REERSR
BEIATHE (LERFERNGER

m B+ S

\

assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, ik AE) 2 ER -
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Fair value as at
RT5IEHzAYE
Valuation
Financial assets 31 December 31 December  Fair value techniques and  Significant
and liabilities 2016 2015  hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
“E-RE “E-0fF RERN R

cREERAR +ZA=+-H +ZA=T—-H AVEER TEBAE EXTUBEBAE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER X

Derivative financial - - Level2 Binomial Option ~ Risk-free rate, applicable stock

assets Pricing Model price, volatility, dividend yield,
credit spread and liquidity risk
premium

TEemEE & EAHEEE EEARNE BERRE KE

B REUHE FERER
mEE s B

Financial assets 48,631 - Level 2 Discounted cash  Expected return of the
at fair value through flow method investment by reference
profit or loss to similar products in the

markerts

BATE;ARR E-4 MEREREZ L2ETHEUERIRER
LEREE B0l 4%

Contingent (44,350) - Level3 Discounted cash  Derived using discounted cash
consideration flow method flow approach at a rate of
payable 18.22% (Note)

FERHARE £ BARLREZE R182% ZHEXERAERES

mEEE L (M)

Note: M3 -

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result
in a decrease in the fair value measurement of the contingent
consideration, and vice versa. A 15% increase/decrease in the
discount rate holding all other variables constant would decrease/
increase the carrying amount of the contingent consideration by
approximately HK$684,000.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @ THE )
RECONCILIATION OF LEVEL 3 FAIR E=MATEFEZHER
VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Contingent
Consideration
Payable
EARARNRE
HK$’000
FHETT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE— /ﬁ A—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B B B & 38,321
Total loss in profit or loss B WZEE?TE R 6,029
At 31 December 2016 R-Z—X"F+=H=+—H 44,350
TURNOVER 7. EXEH
Turnover represents the net amounts received and EEBERAEE IR HEEY
receivable for goods sold or services provided by the IR 2 B W & B GRIBFRE - &
Group to outside customers, less returns and discounts BRAEE - N REERETRIE-

and sales related taxes.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as AEEFANEEEDTOT
follows:
2016 2015
—B-RF —F—A%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET
Sale of telecommunication HEBAE®R MRS
products and services 2,429,088 1,842,157
Internet finance platform DEEemES 72,873 64,064
Others Hth 11,884 8,681
2,513,845 1,914,902
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8. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 8.

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains for the
years as follows:

H 4 A R as
AEEFEREARARIKESFTOT -

2016 2015
—E-AF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEx FHET
Bank interest income RITHEWA 271 86
Gain on deregistration of a branch BUEE D — B A aldk s 1,277 =
Government subsidy T2, 3,648 =
Written back of other payable 8 B H Ath & 5RIE 10,080 =
Interest income on other receivables £ 4th F& U 18 2 F| B U A 3,841 =

Loss on early redemption of REER TR EEES
convertible note (54) _
Sundry income MIEWA 810 451
19,873 537

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. DEEH

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

- Sale of telecommunication products and services

= Internet finance platform

The Group reportable segments are strategic business
units that operate different activities. They are managed

separately because each business has different markets
and requires different marketing strategies.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

: AKE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DEEMm
SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULTS THERERESE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and B Z2REKEnEEo s A KB &
results by reportable and operating segments: XBREESTHET :
Sale of telecommunication
products and services Internet finance platform Others Consolidated
YEENESRER EBELRTA it o
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
=t S —T-1F —E-XF —3-1F —-RF —Z-RF —8-REF —Z-RF
HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
F#7 7 F#7 Fa7 T3 TR T3 FE7
Tumover P 2420088 1840157 72873 64,064 11,884 8661 2513845 1914902
Segment results SEEE 91,125 3814 439% 46,428 (1,029 (14,669 134,031 7.946
Interest income FISHA n 86
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁﬁf’ﬁE Az M 143,229 -
Impaiment loss recognised in respect SR ZEHEA L HEEE
of promissory note (22,800) -
Unallocated corporate expenses KABRATRE (23,543) (20,223)
Unallocated finance costs KARRERA (8,222) (23,742)
Profit/{oss) before tax BRART/ (F8) 222,966 (35,933)
Income tax expense FEHRX (20,779) (8,322)
Profit/oss) for the year FEREF/ (FE) 202,187 (44,255)
Note: Others represent other operating segments that are not M- HtiEEmgE2 8 BREEAUG
reportable segments under HKFRS 8, which include logistics & 2R %85)‘1#7,%—] H®oME B
related business, transmedia advertising, loan financing and IEYRABEER BEEES BEXE
cross-border e-commerce business. BEREBREFEG-
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue EWzoERE ?E‘ REINEBEP Z
generated from external customers. There was no 1451 momMBEFEMESHEREE K&
inter-segment sales in both year. The accounting policies DEZEFTBERHEN Mz AEE
of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s SEHEAER *E%,\,\ B & 9 8 P&
accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment results 2 m A kBT 1R - 3 R B ﬂ \\145()\ .
represent the profit or loss from each segment without PRITBER EFHe &
allocation of interest income, central administration costs, W EBERSR RS ERBEFTEMmEE
directors’ emoluments and finance costs. This is the DRERREBEBITERZ %

measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF
N OKE 2R IR =
7] ﬁ,E\ =) 7|T/|' (&)

REERER

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

©
N

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AEBEEAZRHECEERBES N
liabilities by reportable segment: wm
Sale of telecommunication
products and services Internet finance platform Others Consolidated
BESRERRBE ERBSHYA Hit &
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —E-R% ZE-RE —E-R% ZE-NE —E-1% ZE-NE —E-T1%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET i FHT T FAR T FAR FAL
Segment assets FEEE 1,426,302 562,029 130,760 145,617 201,025 5,705 1,758,087 713,351
Unallocated corporate assets FARATEE 94,713 1,016.217
Consolidated assets GREE 1,852,800 1,729,568
Segment liabilties SEAHE 272,828 165,562 23,432 16,963 6,459 2,405 302,719 184,930
Unallocated corporate liabilties FPRARAE 2,574 225,778
Consolidated liabilities GRAR 305,293 410,708

REENBNRREDBE 2 ERIK -

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising
certain of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, and derivative financial assets); and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly
comprising receipts in advances, contingent
consideration payable, other payables and accruals,
and convertible notes).

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. PHEEM (&)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Htt o HEHR
Sale of telecommunication
products and services Internet finance platform Others Unallocated Consolidated
HEERERREY ERALHTA At 2B &4

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z¥-RE -T-1F ZB-XE -T-1IF Z-B-AFf C-T-1Ff ZB-XF C-T-1IF CZB-KE >
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAn TEL TAT THRL TAL TR T TERL FEL
Amount included in the measure of
segment results
Capital expenditure ’ 77" F‘f § 594,063 178,351 1,087 24,721 - 478 2,135 - 597,285 203,550
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% B RREHE
equipment 4,435 1,664 293 12 - 4123 1,449 185 6,177 6,084
Amortisation of intangible assets REBRH 33,516 32,524 2,454 1,764 - 325 - - 35,970 34,613

Impairment loss recognised in pE T
respect of property, plant and ZREsE
equipment - - - - - 2,366 - - - 2,366

Impairment loss recognised in respect Tm&/éﬂﬁ

of intangible assets B - 913 - - - 5,465 - - - 6,378
Impairment loss recognised in respect 5t &
of promissory note: HEFR - - - - - 22,800 - 22,800 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect 3t £t fE M FUE RS
of other receivables REER - - - - - (1,552) - - o 1,552
Capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December HE_ZT—XR"FTA=1T—BLEFE
2016 includes additions resulted from acquisition through E’\]ﬁ$ﬁﬁ§i BIEREBERE HHETI
business combinations, amounting to approximately %ﬁﬁf*iﬁ’]m B FE# /192,297,000
HK$192,297,000 (2015: HK$172,273,000). BT (ZZ—HF 172,273,000 7T ) °
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision FHEHTFELEAREETIEERN
maker but not included in the measure of segment results NREEIDEEETENSRE:
or segment assets:
Sale of telecommunication
products and services Internet finance platform Others Unallocated Consolidated
HERNERREE ERELRTA £ #AE 58
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 215

Z3-3F  “F-1F Z®-xE  F-1F ZE-AE CE-1f = ST s it 87 ZE-IF
HK$000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HKS$ 000 HK$§'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

Ti#n Thr Tn Thr Tn Tikn TEn Titn Fitn Tikn
Interest income 185 61 49 2 9 2 2 1 2 86
Finance costs £ 2,134 79 - - - - 8222 28742 10,356 24,541
Income tax credit(expense) fiEREs/ (F%) (10,791) 1,39 (9,988) (9718 - = - o (20,779) 8.322)
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RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about major customers

Turnover from major customers of the corresponding year
contributing over 10% of the total turnover of the Group
are as follows:

FRERZEH
RAABF AR B2 £ EBIBI0%
MARBEBEFZEEBNT :

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FE&T FAT
'Customer A 1EA 501,555 574,212
'Customer B ZFB 753,587 348,854
.2Customer C 12Z2EC - 198,031
1,255,142 1,121,097

1 Sale of telecommunication products and services ] $HE EHE @RS

2 No information on revenue for current year is disclosed for
these customers since none of them contributed 10% or
more to the Group’s revenue for year ended 31 December
2016.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the geographical location
of the customer, and non-current assets information is
presented based on the geographical location of the
assets.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HEEF @

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HihnBEEH (&)

(Continued)

Geographical information (Continued) = & o)

The Group’s revenue from external customers and RiEE D o AEERBINBE S 2K
information about its non-current assets by geographical mRBEEERSEE CEMFFMNT

location are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets*
REMBEFHBRA ERBEE"
At At
31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015

RZZ-RF R-ZT—1F
ZE-RE “T—-h% +ZA=t—-H TZA=1+-H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TEx TER THT
Name of the region & %
Hong Kong B 2,105,165 1,730,654 128,123 133,391
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) B (TR EETS) 343,922 184,248 798,736 212,096
South-east Asia R 64,758 = - -
2,513,845 1,914,902 926,859 345,487
3 Information about the Group’s non-current assets, other * FAAEE ZIERBEE (R —HE
than interest in an associate, is presented based on the ERRAZERBRIN CERTDIREEZ
geographical location of the assets. HEE D25
. FINANCE COSTS 10. B & A AR
2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Effective interest charged on LA AR R IR R 2 B F
convertible notes (Note 31) B (FFE31) 2,799 17,362
Interest on other payables H b S ZRIE R B 4,292 =
Interest on short-term loans REERFE 1,131 7,113
Bank loan interest expenses RITEFAEFAZ 2,134 66
10,356 24,541
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RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

1. FTIEHEX

2016 2015
—E—RF —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET

Current tax: BVERR I8 -

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BABNER 10,480 1,800

- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HRPEMEH 20,086 13,335

— Over-provision for prior year —BAFEBEEE (1,686) =
Deferred tax TR AE R IE (8,101) (6,813)
Total tax expense THIAR S 4858 20,779 8,322

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January

2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain subsidiaries of the Company, being qualified as
a new and high technology enterprise, are eligible for a
preferential Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

A MR MR

December 2016 @7 —FE—ANFE+=F=+—HIFFE

1. TSR X (&)

FAMSHAXAREBREREMEE
Wt R AR AR RE RN T :

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Profit/(loss) before tax BrBLATE A, (E8) 222,966 (35,933)
Tax at domestic income tax BEBREREESRT
rates applicable to profits in R R AR AT B R R R
the respective jurisdiction (note) ETERTIE (M) 35,852 (2,208)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for — FLEL S M = 7~ A FOER
tax purpose Xz G2 4,662 4,082
Tax effect of income not taxable for MBI E BERM
tax purpose WAZB B2 (26,056) (1,763)
Over-provision for prior year/period BEFEHEZ
FEFE A (1,686) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIARE 2
M E 7,852 11,646
Tax effect of deductible temporary RFE R P HH0 B
differences not recognised ERBBEE 155 (3,435)
Income tax expense for the year FAFGERAX 20,779 8,322

Note: As the Group operates in several different jurisdictions,
the tax rate applied in the tax reconciliation represents the
weighted average domestic tax rates of the individual tax

jurisdiction.

Details of deferred tax are set out in Note 32.

M AR AKRBERZETRADEEERLE
B AL RER M IR E @R
T RARER 2 INFE P AR B G5

JEAE BB 2 BB A M 5232 -
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

12. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 12. BRFL AR R, (E518)

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax has been arrived BR&EATE R (EHE)
at after charging: BEHBRATSIE:
Staff costs, including directors’ BEINA BREEEMS
remuneration (Note 14) (FzE14)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits ¥ TERHEMER 38,034 29,048
— Contributions to retirement —RREFIET B
benefits schemes 2,756 1,280
Total staff costs S = 5 N 40,790 30,328
Depreciation of property, Y- -HEREZBITE
plant and equipment 6,177 6,084
Amortisation of intangible assets E B EH 35,970 34,613
Impairment loss recognised MEEERER
in respect of intangible assets REEE - 6,378
Impairment loss recognised MAREBRBRREERE
in respect of promissory note 22,800 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of it X 11 & U 3 T8 #E 32
other receivables BEEE - 1,552
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  ZA % M= KRB ERZ
property, plant and equipment BB E 1B - 2,366
Exchange difference, net ENZRE JF5E (5) 280
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN &
- audit service — B2 1,080 1,080
— non-audit service —EEZRE 120 120
Minimum lease payments under operating H Y% 2 L&A ER
lease in respect of rented premises RIERBES MR 6,137 5,810
Cost of inventories recognised as expense EER AR Y 2 FEKA 2,100,937 1,721,026

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRERME
for the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE - FE—NF+-H=1+—HILFZE

13. #IR&F], (EE)

RRABHEEABEFABRERALES
BF/ (BE) THIRIA T8It

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

2016 2015
—E—RF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to RARHEEAELERN
owners of the Company and profit/(loss) & #),/ (&) R AR
for the purpose of basic and diluted AEEREARREEEE
loss per share 2w H, (EE) 192,009 (32,227)
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-hF
000 000
I A& T A&
Weighted average number of ordinary ARG ESREREBE T
shares for the purpose of basic AR I HE 9 2R
loss per share 9,528,844 6,913,795
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B8 @k 2
Share options i AR 37,057 =
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREEEEZ
shares for the purpose of diluted loss T AR IR YD B
per share 9,565,901 6,913,795

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the exercise
of certain share options since the exercise prices are higher
than the average market share price.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 did not assume the exercise
of share options since it would result in an anti-dilutive
effect on the loss per share. In addition, the computation
of diluted earnings/(loss) per share does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible notes
since it would result in an anti-dilutive effect on earnings/
(loss) per share.

BE-T-AE+-AS+—AILFE
2 6 I8 B It B30 A AR TR
REGE RRATERSRFHTH
BRI

BE_T—AFT-A=+—BLFE
ZBREEHERTET BEEREREE
TE - REASESHERERELERE
SERR-WIN BREERN (BE)
ZAEWEBRARRETEINZ AT
BRBEER RESESHERAHN,
(BR)ELEREBUR-
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS

2016
E-RE

2015
—Z-RE

Salaries, ~ Contributions
wages  to retirement

Salaries,  Contributions
wages  to retirement

and other benefits and other benefits
Fees benefits schemes Total Fees benefits schemes Total
#e& I&R RIKER ¥t 18R RIER
Names of directors f£3:34 ne HigH STEIMS @it [ika Hihig 7 BE LS st
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET T FHT TR FHT
Executive directors: YTES:
Mr. Zhang Xinyu (Note a) R TR (Hita) 60 900 30 990 60 931 18 1,009
Mr. Lian Xin (Note b) B EE (Fiitb) 6 - - 6 24 - - 24
Mr. Cheung Sing Tai (Note o) RBEEE (Hac) 240 1,808 30 2,078 211 1,542 18 1,771
Ms. Ye Weiping (Note d) RETLL (HiEd) - - - - 12 - - 12
Mr. Xu Gang (Note e) gL (Kite) 120 270 6 39 65 - - 65
Independent non-executive BIFHTES:
directors:
Mr. Leung Ka Wo (Note f) RRAMELE (H5Ef) 153 - - 153 182 = = 182
Ms. Xi Lina (Note g) ZREFrt (Mitg) 138 - - 138 120 - - 120
Mr. Chou Jianzhong (Note h) BEBEAE (Kih) 42 - - 42 145 - - 145
Mr. Huang Zhixiong (Note i) B EAE (M) 120 - - 120 76 - - 76
Mr. Zhang Zihua (Note )) 3R F 2 *(ZHANG Zihua)
%4 (HisE)) 47 - - 47 - - - -
926 2,978 66 3,970 895 2,473 36 3,404
Notes B 5
a)  Appointed on 15 June 2012 a RIZTE—Z—ZFA+HAEZAE
b)  Appointed on 21 June 2013 and retired on 1 April 2016 by RZZ— _i/\ A-Z+—HEZER
R-Z—RENA—B&T
c)  Appointed on 21 June 2013 0 MRIZTE—=FAZ+—HEZ#F
d)  Appointed on 13 May 2015 and resigned on 17 June 2015 d) RZE—RAFAAT=ZREZERR
—E—RAFENATLBEBE
e)  Appointed on 17 June 2015 e) RIZTE—RAFSNAT+EAEZAE
f) Appointed on 20 March 2014 and resigned on 15 f) RZE—NF=ZA-_F+HEZEERR
September 2016 ZE-ARFENATHARE
g)  Appointed on 16 May 2014 9 RIZTE—OFREA+AEZAE
h)  Appointed on 20 March 2014 and retired on 1 April 2016 hy RZZE—NF=A=-+HEZEER
—E—RENMA—BHET
i) Appointed on 13 May 2015 i) RZZE—RAFRA+=HAEZME
i) Appointed on 20 September 2016 i) RZE—RFNAZTHEZE

Mr. Cheung Sing Tai was also the chief executive officer of
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for service rendered by him as the chief executive
officer for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Of the five highest paid individuals, two (2015: two) were
directors of the Company and remuneration has been
disclosed above.

*

for identification purpose only
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*

RERTENERANRRITERAR £
XHBEBECEFTHERERBE_Z
—RERZE-RFT-A=+—HI
FERETRERIRMRBOFH -

BEEEFRMENALH AE (=T
—HE WA BAATEE HFMER
IS TE

EHZHF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS

(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
no emoluments was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

15. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three)
highest paid individuals during the year/period were as

14. EEFH W (m)

BHE-Z—"F+-A=+—HLFE"
BEEERELRABERNEEFOHNE 2L
BE(ZT—hF:8\)-

HE-_ZT—XR"FR-_ZFE—AF+=A
= t—HEFE AEEWERARQF
BE=YAEAME EAMASKEMA
REER 2 BESERBERME-

15. sxm P ERIA L

AEBABRSFMENALTA M
(ZT—AF MB)R/ERAES K
E2FMER EXRE-FA/HA-
HBR=F2(ZF—AF =F) G5
ERIA L Z Fr BT :

follows:
2016 2015
—®-A% —T-8F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T T
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IEREMER 3,307 2,740
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes & K18 K 51 2l £ 7% 74 54
3,381 2,794
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE — =&

15.

16.

—NEFEFZA=+—HIFFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three)
highest paid individuals fell within the following bands:

15. &%

=

K(ER PN D)

HHp=2(ZFT—R2F: ZR)R=SFM
fERIA L Z #rBHSRF LA T EHE A -

2016 2015
—E—RF —T—hHF
Emolument bands N E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007%8 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 2
2,000,0007% 7T 2 2

During the year, no emolument was paid to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

At 31 December 2016, the directors of the Company
held share options under the Company’s share option
schemes. Details of the share options are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share option schemes” in the report of the
directors and Note 34.

DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 of 0.38 HK cent (2015: nil) per ordinary share, in an
aggregate amount of HK$36,210,000 (2015: nil), has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject
to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming general
meeting.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME - W= M EE

Leasehold Office Furniture Motor Traffic ~ Construction
Buildings  improvements equipment and fixtures vehicles signboards in progress Total
B HENEEE  HAERE  GARKE RE  RBETR BRI st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FET TEL FET TEL FEL FTET TET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-A-H = 1,207 14,770 7,463 441 24,443 - 48,324
Exchange realignment EXAR (512) (32) (112) (459) 1) (1,153) - (2,289)
Additions NE 21,181 190 1,183 1,833 745 - - 25,132
Acquired on acquisition of RERERRR
subsidiaries (Note 35) EINCGIER) - - 146 1,431 - - - 1,577
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
20,669 1,365 15,987 10,268 1,165 23,290 - 72,744
Exchange realignment ERAE (3,615) (426) (2,221) (3,182) (29) (1,477) (7,179 (18,396)
Additions NE 70,501 10,750 6,160 90,148 8,237 - 219,082 404,878
Acquired on acquisition of RE-EHRLAnE
a subsidiary (Note 35) INE) - - 5,678 - - - - 5,678
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) &M B A Al (Fi:36) - (62) (876) (6,324) - - - (7,262)
At 31 December 2016 R=B-"¥+=A
Sqr=T3) 87,555 11,627 24,728 90,910 9,106 21,813 211,908 457,642
Accumulated depreciation RAHERAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 R=Z2-H5%-A-A = 1,073 14,543 2,754 377 17,620 - 36,367
Exchange realignment Ei#% (12) (30) (68) (147) (19) 677) = (953)
Provided for the year 503 204 165 1,084 91 4,037 - 6,084
Impairment loss recognised
during the year = = 7 27 2 2,310 = 2,366
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z-1%F
1 January 2016 +ZA=t-BkK
—Z-R¥-A-H 491 1,247 14,647 3,718 47 23,290 - 43,864
Exchange realignment ERAE 61) (182) (1,869) (60) (28) (1,477) = (3,671)
Provided for the year FREE 950 1,414 2,846 818 149 - - 6,177
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) (& i /@74 & (FizE36) - 62) (630) (2,698) - - - (3,390)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~F
+-A=+-R 1,380 2,417 15,000 1,778 592 21,813 - 42,980
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2016 RZB-XE
+=-B=t+-8 86,175 9,210 9,728 89,132 8,514 - 211,903 414,662
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%
+ZA=+-H 20,178 118 1,340 6,550 694 = = 28,880

Annual Report 2016 —E— A F £ 3] @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17.

(Continued)

Depreciation charge of approximately HK$3,813,000 (2015:
HK$5,377,000) with respect to office equipment, furniture
and fixtures, motor vehicle and traffic signboard has been
included in cost of sales and administrative and other
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income during the year ended
31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors
conducted a review of the Group’s office equipment and
determined that a number of these assets were impaired,
due to physical damage and technical obsolescence.
Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately HK$7,000,
HK$27,000, HK$22,000 and HK$2,310,000 respectively
have been recognised in respect of office equipment,
furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles and traffic signboard,
which were used in the segment of transmedia advertising

W% - B N R m)

WMAZEBE RLLEE AERRB

7 b8 B9 3T & A 2 498,813,000 7T (=
T —FHF:5377,0008 L) EFFAEE
TE-RE+-A=1+—BULHEEZH
R RHAMPEWERA Z HEK
RARITHRREEAMEASL -

HE_Z—AFE+-_A=1+—BILFE"

ERUHALEERAETRBETHGILE
ETAETHRSEECRE REZWIEIE
BRENRE-Bit B AR EEE
BERBE DO AERE M MRE
B ABERRBETEERREEED
A149 A7,0007% 7t ~ 27,000/ 7T * 22,000
7 7T 2,310,000/ 7T ©

services.
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE AR 2=
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of investment in an associate R—EBEREZ
Unlisted HERA (FELET) - 335
Share of post-acquisition loss and FEfE M E EE R
other comprehensive income Hiv2EM s - (335)
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A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. MEEE N Al 2w

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had interest in RZE-—RFEFEZE-—HF+ZH
the following associate: =+ —HB AEBERUTHEARESR
Nominal value Proportion of
Country of Principal of paid up nominal value of
Class of incorporation/ Place of issued issued capital held Proportion of
Name of entity shares held registeration operation share capital by the Group voting power held Principal activities
58 R/ IE HRER rEBRE
ERER BRHER ZREAR EEHY TRAEE BRARAZEELA BERZELA TEER
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-xf  ZT-RF  ZB-nFE ZT-0F
China Orient Space Ordinary British Virgin Islands - Hong Kong UsD100 - 33% - 33%  Investment holding
Communications Ltd
(Note 1)
China Orient Space LER e B 100%7T REER
Communications Ltd
GiEa))
ERRBEEENE  Ordinay PRC PRC - - - 40% 40%  Applications of
BRAF (Note 2) Cloud Computing
and e-commerce
business
ERRHEEENE  EBR HE R E EHERARETHS
AR AR (Hi2)
Note: 3T -
1. The associate was disposed of during the year ended 31 1. BEANARBE-_ZT—A"F+=A
December 2016. For details, please refer to Note 36(a). St-RILEERE-FHNE B2
Ba Bt 536(a) °
2. ERRHENEEFHEAMRAA was incorporated during
the year ended 31 December 2015. Up to the date of 2. ERRUBEZEFTEARIRREER
this report, the Group has not completed the capital —E-hF+ZA=+—HIEFEF
contribution, for details, please refer to Note 38 for the MY -BEAREBH REE WK
amount of capital commitment. TEREE BEEREKEZ B2
15 H2RM 38 -
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BRAEBEBRERRPEER Z s m
associate is set out below: T

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hF

+=A=+—-H +-A=+—H”

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAET

Total assets BEE = 2,738
Total liabilities BAaE - (10,864)
Net liabilities BEFE - (8,126)

Group's share of net assets of the associate REBEELBE QT

EERE - -
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N 2

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REt & AR 2w (@)
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Total revenue RN - -
Total loss for the year FRREE - (2,963)
Total comprehensive loss 2 HEIB4E%E - (2,963)
Group’s share of loss and FAREEEG
other comprehensive loss of iAol SEi=PN
associate for the year HEih2HEEE - -
2016 2015
—E-AF —E—0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
The unrecognised share of RIERIEGHE QA RIEE
loss of the associate - 978

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

=F-—RF —T-RF

t=A=+-8 +-A=+—~H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Cumulative share of loss of the associate BEtELBERRER - 2,182
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19. GOODWILL 10. &
HK$ 000
FAT
Cost BN
At 1 January 2015 RZE—hF—H—H 1,110,719
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (Note a) P U BE T & A RIFTE 4 (Kizta) 115,338
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HBK
—E-R¥—-HA—H 1,226,057
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (Note b) FEUE —REHE R A ATESE (Mitb) 79,801
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note c) HERB AR (Mite) (211,838)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—RF+_HA=+—8 1,094,020
Accumulated impairment ZitRE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015and W_-_Z—HF—HA—H-
1 January 2016 —AF+=ZA=+—HK
—E-RF—H—H 1,104,316
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note c) HEMRBAR (i) (205,435)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—8 898,881
Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—ARFE+=ZH=+—H 195,139
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+=-A=+—8H 121,741
Notes: B E -
(@  During the year ended 31 December 2015, goodwill @ HBHE-Z—AFt+-A=+—8 ﬁ:ﬁ

amounted to approximately HK$50,150,000 and
HK$65,188,000 were arisen from the acquisition of &
REE®EERAGR QA (Guangdong Bluesea Mobile
Development Ltd Co.*) and its subsidiaries (“Bluesea
Mobile Group”) and Million Ace Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Million Ace Group”) respectively. For details, please refer
to the Notes 35(b) and (d).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, goodwill
amounted to approximately HK$79,801,000 was arisen
from the acquisition of Guangzhou Nowtop. For details,
please refer to the Note 35(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, carrying amount
of goodwill amounted to approximately HK$6,403,000 was
derecognised upon the disposal of HCH Investment Limited.
For details, please refer to the Note 36(a).

*for identification purpose only

g IH&ZE%J*%%/E%@J%X@WE
FEWBE AR ( F%ﬁ%%@h%ﬂu&
WEEKERAGIREWB AR ([B
AREM]) 5 Bl E & 7 2 450,150,000
/%E&Gf} 188 OOO/%E ﬁ?‘gjuilﬁ ’ n%
2B 5E35(0) K (d) °

b BE-ZT—XFE+-_A=+—81
FE AREENEREABEEYD
79,801,000/ Tt B 15 E2H M
F£35(a) ©

c BEZ—AF+-A=t+—HLF
€ BHEHCH Investment Limited i

BUB MR B 2 RE A A 496,403,000
B BEFFIE HH%E@M‘}E:%ES()

Y EREE
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. ML & E
Exclusive
right on
purchase
and sales
of satellite
communication
Contracted equipment
And Lottery and related
Wireless  uncontracted software  services and Technical Internet
network lop jemark Computer know how finance
platform  relationships system software technology License Platform Total
EHEE
BARBUR
RERER
BARREKT YRR  BEZEX EB@
BERBLTE HIEFBA RS RE EERAL R FuR £RYA ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL ThL FiET Fhr ThEL TEr TER TEL FEL
Cost
At 1 January 2015 23,214 217,722 1,002 58,967 26,285 75,163 - - 402,353
Adattions - - - - 6,325 - - 846 7171
Acquired on acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 35) - 139,975 - - - - 7,662 23,059 170,696
Exchange alignment (1,095) - (47) - (1,240) (3,546) - (20) (5,948)
At 31 December 2015 and W_2-0%F
1 January 2016 +ZA=t-Bk
27 %¥-F-H 22,119 357,697 955 58,967 31,370 71,617 7,662 23,885 574,272
Adattions HhE = = = - - - - 110 110
Acquired on acquisition of RYE-EHBARTEA
a subsidiary (Note 35) (Bi335) - 178,399 - - - - 8,220 - 186,619
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) (£ &8 22 7] (#iz:36) - - - (68,967) (31527) - - - (90,494)
Exchange alignment EXAZ (1,402) - 61) - 157 (4,540) - 56) (5,902)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RF
+ZR=+-H 20,717 536,096 894 = = 67,077 15,882 23,939 664,605
Accumulated amortization R BHRAE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 23214 217,722 67 31,751 1,169 69,234 - - 343,147
Provided for the year - 7592 - 18,144 6,213 325 575 1,764 34,613
Impairment loss recognised 2
for the period (Note 21) (Hizk21) = - 913 - - 5,465 - - 6,378
Exchange alignment EXAZ (1,095) - (25) - (204) (3,407) - (1) (4,732)
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
22,119 225,314 955 49,8% 7,168 71,617 575 1,763 379,406
Provided for the year - 27378 - 3,707 1,049 - 1,382 2,454 35,970
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36)  {ti & /B 22 &) (#5136 - - - (63,602) (8.257) - - - (61,859)
Exchange alignment ERAE (1,402) - (61) = 40 (4,540) = (] (5,970)
At 31 December 2016 WZB-RF
+=ZA=+-B 20,717 252,602 894 - - 67,077 1,957 4210 347,547
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2016 RoB-RE
+=B=+-8 - 283,404 - - - - 13925 19,729 317,058
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1F
TZA=t-AR - 132,383 - 9,072 24,202 - 7,087 22122 194,866

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FEHIEEEBEFR LA



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets, other than brand name and
distribution network, have finite useful lives. Such intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:

Wireless network platform 5 years
Contracted and uncontracted customer 4-10 years
relationship
Lottery software development system 3 years
Exclusive rights on purchase and sale of 3.25 years
satellite communication equipment and
related services and trademark
Technical know how technology 10 years
Computer software 3-5 years
License 10 years
Internet finance platform 5-10 years

During the year ended 31 December 2015, in view of
the uncertainties and risk factors of the internet lottery
and advertising industry in the PRC, such as changing
government policy to suspend online lottery sales in the
PRC, and restrict or curtail advertising services, fierce
competition in outdoor advertising market and rapid
changes in technology, the management conducted
a review on the recoverable amounts of the Group’s
lottery software development system and a technical
know-how technology. As a result, an impairment loss
of HK$6,378,000 were recognised in respect of the
abovementioned assets.

0. B EE ®)

NEEEEE (MmERTHERDEHBKER
SMZAIREMER -ZEETLEETD
NBEARVEIR AT S E 3 -

BREKTE 54F
BRI RARTNZEFEE 4-10%

FROHRBRESR 3F
BEBERE HERER 3.25%F
BIENEREE RS

& iy 104

BEEIgEs 3-5%
.ﬁT & 104
ERemEs 5-10%F

HE_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HLFE"
ﬁ.mEAEPIEHS AR EREESITENTH
Eﬂl%&ﬂ&l% 191 20 & BB F R SR

15 AR B B B B 4 ’%/mfﬁ'%L‘A&BE%H&
ﬁbﬁ%ﬁi PR - B ANE S T 5 3 F R
BT R e E}%FEWK%@m
ARG Rz ATk E S
TEZ B gt Ll B ERER /@ZTEE?
186,378,000/ 7T °
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and
intangible assets with definite useful life set out in note 19
and note 20 has been allocated to the following groups of
cash-generating units:

° Transmedia advertising services — Ease Ray Group

o Sale of telecommunication products and services —
China Wimetro Group

o Sale of telecommunication products and services —
Smart Long Group

o Sale of telecommunication products and services —
CERNET Wifi Group

o Sale of telecommunication products and services —
Hughes China Group

° Sale of telecommunication products and services —
Bluesea Mobile Group

o Sale of telecommunication products and services —
Million Ace Group

o Sale of telecommunication products and services —
Guangzhou Nowtop

° Internet finance platform business — Avatar Wealth

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL — 21. & R EF & E 2 B E 8
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) A (')
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated AR REAE (k2R EEE KR
impairment losses and effect of de-consolidation of a HIRAAR—HEHBARZFE) D
subsidiary) allocated to these units are as follows: ZETHIEERL:
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E—XE —ZT—RF
+=B=+-8 +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET
Transmedia advertising services V5 15 88 12 5 AR 7%
— Ease Ray Group —-HR&HE - =
Sale of telecommunication products $HE BAEm LR
and services — China Wimetro Group —H BT S E - -
Sale of telecommunication products SHE BAE @ MR
and services — Smart Long Group - EHEE - =
Sale of telecommunication products 388 EAEm KR
and services — CERNET Wifi Group (Note) - EREGEREEE
(B3E) - =
Sale of telecommunication products SHE BAE R MRY
and services — Hughes China Group (Note) —RETPEEE (M) - 6,403
Sale of telecommunication products and HEBAEmRRRE
services — Bluesea Mobile Group —BeBHEE 36,246 36,246
Sale of telecommunication products and SHE BAERMRY
services — Million Ace Group -BNEE 65,188 65,188
Internet finance platform — Avatar Wealth EfEemIEs
—FRERE 13,904 13,904
Sale of telecommunication products and SHE BANERMRS
services — Guangzhou Nowtop —EIMNEHR 79,801 =
195,139 121,741

M REELBUNBEE_ZT—RF+=
A=+t—HLEEHE-

Note: The cash-generating units were disposed of during the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 21. BE R EEE 7 /ME A

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Bluesea Mobile Group

The recoverable amount of Bluesea Mobile Group has
been determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by
Bluesea Mobile Group’s management covering a five year
period and 2) a discount rate of 16.6% (2015: 16.7%)
per annum which reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the credit risk specific to
the cash-generating unit. The cash flows beyond 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2015: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecast and does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
related to the estimation of cash inflows/ outflows which
include budgeted sales with a compound average growth
rate of 3.7% (2015: 8.5%) and stable gross margin, such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and its
management’s expectations for the market development.
The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Bluesea Mobile Group to
exceed aggregate recoverable amount of Bluesea Mobile
Group.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal
Limited (“Asset Appraisal’), the recoverable amount
exceeds the carrying amount of Bluesea Mobile Group and
no impairment charge was necessary.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

E e
SHEEMERERE

HEBBHER
FEREIEE 2 ATl E € B REE R
BEFTEEMET - ZaTE 7 ETRE)
BHERBEBMRE 2 AT BHimFFEA -
F2)FFE16.6% (ZE—HF:16.7%)
P IR R (H RTS8 E R E
MEENTEARBCELEBNNRETE
EERB)ME - 5F N EZBRERTIE
FA3% (ZZ—HF 3% )MEFTHERR
HE-ZIEREDRBEEERIERTE
Rl - B3P £ R W AE A B Y R HA T3
RR-FREBEFEZZEMETERS
HIBSRA/ MEG AR 21EFH
AWM REE A3 7% (ZT— 14 :85%)
WIEEEEREBENERN ZMEFTD
REZREELEBNZBERBEREE
BERMBERZEH - EEEMEE"
ERZEBE T 2EMESEAEES
TeBYF SR SR BEEERS
BB ESEE 2T S 4858 -

RipFHEEENEERAERAR ([E
EFERE]) L ANGBERS  HEB
BB R ] U E & BB R E (E - R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE — =

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Million Ace Group

The recoverable amount of Million Ace Group has been
determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by
Million Ace Group’s management covering a five year
period and 2) a discount rate of 15.7% (2015: 15.6%)
per annum which reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the credit risk specific to
the cash-generating unit. The cash flows beyond 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2015: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecast and does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
related to the estimation of cash inflows/ outflows which
include budgeted sales with a compound average growth
rate of 3% (2015: 3%) and stable gross margin, such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and its
management’s expectations for the market development.
The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of Million Ace Group to exceed
aggregate recoverable amount of Million Ace Group.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal,
the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount
of Million Ace Group and no impairment charge was
necessary.

275

A MR MR

A+ AZ AU

EmENEEEE 2RER
EENE )

HEEAERRRK (80

BREH

EREEZAIKECEDREFERERE
FTEEMER - ZrBEHETREN B
&%I%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ2£$%ﬁﬂﬁﬂv
2)BF15.7% —HEFE:15.6%)
Mﬁﬁf(ﬁ&%ﬁm%ﬁ*ﬁE%F
MEENTEARBCELEBNNRETE
FZEREB)MTE - 5F U F2BERIE
FA3% (ZZ—HF 3% )NEFTHERX
HE-ZIEREDRBEEERIERTE
Bl - B 3P £ 8 AR A B Y R HA T3
RE-FREAFEEZZEMETERS
HBESRA LG EE 2EFEY
EERER A% (T —HF:3%)H
BEHEEREEMNEMNE  ZEFD
REZREELEBENZBERBRESE
BEpmSERCEN - EEEMRE"
Eﬁ%%ﬁ&TZEﬁAET%QE%
CEREREE 2 AREERBER
%lZTW@@@O

REEEFEBERLANGBERS &
A SR B ) R U Ol & R R AR (E - R
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21.

—NEFEFZA=+—HIFFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Hughes China Group

The recoverable amount of Hughes China Group as
at 31 December 2015 has been determined based on
value in use calculation. Such calculation is based on
1) profit forecast prepared by Hughes China Group’s
management covering a five year period and 2) a discount
rate of 19.69% per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the credit risk
specific to the cash-generating unit. The cash flows beyond
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth
rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecast and does not exceed the longterm average
growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations related to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales with
a compound average growth rate of 16.91% and stable
gross margin, such estimation is based on the CGU’s past
performance and its management’s expectations for the
market development. The management believes that any
reasonable possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Hughes
China Group to exceed aggregate recoverable amount of
Hughes China Group.

Based on the valuation report issued by Greater China
Appraisal Limited, the recoverable amount exceeds
the carrying amount of Hughes China Group and no
impairment charge was necessary. Hughes China Group
was disposed of by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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21. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

GUANGZHOU NOWTOP

The recoverable amount of Guangzhou Nowtop has
been determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by
Guangzhou Nowtop’s management covering a five year
period and 2) a discount rate of 18.2% per annum which
reflects current market assessment of the time value of
money and the credit risk specific to the cash-generating
unit. The cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecast and does
not exceed the long term average growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflow/
outflows which include budgeted sales with a compound
growth rate of 5.2% and stable gross margin. Such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and its
management’s expectations for the market development.
The management believes that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of Guangzhou Nowtop
to exceed aggregate recoverable amount of Guangzhou
Nowtop.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal,
the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount
of Guangzhou Nowtop and no impairment charge was
necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

SALES OF TELECOMMUNICATION
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Internet finance platform

Avatar Wealth

The recoverable amount of Avatar Wealth has been
determined based on value in use calculation. Such
calculation is based on 1) profit forecast prepared by
Avatar Wealth’s management covering a five year period
and 2) a discount rate of 18.6% (2015: 17.7%) per annum
which reflects current market assessment of the time value
of money and the credit risk specific to the cash-generating
unit. The cash flows beyond 5-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2015: 3%) growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecast and
does not exceed the longterm average growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculations related to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales with a compound
average growth rate of 31.4% (2015: 14.93%) and stable
gross margin, such estimation is based on the CGU’s past
performance and its management’s expectations for the
market development. The management believes that any
reasonable possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of Avatar
Wealth to exceed aggregate recoverable amount of Avatar
Wealth.

Based on the valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal,
the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of
Avatar Wealth and no impairment charge was necessary.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

INVENTORIES 22. 78
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-RF
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods SR T 26,833 26,086
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEDRE (800) (800)
26,033 25,286

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors
of the Company conducted a review of the Group’s
inventories and no impairment loss has been recognised
(2015: HKSnil).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

RBE-_Z-XF+-_A=+—HL
FE ARBEFHAKENTEET
A B EEREMREESR(ZF
—hEFEFTHET) °

23. B S IR

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—g-xF -T-If

+=ZA=+—-8B +-A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Trade receivables Z 5 MR 192,997 91,276
Less: Accumulated allowance B RER R AT RME

for doubtful debts (41) (41)

192,956 91,235
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. B S EURER X (

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days
(2015: 90 days) to its trade customers. The following is an
ageing analysis of trade receivables net of accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

AEBBETHESREFFHOA (ZF
—HF:0R)NEEH - RNImEAARR
BRERHMEICE SHEBER (&
MBRRREBFTBE) 2BRBRITOT -

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-XE —E—hF

+=-—HA=+-8B +=A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FET

Within 30 days 30A A 81,395 86,449
31 to 60 days 31%60H 27,574 4,269
61 to 90 days 61%E90H 2,571 243
91 to 180 days 91%180H 75,892 -
Over 180 days 231808 5,524 274
192,956 91,235

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$81,416,000 (2015: HK$274,000) which are past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered to be recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The ageing of these
receivables is over 90 days (2015: over 90 days).

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

AEEE S REVEREREHE SN RED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. B ZEWRR (=&
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not BB ERBENE 5 EIERR BRI -
impaired:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—B-RF —E-RF
+=H=t—-8 +=-A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Overdue by: 80 H -
Within 90 days 90H K 75,892 -
Over 90 days HiB0H 5,524 274
81,416 274
Movements in the accumulated allowance for doubtful ZORWER c RIRRFTEHEEZD:
debts for trade receivables:
2016 2015
—E—REF TR
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 41 41
Impairment loss recognised during the year 4 A B #E 28 B &5 18 - —
At 31 December R+=Z—HA=+—H 41 4
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the RIEEE 5 ERERFKESD T E R A
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the SESEREEARLEECZBRER
trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted EHREHRNER CEEERNEM
up to the end of the report period. The concentration of B - HARNEFEHANBETHEE Bitt
credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large EHhEERBRER-

and unrelated.

Annual Report 2016 —E— A F £ 3] @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. BEZEWERN (&
Included in the Group’s accumulated allowance for RZE-—RERZE—HF+= ﬂ
doubtful debts of trade receivables are individually =+ —HB XAEENE S ERERR
impaired trade receivables with an aggregated balances of 2R EH R S B EHR DM OOO/ETEZE
approximately HK$41,000 as at 31 December 2016 and BRBEZESEWER - RARES
2015. The directors of the Company considered that the RE ARZEEERARERS —5 -
Group was unlikely to recover these debts as they were AEBEAREEZKBEZEEE A5 E
long outstanding over one year. The Group does not hold W Z S AR A ERERm-
any collateral over these balances.
24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 24, BN FIE - B & R H Ath B
OTHER RECEIVABLES KA
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—EB-XE —E2—hF
t=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHEIL
Current assets mENEE
Prepayment TAft5RIA 66,341 33,060
Deposits & 22,045 21,716
Other receivables (Note a) H b fE YR (FifsEa) 170,304 127,146
258,690 181,922
Less: accumulated allowance for B EL At U GRIB R AT R
other receivable (19,451) (26,309)
239,239 155,613

Notes:

(@  As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, other receivables
include certain amounts advanced to independent third
parties. In the opinion of the directors, this amount is fully
recoverable and no impairment is considered necessary.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited @ B % % {5 & B4 IR /4 7

Bt

@ RZFB-ARNFR-_Z-—AF+_A
=t+t—R HMERFEBER2NT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 24, AN IR 12 & R E M E K
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) I (®)
Movements in the accumulated allowance for doubtful MIBAFRIE R REMERFIAENR
debts for prepayments, deposits and other receivables: IREFTEHEEE:
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHExT T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 26,309 25,983
Exchange realignment PE 3 A8 (1,036) (1,226)
Impairment losses recognised FRNERRREBE
during the year - 1,652
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA (5,822) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 19,451 26,309
Included in the accumulated allowance for doubtful debts RIEZFTEE R S B4 519,451,000
are individually impaired receivables with an aggregated BLT(RZE—hFE+A=+—8:
balances of HK$19,451,000 (As at 31 December 2015: 26,309,0007% 7T ) 2 18 Al 7l (& 2 FE W AR
HK$26,309,000) in which the directors of the Company FOARREBERR BRZEEKR
consider that the Group is unlikely to recover these HARER AEEMpEEEEKEZER
debts as they are long outstanding. The directors of the o ARNAEZTEHIFAAEEREK (5
Company have been taking all reasonable steps such as MEEERF)REZEREEER -
legal procedures, to recover those outstanding debts. The SETERZSERBTEEANEAR-

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in the other receivables are interest receivables HEMEWGRIEBRERE =B 2 EWH
for the advance to a third party of approximately B.#92,100,000/%& T °

HK$2,100,000.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. EWWE X

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-RF
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Short-term loans EHER
— Secured —HiEH 75,000 =
— Unsecured — K 90,000 =
165,000 -

The loans receivables carry effective interest ranging from
5% to 12% per annum. A maturity profile of the loans
receivables (net of impairment loss recognised, if any) at 31
December 2016, based on the maturity date is as follows:

BURERZEBRFMNEXNF5% =
12% - RFBIHE 2 BB ER (FAKE
ERRESE (MB) ) R_F—RF
TZA=T—RZEHERAT:

31 December 31 December

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—AfF
=t =il — 5 = {—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Current assets nEEE
Within one year —FR 165,000 =

At 31 December 2016, certain loans amounted to
approximately HK$75,000,000 are secured by personal
guarantees and undated share charges.

In determining the recoverability of the loans receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
loan receivables from the date credit was initially granted
up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit
risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

27.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s other financial
assets represents short term wealth management products
with principal amount of RMB43,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$48,631,000) issued by certain commercial banks in
the PRC, with expected but not guaranteed yield rates
from 1.23% to 2.80% per annum. The wealth management
products are designated as financial assets at FVTPL at
initial recognition and remeasured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The entire wealth management
products have been redeemed subsequent to the date of
reporting period.

26. WA EFABEZE M

BE

R-ZBE—-—RNE+_A=+—H0 Fx&£H
ZEMESRMEEATEMNE TREERIT
BT A58 A AR BA43,500,0007T (48
£ 1°48,631,000% 7T ) Hy A2 BRI B 2
TEHA (B0 FE(RFE) F U E N F1.23%
£2.80% - BHMEMNRVIRERKIET
BEATFEFABIEARZEMEEY
RBERRRZAFEETHE -2 2
FERENRREBEZER-

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. e MR FEY
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AHF
+=-H=+—-8R +-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET

Cash in hand and at bank FERBETES

HKD BT 90,956 1,073,366
RMB AR 97,720 38,356
UsD ETT 206 225
188,882 1,111,947

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and
balance with banks.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
0.001% to 0.35% (As at 31 December 2015: 0.001% to
0.46%) per annum at 31 December 2016.

RekReEBYRRTFRRRITER

R-E—RE+_A=+—8" B34
R T 5 F F E ) F0.001% £0.35%
(RZZE—RAF+=-A=+—H:0.001%
£0.46% )5 B e
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RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. We NI EFEY w)

(Continued)

ARBTGERIBRAHEMES A
R4 P B A B N E B IR (6 B A B

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies;
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and EERNEEERE ARAEESHA
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Company REETINEXBOHRITHARE L
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through RHE A o

authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. B 5 ENER

31 December

31 December

2016 2015

—E-XEF —E—hF

t=A=+-A +-A=+—"H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHET

Trade payables B I EMNER 30,353 46,093

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the

reporting period:

RBEMRRBEZAHM2IINE RN
AR DT

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-XE —E—hF

+=-—HA=+-8 +=A=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Within 30 days 308 A 22,066 25,561
31 to 60 days 31E60H 1,354 -
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 194 487
Over 90 days F23B90H 6,739 20,045
30,353 46,093

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days (As at 31 December 2015: 90 days). The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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A MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 # 7 —F—NF+=H=+—HIFEZF

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. B AbFE{T FIE K FE AT KB

31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE “ZT-hF
+=B=+-8 +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Other payables 58,311 79,785
Accruals 790 41,186
59,101 120,971
Included in other payables as at 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+_-_A=+—HstAEf
was a short term loan from an independent third party of JENFRIBEBHNARE —BBLE=F28
approximately HK$27,320,000 to finance the acquisition of B B 5% #927,320,0007% 7T * WA & U B8 B
subsidiaries. BRalRHES -
The loan was unsecured, denominated in HK$ and carries BERAEEE UBTE KRETA
a fixed interest rate at 1.2% per month and was fully FEA12% T E  WERBEEZZT—RF
settled during the year ended 31 December 2016. +ZA=+—BHLEFERELS-
Included in accruals as at 31 December 2015 are interest FAZE AT+ A=+ —HEXK
payable of approximately HK$22,635,000 in relation to the HHAEARNRZETH A BRREEEH
convertible notes issued by the Company. B FE {5 ) B 4922,635,0007% JT ©
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RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016

BE2—FE—NFIT_A=1—HIFFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS

31.

30. IR1TE X

2016 2015
—E—RF —ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Bank borrowings repayable: FEEZBRITIE:
Within one year or on demand —FRYRBEREFEE 55,897 26,271

At 31 December 2016, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$55,897,000 (2015: HK$26,271,000) are
denominated in RMB and carry fixed interest at 5.66% per
annum (2015: 5.52%) and are repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period.

The Group’s banking facilities amounting to approximately
HK$55,897,000 (2015: HK$35,808,000), of which
approximately HK$55,897,000 (2015: HK$26,271,000)
had been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are
secured by the pledge of certain properties of a company
substantially owned by Mr. Lie, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE 2016
(“CN 2016”)

On 5 April 2013, the Company issued convertible notes
with a nominal value of HK$160,000,000 due on 5 April
2016. Each convertible note carries interest at 7% per
annum payable semi-annually in arrears with the first
interest payment due on 5 October 2013 and the last
interest payment is due on 5 April 2016. The CN 2016
entitles holders to convert the notes into new ordinary
shares of the Company at a conversion price, subject to
adjustment, of HK$2.5 per share during the period from
5 April 2013 to 31 March 2016. If the CN 2016 have not
been converted, they will be redeemed at par on 5 April
2016.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

CONVERTIBLE NOTES DUE 2016
(“CN 2016”) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the conversion
price has been adjusted to HK$1.10 per share following
the bonus issue (Note 33(d)) and open offer (Note 33(f)) of
the Company’s shares.

The CN 2016 is not redeemable at the option of
note-holders. In addition, the Company has the right to
redeem any portion of the CN 2016 at its principal amount
at any time prior to the maturity date.

The CN 2016 contains three components, liability,
redemption option derivative and equity component. The
equity element is presented in equity heading “convertible
notes reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is 11.29% per annum. The redemption option
derivative is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Upon the issue of the CN 2016, an amount of
HK$138,627,000, HK$6,206,000 and HK$7,131,000 were
recognised as liability, derivative financial asset and equity,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no
redemption of the CN 2016 was made by the Company.
At 31 December 2015, carrying amount of CN 2016 of
approximately HK$157,364,000 (principal amount of
HK$160,000,000) remained outstanding.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$16,000,000 was early
redeemed in March 2016. The remaining HK$144,000,000
has been reclassified to other payables upon maturity on 5
April 2016. Accordingly, the convertible notes reserve has
been released to the accumulated losses.

31

A MR MR

BE-F—AF+AS+—AILFE

A HARE IR ()

—E-AREIHzTBRRE
B(IZ2E—A"F3Hzak
EE]) (@)
E—E-RE+ A=+ —BILEE
FAME 17 4T B % 47 (P 3E33(0)) K 2 B 8
& (M 5:33(1) A A R BRIP4 - EIRED

AR EFR110E T

i3

“E-AFIHPZARREETARE
BRAEANERED I KREH
BRI ZABEREZASELO _-F
—NEFRRZ AR R REER 2 A

—E-RFIHZARERREEREER
B BEEERTETARERZ =8
Moma N EESE 2N AT BRER
EEEl - BEFONERMNESERE
11.29% - FEEIEZEITE T AR AF
Bt RFEZEBNBEHER -

RET_FT-AFIHZATBRERE
1% » 138,627,000/& 7T * 6,206,000/ 7T &
7,131,0008 T2 & D Bl R R AE -
TEEMEEKER-

REBEZE_ZTE—AF+=-_A=+—HL
FE - ARABEERN T — 3
M EREE-R_T—AF+=A
=+ —HB ZE—AFIHHUBRRE
R ERE A 4157,364,00078 7T (A& 58
160,000,000/ 7T ) Ty AR B o

RBEZZT—A"F+A=+—HIEF
[ - 7K & 58 & £016,000,0005% 7T By 7] #2
REBER_ZE—R"E=-ARFER-
#2 144,000,000 T E R =T —RF
MARBIMEERSEEHMERMNK
oWt - AT R BB FEBE R 5T A
REtEE.
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RE M HRR M

for the year ended 31 December 2016 g & —E—NFE+=H=+—HIFEZF

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 31. Al AR R (&)
The movements of the liability component and redemption FRNAIRREBRNEG D RERE
option derivative of the convertible notes during the year BRTETIENZESHIIMT

are set out below:

Redemption
Liability option
component derivative Total
BEREE
BERHG fTETHE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIT FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZT—hF—A—H 148,768 - 148,768
Effective interest charged (Note 10) T 2 B FI B
(HtzE10) 17,362 - 17,362
Coupon interest accrued and included in 2 4 3 5T A JE < FI| &
interest payable ZEEHE (8,766) - (8,766)
Change in fair value of derivative TESREEZDNF
financial assets B - - -
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—HF
1 January 2016 +ZA=+—8k
—T-R¥—HA—H 157,364 - 157,364
Effective interest charged (Note 10) FTUER 2 B FI S
(KiEE10) 2,799 - 2,799
Coupon interest accrued and included in - 7 4 3 5+ A &< F1| &,
interest payable ZZEEHME 217) = 217)
Early redemption of convertible notes REERTRERER (15,946) - (15,946)
Reclassified to other payable NEREHNIEE
upon maturity H it e 508 (144,000) - (144,000)
Change in fair value of derivative TEEREEZ
financial assets NEEEH - - -
At 31 December 2016 R-B-—RF
+=A=+-H - - -
The fair values of CN 2016 at 31 December 2015 are TE-RFHH2UTBERERENR_-Z
based on valuations carried out on those dates by —hAF+_A=+—HZAFEDER
independent valuers. B EERARZEBHEL 2 ®E-.
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32. IREFITR
Detail of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and FHANERRECHEARBRAZHFE
movements thereon during the year is as follow: (N
Intangible assets
mAE
HK$ 000
T
At 1 January 2015 —E—hF%—H—H 6,804
Acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group (Note 35(b)) WEEE&Z &£ B (Ft:E35()) 25,237
Acquisition of Million Ace Group (Note 35(d)) W E R EE (MEE35()) 11,509
Credited to consolidated statement of profit or ~ 5F A&R& 18z M EAth 2 S KR
loss and other comprehensive income (Note 11)  (Fff3E11) (6,813)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-ZE—-HF+=-HA=+-—H
k—=—-X&—H—H 36,737
Disposal of HCH Investment Limited (Note 36(a)) i & HCH Investment Limited
(P 5E36(a) ) (1,341)
Acquisition of Guangzhou Nowtop (Note 35(a)) W&+ (Ki:E35(@)) 46,655
Credited to consolidated statement of profit or ~ 5F AR & Bzs M Efth 2 WS KR
loss and other comprehensive income (Note 11)  (Fff3E11) (8,101)
At 31 December 2016 R-B-—X"HE+=-A=+—H 73,950
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$223,580,000 (As at 31
December 2015: HK$182,062,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group
did not have any deductible temporary differences. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statement in respect of temporary difference
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of reversal at the
temporary difference and it is probable that will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited @ B % % {5 & B4 IR /4 7

32. IREMIE (#)

RBEEBAR NEBNARB AR ERIE
#9223,580,0008 L (R=ZE—HF+=
A=+—H :182,062,000/ T ) A A 7
8 R AR FI o B P R AR I B DA TR
BT EEREEREEE -HIES
B A ER A -

RZE—-—ARE+ZA=+—HRZ=ZZ
—AF+-_A=+—H8 A£EHREA
MREREZE -ARTAIEEIRY
IR 2= 58 A 4K S PR R BR A1 - iR AR
ZEUMRE R EEERECHBEE -

RIEFPECEMASHE FEMERR
BE_TTNF— A BEREKNN
MEMEIRNRESHATBNB - R A
SEEE TR TR IEZROBEERE
B WL AR G M IR A A B BB
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. fx A
Par value Number of
per share  shares Amount Amount
BREE BROEE &5
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised: SETE
At 1 January 2015 —E-hAF—HF—H 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Increase of authorised AT MR AR AN
share capital (note a) (PifzEa) 0.1 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 December 2015, R-E—EF
1 January 2016 and +=-H=+—-8"
31 December 2016 —E-X"E¥-H—H
kR-ZE-RE
+=A=+—--H 0.1 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE:
At 1 January 2015 —RF—HF—H 0.1 2,754,920,793 275,492
Issue of shares on 1 April 2015 R-Z—HEFWA—H
(note b) BIThR M (FI3EDb) 0.1 303,000,000 30,300
Exercise of share options (note ¢) 171 BERLHE (FifzEc) 0.1 20,000,000 2,000
Bonus issue of shares (note d) ~ ZEFTALAY (Ff3Fd) 0.1 3,077,920,793 307,792
Issue of shares on R-ZE—RAFAA+—H
11 September 2015 (note ¢) BTl (Mise) 0.1 196,721,311 19,672
Open offer of shares (note ) NABERD (FIFEF) 0.1 3,176,281,448 317,628
At 31 December 2015, R-ZE—EF
1 January 2016 and e Sr=[="¢
31 December 2016 —B—RFE—-H—
&_g—ri
+=RA=+—- 0.1 9,528,844,345 952,884
Notes: Mo -
(a8 Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on the @ BEER-_Z—RE+—A=-+,H

extraordinary general meeting dated 26 November
2015, the authorised share capital was increased to
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement dated 30 January
2015 entered into between NEO Mobile Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party in relation to (B3R EREERE
BEEis MR ATIMIHE) (Guangdong Wei Hai Xiao Yuan
Mobile Network Company Limited*) (the “Agreement”), the
Company issued 303,000,000 ordinary shares on 1 April
2015 upon the completion of transactions contemplated
under the Agreement. The fair value of the ordinary shares
issued was determined by the available published price of
HK$0.425 each at the completion date of the acquisition on
1 April 2015.

*for identification purpose only
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(© During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.10
at the exercise price of HK$0.628 per ordinary share upon
exercise of the share options granted by the Company.

(d) Pursuant to the ordinary resolution duly passed at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 5 June 2015, a
bonus issue of 3,077,920,793 new shares were issued and
credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of an
appropriate amount in the share premium account of the
Company on 19 June 2015.

(e) Pursuant to the terms of the agreement dated 14 August
2015 between NEO Cloud Computing Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Milion Ace Limited, the
Company issued 196,721,311 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.10 each on 11 September 2015 as the acquisition
consideration. The fair value of the ordinary shares issued
was determined by the available published price of HK$0.66
each at the completion date of the acquisition on 11
September 2015.

() On 30 December 2015, the Company completed an open
offer of 3,176,281,448 shares at a subscription price of
HK$0.38 per offer share on the basis of one open offer
share for every two shares held on 7 December 2015.

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a resolution passed at a annual general
meeting of the Company held on 19 December 2012,
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.

The previous share option scheme of the Company (the
“Old Share Option Scheme”) was expired on 21 July
2012, no further options can be granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme thereafter. All outstanding share
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding until they lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Old Share Option Scheme.

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHIEEEBEFR LA

33.

34.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The Company operates the New Share Option Scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the New Share
Option Scheme include the Company’s directors (including
independent non-executive directors), other employees
of the Group, and suppliers of goods or services to the
Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New Share
Option Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their
exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the New Share
Option Scheme within any 12 month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is
not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the New Share Option
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (i) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s share for
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (i) the nominal value of the shares.

4. R REETE ()

RABRITHEBRETE S EHAEE
RERNELERMZABER2EERLT
BEIEHR-FEREFIZABRS
HEGBEARAZES (BREBIIFH
TER) AKEZHMWEER  UEAE
B s ek Rz e -

B AR IR ¥R B AT 81 A TR B 2 R1T
EEEERSEEAEFRN (METE)
ARRREREREE ETRN10% 3B
BB A ERBEEREEMI2EA
HIBAITEBRE R ER T2 &R0
HE T SHEARAREMRED ZHTR
1% - E—TREEMBERZ LR Z
FERHE - D REBRRERRASG LA -

BB RS £ 2 A BEstesh
R A AR A3 A BORE 5 78 S A
eETEERE -CROEBREZT
EHHEFEET THEETHRBERRRE
i EEERHERERSBI0FAR
MEBREEIZ SR (MERARLEE)
ke

BhREZTEBEHESETE EAED
RTIBEE: () ARARNRERR
P P ) AR B 52 P AT R 2 T A ()
ARABBNREZZZ BRI DER S
BB R FT AT 2 P W (8 ¢ R (i) B
fEfE-
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholder’s meeting. The following
table discloses details of the Company’s share option in

34. BIRERTE (@)
BE AR TR, T £ 45 A IR B 5k
BRAG LREZHEF-EN KA T
IR BT Y MRS E RER T

issue under the Scheme during the year: =
Number of share options
BREHE
At
31 December
2015,
Exercise 1 January
price per Exercised Adjustment Adjustment 2016 and
Name of category share At 1 January during for bonus foropen 31 December
of participant Date of grant  Exercise period (note) 2015 the year issue offer 2016
R-B-1%
t=A
Sr=[°
ZE-AE
-A-BkK
BRORE R-2-1% RER ARES RHERE ZE-RE
SRERRER RERE RS GEY -B-H % ioE: WHE +-A=t-8H
Directors 342013 34.2013t02.4.2018 0275 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 5,600,000 45,600,000
Bz
“3-=%f ZZ-=#mA=AH
MA=R E%2-N\%
mAZH
20,000,000 - 20,000,000 5,600,000 45,600,000
Employee and others 842011 8.4.2011 to 7.4.2021 0.469 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 840,000 6,840,000
EER A
Z2-——% ZZ-—%NANRZE
WANA ZB=-%
mA+A
342013 34.2013102.4.2018 0275 50,000,000 (20,000,000) 30,000,000 8,400,000 68,400,000
- CZZ--£mA=HZE
mA=ZA ZZ-N\F
MAZH
53,000,000 (20,000,000) 33,000,000 9,240,000 75,240,000
Total 73,000,000 (20,000,000) 53,000,000 14,840,000 120,840,000
i
Weighted average 0.646 0.628 0.327 0.286 0.286
exercise price (HKS)
METHTEE (B
Note: the exercise prices of the share options have been adjusted Mizh: BRECTEEERS IR _Z—H
for bonus issue and open offer that took place on 19 June FRA+NBERZZE—HF+=A
2015 and 30 December 2015 respectively. Z+tHETHARETRAREEM

Neo Telemedia Limited FEHIEEEBEFR LA
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The fair values of options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme measured at the date of grant during
the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$30,490,000. The following significant assumptions
were used to derived the fair value using the Binomial
Option Pricing Model:

16 May 3 April
2013 2013

Total number of share option 20,000,000 94,000,000

Option value HK$0.2045  HK$0.2809
Option life 5 years 5 years
Expected Tenor 5 years 5 years
Exercise price HK$0.628 HK$0.628
Stock price at the date

of grant HK$0.460 HK$0.600
Expected volatility 87.11% 88.00%
Risk-free rate 0.427% 0.525%

Expected volatility was reference to Bloomberg calculated
from the weighted average historical volatility of weekly
return of share price of comparable companies and the
Company. Risk-free rate represents the yields to maturity
of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective
terms to maturity as at the share options granted date.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considers.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
issued 20,000,000 ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.1
at the exercise price of HK$0.628 per ordinary share upon
exercise of the share options.

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2016.

4. R REETE ()

HE_Z—=F+-A=+—HILFE "
RIEFT BRI 2 BIRERE D
HHiEt 2 2 A (B4 530,490,000 7T
AT ZEAEEEENEEAT
ERNFAZEERR:

=% ZF-=F
AATAR WA=A

BREeH 20,000,000 94,000,000
ElREEE 0.20457%7C  0.28097% 7T
ElRES S 5% 5%
TEHAF 5% 54
IEE 0.628/87C  0.628/87T
REREBZRE

0.460/7T  0.6007& 7T
TBHR IR 87.11% 88.00%
3 P ) R 0.427% 0.525%
TEHRIE T 2REEEMTE T B

RARARRRRESBRFNETFHE
SR IEIS o EER A R E B R
BEHRM FBINEESRIEZ 2
Wax - ZEBEBHEREGRET KRAF
Z R HC AR 2 TR EE N
TERVIERTRAFERRARZEZEMA
Frad -

HE-_Z-—AF+-A=1+—BItFE"
AR ABREETHREREBR
0.628 7L 2 1TR (BT RE(E0AS
7T #920,000,0004% & 38 A%
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. Wik B~ A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BE-ZE—X"E+ZA=+—

2016 AIEEE

(@) Acquisition of Guangzhou Nowtop (2 WEEMENR
On 4 March 2016, EXRHEBHERBER A RZE—R"F=ZAMAB - KXAF
7 (Guangdong Bluesea Mobile Development BBUEBHEENEEZERES
Company Limited*) (‘Bluesea Mobile”), an indirect ZHBRRERBERHERE
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company through RAR([HEBE])ETH([&
structured contracts, entered into an agreement BRI —EwmE ([ZiBE])
(the “Agreement”) with T i# (Wang Kun*) (the Bl EAFBRGRERENSED
“Vendor”) pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally HEREMNE R 260% B A
agreed to sell Bluesea Mobile 60% of equity interest EMEREFERERFREREHRE
in Guangzhou Nowtop. Guangzhou Nowtop is B P L (IDC)) RIS 2 %
principally engaged in providing Internet Data Center e ZBWEENR - —"F=A
(“IDC”) services in the PRC. The acquisition was Z+HHTER

completed on 24 March 2016.

The fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired FrEaZR FEEZAFEK
and the goodwill arising are as follows: EXZEZENAT:

HK$’000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment M W E R EAE 5,678
Intangible assets mEE 186,619
Trade receivable Z 5 IR K 26,733
Prepayments and other receivables TE A RRIE N CH Ath fE W SRR 1,891
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBESEEY 7,437
Trade payable B I EMNER (27,770)
Accruals and other payables FE &3R8 I H ftb B 5 5RIR (3,323)
Tax liabilities MIBEE (77)
Deferred taxation EIEFIE (46,655)
Non-controlling interest IR (60,213)
Total identifiable net assets acquired Fri i rl s R F B E 8RR 90,320
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEE 2 HE 79,801

170,121

* for identification purpose only * EHEE
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WHEKI B & 7] (&)
(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BE-_ZE—XR"F+=ZA=+—
2016 (Continued) B 1k FE (@)
(@) Acquisition of Guangzhou Nowtop (2 WEEMER @
(Continued)

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date were measured by reference to the
proportionate share of fair values of Guangzhou
Nowtop’s net assets at the acquisition date and
amounted to HK$60,213,000. Goodwill arose
in the above acquisition because the cost of
acquisition included a control premium, in addition,
the consideration paid for the acquisition effectively
included amounts in relation to the benefit of
expected synergies, revenue growth, future market
development and the assembled workforce of
Guangzhou Nowtop. These benefits are not
recognised separately from goodwill because they
do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

R E R IEERERTY
2ERKREBBHAMGEMNER
FEEZAFEZLAE B
60,213,000/ 7t » A A UK A~ 2
FEIEHIRERE -t bt B B IEE
EEEepih BENREBREER
_E B IE T R TE R 15 R A E -~ IR A 1
R ARMBEREEMNERNE
AU NFERFEN S - ZEF
EmTEEESRAER RASHT
REA A HRER & E R ERIE

o

BRNERBREENEERKT
5 B’ = Al R
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-F—AF+AS+—AILFE

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

FOR TH

E YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER

2016 (Continued)

(@) Acq

35. WEEHTE 7] (@)

Al FE (@)

uisition of Guangzhou Nowtop () WEEMER @
(Continued)
The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by 15 B 1 (B T LA 1~ % 52180,000,000
cash of no more than HK$180,000,000. BILZBEE T
Fair value
ATE
HK$’000
FHET
Consideration satisfied by: ATA A2 RE:
Cash Re 131,800
Contingent consideration payable (Note) FET S ARE (HaE) 38,321
170,121
Net Cash outflow arising on the acquisition: ~ WEBEE 2R &R HIF5E
Consideration paid in cash BENRERE (131,800)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances B RTWER e MR EBYEH
acquired 7,437
(124,363)

Note:

According to the Agreement, the Vendor has
guaranteed to Bluesea Mobile that the audited net
profit after tax for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017 will not be less than HK$25,000,000
(2016 Guaranteed Profit”) and HK$40,000,000
(“2017 Guaranteed Profit”) respectively. Cash
of HK$20,000,000 and HK$30,000,000 shall be
payable to the Vendor provided that the 2016
Guaranteed Profit and 2017 Guaranteed Profit
have been met, respectively. The fair value of the
amount payable of HK$38,321,000 at the date of
acquisition was estimated by applying the discounted
cash flow approach at a discount rate of 18.10%.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, a loss
of HK$6,029,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss for the changes in fair values of the contingent
consideration payable, with reference to the valuation
report issued by Asset Appraisal.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

Mzt BEZBZE BHREEBHR
BHE-_ZE—R"EER=_F—+
F+_A=Z+-—BUHEEZRE
BZBRBEEFANED BN
25,000,000/ T ([ =& — X
& 2% 738 ) 140,000,000 7T
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REFE - QD BIZABE S M
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WHEKI B & 7] (&)
(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BE-_ZE—XR"F+=ZA=+—
2016 (Continued) B 1k FE (@)
(@) Acquisition of Guangzhou Nowtop (2 WEEMER @
(Continued)

Acquisition related costs were insignificant and have
been excluded from the cost of acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the
period and included in the “administrative and other
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Since the acquisition, Guangzhou Nowtop has
contributed approximately HK$121,448,000 and
HK$12,324,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit,
respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Had the acquisition of Guangzhou Nowtop been
effected at the beginning of the year, the total
amount of revenue of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would have been
HK$2,544,957,000, and the amount of the profit
for the year would have been HK$202,337,000.
The proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed at the beginning of the year, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had Guangzhou Nowtop been acquired
at the beginning of the year, the directors calculated
depreciation and amortisation of plant and equipment
based on the recognised amounts of plant and
equipment at the date of the acquisition.

WEHBKALTEXR 28 WS
BN 5l B - I B & B S A R
XEFABE-_ZE-—RF+_-A
=t -BLEFEZGEEBRHERZ
[T E A Ao

BB BMNEHRE BEAEE
HE-_Z—X"F+=ZA=+—8”
WEFE 2 WA K F 'R D B4
121,448,000/ 7T [ 12,324,000/
=

WREEMNERNFEYE ET
AEBEBEE_ZT—XF+=H
—t+—HLEFEZRABERR
2,544,957,000/% 7T * M F A 5 A
BIl #% &202,337,000/ 7T 5 & &
BHEHR R R S - RN FR R WU
EERFVEKBERTARNERE
BEBRREINNBARES 1T
BEERARIRERENTEA

REEE s B M B IR F R KEE
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

35. WEEHTE 7] (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER EZE-HRF+ZA=+—
2015 BLEFE

b) BEBEERHER
R-_ZE—AFNA—B A%£H
BRERESONEEREER
HERARAR ([EFEBH])
2HRE BREZXATER
128,775,000/ 7L - B/ B) R H
MEAR (RBA FHEBHE
B XENEELEREEFHE
EAWIFI & REREFEETF
B HERBEEBREEET0%
B AR ERMLETEERE
ERARAT ([MAEME]) TN
EEOBACMTaER-

(b) Acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group

On 1 April 2015, the Group acquired the 100% equity
interest in ERFHEZEERABFR A (Guangdong
Bluesea Mobile Development Ltd Co.*) (“Bluesea
Mobile”) through structured contracts with a total
consideration at fair value of HK$128,775,000.
Bluesea Mobile and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Bluesea Mobile Group”) is principally
engaged in the operation of a mobile and Internet
commercial WIFI platform and a cross-border
e-commerce platform. And through its 70% owned
subsidiary ERM AL EZF B REETE AR QA
(Guangdong Avatar Wealth Investment Management
Co., Ltd") (“Avatar Wealth”), Bluesea Mobile Group
also operates a Internet finance platform business.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

PRI EER BBEZ AT

@ Neo Telemedia Limited @ B % % {5 & B4 IR /4 7

acquired and the goodwill arising are as follows: BREEZHEBNT:
HK$’000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment LERN S 1,401
Intangible assets | EE 100,947
Inventory FE 849
Trade receivables Z 5 IR K 3,980
Other receivables H b fE U SR IB 1,055
Cash and cash equivalents HehBLEEY 2,015
Trade payables B 5 RISERR (389)
Other payables L FE A 5RIE 917)
Deferred taxation EEFIE (25,237)
Non-controlling interest R A A (5,079
Total identifiable net assets acquired Fri g Rl Rl F B EE 2 5E 78,625
Goodwill on acquisition WEEL 72 BE 50,150
128,775
* for identification purpose only * EHEE
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2015 (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group
(Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Bluesea Mobile
Group because the cost of acquisition included
a control premium, in addition, the consideration
paid for the acquisition effectively included amounts
in relation to the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and
the assembled workforce of Bluesea Mobile Group.
These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition
criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by
way of allotment and issue of 303,000,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company. The fair value of the
ordinary shares issued was determined by referring to
the published price of HK$0.425 per share at 1 April

35. WEEHTEB 2 Al (@)

Z2-E-HF+=-A=+—
B 1k FE (@)
(b) WEREHRIER (&)

MR R A B IR E SR E - R
BREESSREELRE UM
ENKBEREERESEEMRED
175 5] R ~ Mg A BB £~ R 2R T 45 B
REBNBEHEENEALE NN
TRIH o 5% F N a8 1 B B o B
R REAREIL A A HHEF
BEMNERRE-

M B T A ) P TR R T 3t
Bii% B R -

WERENREE RETAR T
303,000,000 %7 & i iz &9 77 =, 32
oTBTERARNATFELRE
—E-—AFWNA—HBHZAEER
FRR0.4258 TLETE ©

2015.
HK$'000
FHT
Net Cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEELZHERH BHE
Consideration paid in cash ENRERE
Less: Cash and cash equivalent BB e IR EEMEH
balances acquired 2,015
2,015

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$406,000
have been excluded from the cost of acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the
year and included in the “administrative and other
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Uz B2 48 B 5K 45406,000/% T B B I
BRATSKR YEEERRA
FARIRHABE-_ZT—AF
+tZA=t+-—BLFEZHAEE
BRPMTTBREREMAS A
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2015 (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group
(Continued)

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 is profit of HK$42,038,000 attributable to
Bluesea Mobile Group. Revenue for the year includes
HK$162,056,000 attributable to Bluesea Mobile
Group.

(c) Acquisition of CNCC Logistics

On 25 June 2015, the Group acquired 43% of the
entire equity interest of A EMAREEB AR A
(CNCC Logistics Equipment Co., Ltd*) (“CNCC
Logistics”) at a consideration of HK$3,505,000.
CNCC logistics is principally engaged in the design,
manufacture and sale of logistics equipment, such
as containers, road transportation vehicles and
emergency rescue equipment, and the provision of
relevant technical advisory services.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

35. WEEHTE 7] (@)

E-F EEfT—‘I' A=+-—

BLEFE (&
(b) 4&&%#1:’&%5@]%. ()

()

BY /8 7 ) & B fE 15 4 742,038,000
BEITHABRE-_ZE-—RE+=
AZ+—BLEEEZEE-FR
WABRER SR EEEGD
162,056,000 Tt ©

W BE =R

R-ZE—RFNA-+HB A&
BB EmREERR AR ([
YR 2 BRERI% REAR
3,505,000 7T o R &k = E
EYRERBORT REREE -
PlansEssE  BREBEH T ARSK
B RIR AR R AR o

PRI EER BBEZ AT

acquired and the goodwill arising are as follows: BREEZHEBNT:
HK$ 000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE k&G 146
Inventory FE 5
Other receivables H th fE YR IE 51
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEFEEY 3,024
Other payables Eh FE A 3RIE (119)
Non-controlling interest FEERR A A 394
Total identifiable net assets acquired Frit BE I & Pl & E R RE 3,505
* for identification purpose only * EHEE
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WM B A Al (&)
(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER E-E-HF+ZA=+-—
2015 (Continued) B 1k FE (@)
(c) Acquisition of CNCC Logistics (c) WEPEYR @)
(Continued)
The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by I B R B A A R #2,765,0007T 2
cash consideration of RMB2,765,000. ReEREZMT-
HK$'000
T T
Net Cash outflow arising on acquisition WHEEL2HEREFE
Consideration paid in cash ENBEERE (3,505)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent bR e MR e EEBMEHR
balances acquired 3,024
(481)
Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$50,000 Uiz B 48 B8 Ak AN50,00078 JT E B
have been excluded from the cost of acquisition and BRAFRGGR e BHERERA
have been recognised directly as an expense in the FARIRFABE=ZT—RF
year and included in the “administrative and other TZA=T—BHLFEZHEERE
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of mRZTTBREEMAS] A
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December R R W) JE 4 A1 702,000 TRt
2015 is profit of HK$702,000 attributable to ABE_ZE—RAF+-_A=1+—
CNCC Logistics. Revenue for the year includes HIEFEZEE - FRRABEF
HK$8,255,000 attributable to CNCC Logistics. W0 FE 15 898,255,000/ 7T
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. WHEKI B~ 7] (#)
(Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BE-ZE-—-HF+=ZHA=1+-—
2015 (Continued) B FE (@)
(d) Acquisition of Million Ace Group d BEENEEH

On 11 September 2015, the Group acquired the
100% equity interest in Million Ace Limited with a
total consideration at fair value of HK$129,836,000.
Million Ace Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Million Ace Group”) is principally
engaged in the trading of mobile phones and tablets.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

R-ZZE—RAFAA+—H A&EE
WEEKEE2EKE RKES
129,836,000/ 7T 7 A F{H & K
SEERARLEMB LR (5
[BREE]) TEXLEFHRNFR
BB

BRI B EERABZRY

acquired and the goodwill arising are as follows: BEREEZEENT:
HK$’000
T
Property, plant and equipment W BB REE 30
Intangible assets EmREE 69,749
Inventory FE 24,804
Trade receivables 2 5 EBAR N 5,631
Prepayments and other receivables TE 45 BRIE & E Ath B W SR8 13,428
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFEEY 2,733
Trade payables 5 EERR (14,618)
Other payables H b < R (24,246)
Temporary receipts i IR A (555)
Tax payable FE T I8 (799)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAEE (11,509)
Total identifiable net assets acquired FrU B RT3 Rl F B EE 4R R 64,648
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEZEHE 65,188
129,836

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Million Ace Group
because the cost of acquisition included a control
premium, in addition, the consideration paid for the
acquisition effectively included amounts in relation to
the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth,
future market development, distribution channels and
the assembled workforce of Million Ace Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

BRI RN B AR IR (E - i
WEEKEBEERE - HIN B
NKBEREEREEEBEAERD
I PE - WWAIR R~ RIRTTIZ R -
DHRENREREENEAS N
B RIR © 5% % M 2 1 HL B D A B
R REREIL NS A # 5 &
BEMNERSE-
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2015 (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Million Ace Group
(Continued)

None of the goodwill arising on this acquisition is
expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

The consideration of the acquisition is satisfied by
way of allotment and issue of 196,721,311 new
ordinary shares of the Company. The fair value of the
ordinary shares issued was determined by referring
to the published price of HK$0.66 per share at 11

35. WEEHTEB 2 Al (@)

Z2-E-HF+=-A=+—
B 1k FE (@)
d) WEEREHE @)

WEMEENBERDS e
7% B #Y M & R

WEREBNEEREITEAQF
196,721,311 ST E MR A 5 A
FoTBTERRMNATELSE
ZE-RAFAAT+—BZRAEE
& & H%0.66/8 TLEE °

September 2015.
HK$'000
T
Net Cash outflow arising on acquisition WEELZREHRHFE
Consideration paid in cash BENRERE
Less: Cash and cash equivalent MR e MR SBMER
balances acquired 2,733
2,733

Acquisition related costs amounting to HK$310,000
have been excluded from the cost of acquisition and
have been recognised directly as an expense in the
year and included in the “administrative and other
expenses” line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 is profit of HK$6,198,000 attributable to
Million Ace Group. Revenue for the year includes
HK$1,730,654,000 attributable to Million Ace Group.

U B8 48 B8 AKX Z~310,00078 7T B B WK
BRATGIKR YEEERRA
FARYRFABEZZE—RF
+TZA=+—HILFEZHEIE
mRP TR EREMASZ Ao

BN EEEG &R F6,198,000
B ABE_ZTE—RF+=
A=+ HLEFEZEHEIE-
FRAUABEEKESEEMLD
1,730,654,0007 It °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. W BRI B A B ()

(Continued)

E-E—HE+ZA=1+—
HiEFE (#)
d) WEEREHE @)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2015 (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of Million Ace Group

(Continued)

Had the acquisition of Bluesea Mobile Group, CNCC
Logistics and Million Ace Group been effected at the
beginning of the year, the total amount of revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 would have been HK$7,609,197,000, and the
amount of the profit for the year would have been
HK$143,892,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed at the beginning of
the year, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had the above mentioned subsidiaries
been acquired at the beginning of the year, the
directors calculated depreciation and amortisation
of plant and equipment based on the recognised
amounts of plant and equipment at the date of the
acquisition.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

WMKBEHEHEER REY
MEBREBRFND #ET
AEEBEE-_ZTE—RF+=A
ST —HLEFENRABELR
7,609,197,000/% 7T * M F A 4= F
Bl £143,892,000/% 7T ° 5 & & ¥
EHHFARSE KUV ERTMEESE
HRFEVTKEAEEEBEER
HEIMNBRARESE TEEER
RIRFEEMTENR -

i L 32 PR o8 % B 0 B A 4% Ui B - B
EEREBEEAKENHEE KA
Kot F B T AR AR R 55 B aR M 1 MR
BRHNCBRTBTERE R
R T EE S S o
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) DISPOSAL OF HCH INVESTMENTS

LIMITED

On 19 February 2016, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with OAF (BJ) Limited
(as the “Purchaser”) and Mr. Chong Hock (Charles)
Lau (as the “Guarantor”) pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to sell the entire
equity interest of HCH Investments Limited at a
consideration of HK$156,000,000 to the Purchaser.
The principal activities of HCH Investments Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Disposal Group”) are engaged in the development
of Internet technology and satellite communication
technology as well as the trading of satellite
communication system devices.

The ultimate beneficial owner of the Purchaser who
is also the Guarantor is a director of a subsidiary
of HCH Investments Limited, and therefore was a
connected person of the Company at subsidiary level.
Accordingly, the disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under GEM Listing
Rules.

36. HEME QA
(a) HEHCH INVESTMENTS

LIMITED
RZZE—X"FE-_A+hIB &A2Q
7] B OAF (BJ) Limited (1E& B
FlRBIREEE(ERTER
ADFIN—HEE WS Bt K
RAEKRHRERE F HEHCH
Investments Limited & &B i% 7Zx 4
# * {8 /&156,000,0007% 7T © HCH
Investments Limited K E B & A 7]
(R HEEE]) 2 EEXEK
AREROBMEARMEEEBRRER
MREERERARECES -

BRAZEREREEAN (RARAE
# A ) AHCH Investments Limited
BET—EHRBARZES BAXR
RERMB AR s @EAL-
At - BIREIFER EWRA &
EETHEBRARRIZHERS -
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEME AT (5

(a) DISPOSAL OF HCH INVESTMENTS (a) HEHCH INVESTMENTS
LIMITED (Continued) LIMITED (&)
The disposal was completed on 14 March 2016. Net ZHEZEBER _E—XRFE=A
assets of the Disposal Group at the date of disposal TATENK - HEEBRNEE B
were as follows: LIFEEMT:
HK$'000
T T
Property, plant and equipment Y B k& 3,872
Intangible assets BmREE 28,635
Goodwill BES 6,403
Inventory BE 231
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 410
Prepayments and other receivables T RRIE N CH Ath FE W SRR 8,539
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBESEEY 10,549
Accounts payable FETRR (20,461)
Accruals and other payables FEETFRIA & H Ath JE - 5RIB (28,119
Deferred taxation EIEFTE (1,341)
8,718
Less: non-controlling interest R FETE AR 4,155
Net assets disposed of T EFEE 12,873
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBAR 2 W
Cash consideration received BUHRERE 68,000
Promissory note (note) A EE (M) 88,000
Net assets disposed of FIEFEE (12,873
Release of cumulative exchange difference  fEREHREBINEREE 2
on translation of foreign operations ZFTE R E5 (58)
143,069
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEACBESRAFRE:
Cash consideration HeRE 68,000
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of FItEReRASEED (10,549
57,451
Note: The promissory note is non-interest bearing, Mizk: AN RBEATETE  AJEEILN
transferable and with a 6-month maturity from the FERK B BRRERT /1B A R EER

date of completion.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) UNWINDING OF STRUCTURED

CONTRACT WITH X—€ R EHAHRE
A a (“A1 NET”)

On 17 February 2016, the Group entered into
agreements (the “Unwinding Agreements”) with At
Net, the immediate holding company of CERNET
Wifi, which has been de-consolidated from the
consolidated financial statements of the Group from
1 January 2014, and a subsidiary of the Company
by way of structured contracts (the “Structured
Contracts”), the shareholders of A1 Net and two
independent third parties (the “Purchasers”) to
unwind the Structured Contracts. Pursuant to
the Unwinding Agreements, among others, 1)
the Structured Contracts under which the Group
had obtained control over CERNET Wifi would
be unwound; and 2) the shareholders of A1 Net
disposed of their entire interests in A1 Net to the
Purchasers.

In addition, upon the unwinding of the Structured
Contracts, while the Group will not incur further
costs in relation to the legal proceedings, A1 Net
has undertaken to repay the Group its share of any
claimed amount received by CERNET Wifi if the
outcome of the legal proceedings is in favour of
CERNET Wifi.

36. HEME A B (#)
(b) BEX—E€W/REAERLT

(TR—=@ ) BRE
ER=gY)

RZZE—A"F-_A+tRH &
BEX-2H(ERER(B-F
—ME-A-HABIBHALE
BHERAMBRR) cERERA
AIRARRBEBERUEGO (&
BESWDZHMBAR) X—%
BORREMBBLE=T7 ([E
BRI ek ([BRBR YA 3R ) LAAR
FREBIEA K - RIBEMIR IR (B
TERBEINASEESHERER
H) P2 Il B PR IR B0 S B 1 B K0 S
RS R2) R— & WHRR M H
RR—eMN2HEERHETE
Eo

BESN R EBIES R AK
ARG ERFRELEE—HF
BB R - T B AR IR A% R A 4F
ERERG R—2REAREBRAX
SEEEEEIGEREGMER
EAIRERIBEZ B -
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36. HEWB A (@)

(b) UNWINDING OF STRUCTURED

CONTRACT WITH X — @M B IR
27 (“A1 NET”)
Upon the unwinding of the Structured Contracts on

17 February 2016, the entity interest in A1 Net was
disposed of, and the net assets of A1 Net at the date

(b) BEX—ERBEERA T
(TR—€@®|)BREE
HEHN
R-E—ANE-A++EBRBE
BHANE REX—S B2 RIED
BHE RRX—SERERBEY

of unwinding were as follows: FEEMT:
HK$ 000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEEY 166
Prepayments TR FIE 324
Other receivables H e W IR 1,761
Net assets disposed of & FEE 2,251
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBRR 2 W
Net assets disposed of FThEFEE (2,251)
Release of cumulative exchange difference  FEBREREGINEREL 2
on translation of foreign operations BETEN ZH 2,411
160
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE RS RLFRE:
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of FIEEReRBEEEY (166)

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

37. OPERATING LEASES

THE GROUP AS LESSEE

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases in
respect of office premises during the year amounting to
approximately HK$6,137,000 (2015: HK$5,810,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payables by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for a term of two years (2015: two years) with
a fixed rentals during the year ended 31 December 2016.
None of the leases included contingent rentals and terms
of renewal were established in the leases.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

34

A MR MR

BE-F—AF+AS+—AILFE

FEBEEREBA
FRRBBAZNEGEEBECHD

KB L4 456,137,000 T (—F—H
£ : 5,810,000/ 7T) ©

REHEFABEAEEREETHAE
MERNOEE BE_T—R"F+-
AZ+—HLFE HENHEERNR
ME(CE-—RFE - MF) HeBE-
BEXAEHSPOBEORERFHIT L
RAE#IH -

RBEHR  ARERBENAT B
HIN TR S HORARRZEES
AT -

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-RE —T-HF

+=A=+—-B +=-A=t+—8~

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FEL

Within one year —FR 7,885 1,816
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFERF (AREEMTE) 8,001 4
15,886 1,820
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38. BN EIE

31 December

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

31 December

2016 2015

—®-xE  -T-n%

+=A=+—-B +=ZRA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FEL
Commitments contracted for but not BBRUTEBERGE TS
provided in the consolidated financial BERZBATNEREE

statements in respect of O

— Property, plant and equipment e/ EN & 32,451 =
— Capital contribution to an associate —m—HEEEAREE

(Note) (BaE) 8,943 9,549

Note: B 5

On 24 April 2015, EREHE R EBER AR A7) (Guangdong RZZE—RAFMA-_+WA EREERKE
Bluesea Technology Development Company Limited)* BRERAA([EREENE] ARFAZ
(“Guangdong Bluesea Technology”), a wholly owned subsidiary 2EMBAR)RILIRRAEEEFEESE

of the Company, entered into a joint venture agreement (the
“JV agreement”’) with IIE RBEEEFEEXZREAAR
72 7] (Shandong Inspur Cloud Computing Industry Investment
Company Limited) (“Inspur Cloud Computing”) pursuant
to which Guangdong Bluesea Technology and Inspur Cloud
Computing agreed to establish a joint venture (the “JV Company”)
to mainly engage in the applications of cloud computing and
e-commerce businesses. Pursuant to the JV agreement, the
amount of registered share capital of the JV Company shall be
RMB20,000,000 while Inspur Cloud Computing shall account
for a capital contribution of RMB12,000,000 and Guangdong
Bluesea Technology shall account for a capital contribution of
RMB8,000,000. Upon the completion of the capital contribution of
the parties, the JV Company shall be owned as to 60% by Inspur
Cloud Computing and 40% by Guangdong Bluesea Technology
and is accounted for as an associate to the Group.

for identification purpose only

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

EEBRAR(RAESFEILAER
%((éﬁtﬁ%n I BREVERE KRR
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39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group had the following major non-cash transaction
during the year ended 31 December 2016:

As set out in note 36(a), part of the consideration
receivable from the disposal of HCH Investments Limited
was satisfied by a promissory note with principal amount of
HK$88,000,000.

The Group had the following major non-cash transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2015:

(@ As set out in Note 33(b) and (e) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company issued
303,000,000 and 196,721,311 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each at the prices of HK$0.425
and HK$0.66, respectively, as the acquisition
considerations for Bluesea Mobile Group and Million
Ace Group.

(b) As set out in note 33(d), the Company issued
3,077,920,793 ordinary shares on 19 June 2015
at HK$0.10 each by way of capitalisation of an
appropriate amount in the share premium account of
the Company.

(c) Upon the completion of the Open Offer, the
shareholder loan of HK$100,000,000 was capitalised
to settle the subscription of 263,157,894 offer shares
by Mr. Lie. For details, please refer to prospectus of
the Company dated 8 December 2015.

30. F BB H

AREERBE_T—RF+_A=1+—
BUIEFERBATERHRRERS:

BBt sE36(a) s tH E HCH
Investments Limited JE W 2 EH KB
% 3B 7N % 58 /588,000,000 JT 2 & i, =
BELT o

AEEREE_ZT-AF T+ _A=+—
BUIEFERBUATERHRERS:

@ LS B W® KM FE33(b)
Ke)m#E ARAlHRlkER
0.425% 7t ]2 0.667% 7T 2 B 1§ 2 1T
303,000,000% %196,721,311 % &
REE010B L 2 EiBmR1EA K
BEREVHEEREKEBR 2R
{go

(b) AP EEI3() B AR AR =
E-hAFAATHLBAEBRERL
AR EERFCHE SR
%%173,077,920,793/% A% EE0.10
BT e

© RAFREETKE HREER
100,000,000/ T #VE & RN IAE A
Il 9 A4 51263,157,894 0% 3 & Jg {7
XN RERB-BAFE F2
BMARRIBBHAZE—RF+=
ANBZBEEZR-

Annual Report 2016 —E— A F £ 3] @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

40. SUBSIDIARIES 40. BB~ 7l
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December FEMBARR=-_Z—X<FE+=A
2016 are as follows: —t+—BZzF@EERDT:
Place of
incorporation Nominal value of Normal value of Attributable equity
Class of and kind of authorised paid up issued interests attributable
Name of subsidiary shares held  legal entity share capital share capital to the Company Principal activities
FRMALBER BARH
WEARER FERGER EEERER AERREE BERTRAEE  AXFAELERER TEEE
Directly Indirectly
i B
BEREVSBHEEARAA Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Operation of commercial WIFI
(note 1, 8) company platform, provision of value-added
telecommunication services
ERFEBHERERAA Liak TE EREAAR  ARE50000000r  AKE50,000,0007T BEHEWF TR RRHEEESN
(HE1R3) FRi5
ERANENEREAER Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB100,000,000 RMB9,900,000 - 70%  Operation of Internet finance platform
BB (hote 1, 3) company business
ERMNENEREEE Lak HE AEREAAR ARE100000000  AK#9,900,0007T BEORASRTAER
ARAR (KE1R3)
REMTEEERAR Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 RMB3,000,000 - 43%  Design, manufacture and sale of
(note 1, 8) company logistics equipment
REMTEEERAR Lk TE EREFAR  AR¥50000000r  AKES,000,0007T MRRBORT RERYE
(B R3)
FITEELREBBLRBBR  Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB30,000,000 RMB?7,750,000 - 45%  QOperation of Interet finance platform
BERADF (note 1) company business
MITmELSREBEERE LER HE AREAAR  AR¥30000000  AKE7,750,0007T BEORASRTAEE
BERAR (1)
BNTEEEEERER Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB500,000 RMB150,000 = 45%  Operation of Internet finance platform
EERA (ote 1, 9) company business
BNTEEEEERER Liak HE ARERDA AR#500,0007C AR#150,0007 BERRMERT LR
EERA (HiE1RS)
KSZ Technology (HK) Limited Ordinary Hong Kong N/A HK$300,000 N 100%  Trading of mobile phones and tablets
(note 1)
KSZ Technology (HK) Limited Lk BE TER 300,000/ 7T FRETRERES
(Cifza))
Milion Ace Trading Ordinary Hong Kong N/A HK$1 - 100%  Trading of mobile phones
(International) Limited
(note 1)
BB S (ER)ARAR Lk 2 T 18T FRES
(FzE1)
ENTEANRERAA Ordinary PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000 RMB3,000,000 - 60%  Provision of IDC Services
(note 2, 8) company
ENTERNRERAA Lk TE EREAAR AR¥10000000  AKES,000,0007T REDCHE
GEAY))
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company ERFIWARBIZHBAR EERA
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected ZEWMBRARIE AEBEARME 2 #EE
the results for the period or formed a substantial portion ETEFESARAEEREEFEZE
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other ZHM-EERA WEHIEMH B
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in FAIZHBRBSRREARTIIE:.

particulars of excessive length.
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. BB A 7] ()

Note: B sk -

1. Subsidiaries acquired or set up during the year ended 1. BEZZE—AF+-_A=+—RHL®HF
31 December 2015. Further details of acquisitions of BWBRK LB AR - BHEKE
subsidiaries are included in note 35. B A A2 E— SRR MIFES5 »

2. Subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31 December 2. HEZZ—XRE+-A=+—HILHF
2016. Further details of acquisition of subsidiaries are EWREZHBAR -EEKENER
included in note 35. Al — B E M35

3. Subsidiaries controlled through certain structured 3. BRAETHEBEMZHE([E8ERED
arrangements (“Structured Arrangements”), for details of BHzHBAR EEAEBETEZ
the Structured Arrangements, please refer to note 41. LR E] AR

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that AEERBERFIERER ZIFZEM

have material non-controlling interests BRRZFHER

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned AEEHAEREERER 2 IFZEN

subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BRE 2 FMERSENNT

interests:

Place of
incorporation Proportion ownership interests Total comprehensive
and principal and voting rights held by loss/(income) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interest non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
WEAREE Bl R FRREREEL AREFERERZ
REBEEHY RERERRRZEAAM 2EER/ (WE) B8 RatEERER
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

“¥-~F _“T-R% Z¥-nF _T-IF =¥-AF _F-5F
+=A +=A T8 +ZA +=A +=A
=t+-H =t+-H E= = =t-A =t+-A

BRAAEHEL

IS5

EBRRA PRC 30% 30% (5,705) (10,658) 24,578 19,265
ERMAEHE EBRRA e
EMNTERRHARAE PRC 0%  NATER (3932 NATER 64,264  NATER
BATERRBEARAR ik
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with 16,259 9,522
non-controling interests
BREFERER
ERFERWBAR

IS

3
&
A

105,101 28,787
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RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. BB A A ()

BRAAKRERBEAERES 2 B
BRARZMBEMBEZEINMT AT
M E RS E % B AR B #HA

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

ERMAZEMEREEERRAA

leatcly

ERMAZMEREEERRAA

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-AF
+=A=+—-H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHER FET
Current assets REEE 87,055 100,654
Non-current assets ERBEE 33,753 21,595
Current liabilities mEAE (23,463) (52,421)
Non-current liabilities FREBAE (4,756) (5,332)
Equity attributable to owners of RRRRE NELERE
the Company 68,011 45,231
Non-controlling interests TR R 24,578 19,265
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
+=A=t-B +=ZA=t—H
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THET TET
Revenue Yz 39,539 60,282
Expenses 53 (15,954) (23,411)
Profit for the year FREF 23,585 36,871
Profit attributable to owners of RRARHEE ANEERF
the Company 16,516 25,810
Profit attributable to JEVE AR HE s PR A R
the non-controlling interests 7,069 11,061
Profit for the year FREF 23,585 36,871
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. BB A 7] ()

ERAAZENEREEEFR AT (Continued) ERMAEMEREEERRAAE (&)

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET-HF

+=A=+-8 +-A=t+-H

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

Other comprehensive loss attributable  RNARIHEA AEGEEGEEER
to owners of the Company (3,182) (941)

Other comprehensive loss attributable  JEfEfR S EEE M2 EEIE

to the non-controlling interests (1,364) (403)
Other comprehensive loss for HNEMEEER

the period (4,546) (1,344)
Total comprehensive income RRRHEEAEEEZE KRGS

attributable to owners of

the Company 13,334 24,869
Total comprehensive income FERERELEARGETE

attributable to the non-controlling

interests 5,705 10,658
Total comprehensive income for Nl g o

the period 19,039 35,5627

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating KB E£HK 2 HEL RN/
v

activities () 58 50,890 6,572)
Net cash outflow from investing REREBRH RS RDFE

activities (28,564) (279)
Net cash inflow from financing activites KEBEEEH 2R ERAFE 12,595 12,038
Net cash inflow BEeRAFHE 34,921 5,187
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RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

40. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. REB =l (@)

EMTERREERAF EMNTERREAERLA
31 December
2016
—E-XKE
+=A=+-H
HK$’000
FERT
Current assets MEEE 81,453
Non-current assets IEMENEEE 180,513
Current liabilities nEaE (57,897)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (43,156)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KARHEE AEEER 96,649
Non-controlling interests FE 12 e 64,264
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

40. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 40. MTB Al ()
EMHERRFERAD A (Continued) BMHEARREERAR (&)
2016
ZB-RE
HK$’000
TER
Revenue A 122,421
Expenses F 111,247
Profit for the period B A% A 11,174
Profit attributable to owners of the Company RAFHEE ANEL R T 6,672
Profit attributable to the non-controlling interests — FE12 B 1 25 & {1 325 7 4,502
Profit for the period B A9 ¥4 ) 11,174
Other comprehensive loss attributable to RARIBEEABGEMEZEEE
owners of the Company (875)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to e R S 2 EE R
the non-controlling interests (574)
Other comprehensive loss for the period HAEtMEEEIER (1,449)
Total comprehensive income attributable to RARIHEEAEBLHEHK BT
owners of the Company 5,797
Total comprehensive income attributable to IR R (L 2 W e 425
the non-controlling interests 3,928
Total comprehensive income for the period HAZER=EE 9,725
Net cash inflow from operating activities RELEEB 2B RAFRE 2,306
Net cash outflow from investing activities KREKEGEH 2R MLFRE (5,018)
Net cash inflow from financing activities REMETH 2B RN FEE 1,017
Net cash outflow e FE (1,695)
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RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has several operating entities controlled
through contractual arrangements in Hughes China Group,
CERNET Wifi Group and Bluesea Mobile Group (collectively,
the “Contractual Arrangements”).

HUGHES CHINA GROUP

Particulars and main business of the
operating entity

IR EERES RGRIMTBR AR (Beijing China
Satcom Unified Network Systems Technology Co., Ltd)
(“BUN”") is a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC and is owned by three individuals namely
Mr. ZHU Mao Wei ( K% 1& ) (79%), Mr. HONG Cheng Dao
(HERIE) (15%) and Mr. LIU Wan (252 ) (6%) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “BUN Shareholders”). BUN is
controlled by the Group through HughesNet China Co., Ltd
(“HNC”) by way of certain structured contracts in relation
to controlling the BUN by HNC (the “HCH Structured
Contracts”). BUN is principally engaged in the business of
VSAT communications.

Major terms of the HCH Structured
Contracts

a)  Promissory notes

On 5 March 2010, the BUN Shareholders issued
three promissory notes with a total amount of
USD1,400,000 to China UnifiedNet Holdings Limited
(“China UnifiedNet”) which were then assigned
to Hughes UnifiedNet Holding (China) Company
Limited, the immediate holding company of HNC.
The promissory notes are zero coupon notes with a
nominal interest rate of 5% per annum and a term of
10 years.

b)  Power of attorney

The BUN Shareholders executed an irrevocable
power of attorney which enables HNC to exercise all
the powers of the shareholders of BUN.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

HUGHES CHINA GROUP (continued)

Major terms of the HCH Structured
Contracts (Continued)

c)

a)

Exclusive call option agreement

The BUN Shareholders irrevocably and without
any additional conditions grant an exclusive option
to HNC under which HNC shall have the right to
require the BUN Shareholders to transfer the BUN
Shareholders’ equity interest in BUN on demand to
HNC or its designated entity or individual.

Exclusive consulting, technical services and
equipment supply agreement

HNC shall serve as the exclusive provider of
service to BUN, to provide a variety of consulting
and technical support services to BUN for its
business, including in the areas of business strategy,
management, marketing, operations, technology,
procurement, contracting, back office support,
and technical support. HNC shall also serve as the
exclusive provider of satellite communications system
equipment, customer premises equipment and other
equipment to BUN and customers of BUN.

In return for the provision of various exclusive
consulting and technical services, as well as the
satellite communications system equipment, BUN
shall pay HNC a monthly service fee equivalent to
the monthly gross revenue of BUN less any VAT or
service taxes payable.

Equity pledge agreement

The BUN Shareholders agreed to pledge all equity
interests in BUN to HNC as a security for the BUN
Shareholders’ and BUN’s performance of their
obligations under the aforesaid agreements.

A, EBELTHE @)

RETREIRE (80
RERBHNARRIEXRS

(%)

c BFEBEEWE

16 A 3B A SR AT A B K A AR
BRI TR B AR R B — 1
BERERE B RET R P B
B 1 B AL I BB R AR R RHT
BERTESIEEECERIAL
ZBREF REBRRNI R
BEE 58 2 Pt

q) B EH  RMARFER R
[E 5%
KRET BT BERIESILRERZ
BERBRGHERREHR T RER
218 T R B S RS DA ST 8
HEG BEKLERR TR &
HEE RWRXBAE RE
X B R s 1505 o RET A R
B #§ 75 1 A At R 58 Ko db SR EE 3@
LEFZEERERRRE TP
AR R B A SR 2 B R LR o

ERIRH S BB R A LR AR
BARBEBERGREZOR
16 5B 38 R 3 A5 O B 48 4% e B AE
FRUEREBRE ARBIKARERE
MIBERIMBER < REAE -

e) MEEHF
IERERBIRRAZEER RS
A% R B EL 70 AE B R R O BT B AR
& 1E R R EEBCOR ML RIER
BUIRENR LA BHETOEELZ
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RE M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS A, #EBMTHE @)

(Continued)

HUGHES CHINA GROUP (continued)

Significance of business of BUN to the
Group

The HCH Structured Contracts enabled the Group to enter
into the broadband satellite communication business and
enhance the Group’s development in the value-added
telecommunication services.

CERNET WIFI GROUP

Particulars and main business of the
operating entities

A1 Net Company

It RKX—2 BRI BR A A (A1 Net Technology Company
Limited”) (“A1 Net Company”) is a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC and is owned by
Mr. Lian Xin (#3#7) (2%) and Mr. Zhang Xiaosong ( 5 B2
) (98%) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “A1 Net
Shareholders”). A1 Net Company is controlled by A #7%&
R ORY) @B BERMAR QA (“Zhongxin”) by way
of certain structured contracts (the “CERNET Structured
Contracts”). A1 Net Company is principally engaged in
investment holding.

*for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Particulars and main business of the
operating entities (Continued)

CERNET Wifi

ERERKRABNRULR)FER QA (CERNET Wifi
Technology (Beijing) Company Limited*) (‘CERNET Wifi”)
is a limited liability company established under the laws
of the PRC. CERNET Wifi is owned as to 75% by A1
Net Company and 25% by Ef1EBR A a (CERNET
Investment Company Limited®) (‘CERNET Investment”)
respectively. CERNET Wifi is principally engaged in
computer, software and associated equipment sales,
technology development, transfer, consultancy and
computer system services. CERNET Wifi has entered
into asset leasehold and cooperation contracts with
CERNET pursuant to which CERNET Wifi is entitled to
the economic benefits generated by the assets owned
by CERNET in relation to the personal broadband access
services connecting the higher educational institutions of
the PRC and the related internet content and value-added
telecommunication services (the “Personal Broadband
Access Services”). CERNET Wifi has obtained an Internet
service provider license which enables it to be an Internet
service provider in the PRC.

*for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the CERNET Structured
Contracts

a)  \VWoting agreement

The A1 Net Shareholders irrevocably agree to
authorise individuals as designated by Zhongxin to
exercise rights of shareholders of A1 Net Company
including voting rights, nomination and appointment
rights in legal representative, chairman of the board,
general manager and other senior management of A1
Net Company.

b)  Exclusive call option agreement

The A1 Net Shareholders irrevocably grant an
exclusive option to Zhongxin under which Zhongxin
or its designated entity or individual shall have
the right to acquire the equity interest of A1 Net
Company.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the CERNET Structured
Contracts (Continued)

c)

a)

Exclusive business operating agreement

Zhongxin shall serve as the exclusive provider of
service to A1 Net Company, to provide a variety of
consulting and technical support services to A1 Net
Company for its business, including in the areas
of business strategy, management, computer and
information technology, website maintenance, staff
training, customer services, and technical support.

In return for the provision of various exclusive
consulting and technical services, A1 Net Company
shall pay Zhongxin a service fee as determined by
Zhongxin.

Equity pledge agreement

The A1 Net Shareholders agreed to pledge all
equity interests in A1 Net Company to Zhongxin as
a security for the A1 Net Shareholders’ and A1 Net
Company’s performance of their obligations under
the aforesaid agreements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE - T — NE+ - H=+—HIFFEZ

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS A, #EBMTHE @)

(Continued)

CERNET WIFI GROUP (Continued)

Significance of business of CERNET Wifi
to the Group

The CERNET Structured Contracts enabled the Group to
enter into the business in the Personal Broadband Access
Services connecting the higher educational institutions of
the PRC and the related internet content and value-added
telecommunication services.

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP

Particulars and main business of the
operating entities

BB 83 R B R A 7 (Bluesea Mobile Development
Limited*) (“Bluesea Mobile”) is a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC and is owned by
Ms. Ye Weiping (/&) (95%) and Mr. Xu Gang ()
(5%) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Bluesea Mobile
Shareholders”). Bluesea Mobile is controlled by &1 #75
B ORI BB AR A7) by way of certain structured
contracts (the “Bluesea Mobile Structured Contracts”).
Bluesea Mobile is principally engaged in provision of value-
added telecommunication services. Bluesea Mobile has
obtained an Internet content provider license which enables
it to be an Internet content provider in the PRC.

*for identification purpose only

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

EFEGAKER @)
BERZEBHAERZEEN

BERABEANSAREE NERT
REHEHRBENEARTEARS KA
BMEBBEANTRIEESERBEZES-

BSEBEE
A TET S ELES

HEBHERERAR ([HEBH])
BERBPRERRIZEREER
Bl R (R T KA (95%) ik iE St &
(6%) (AT #eH [RBBBRR ) HB -
HEBHRTHMER CRI)BERK
BERARNETHBLHEAN([FEB
BEBESN DT EH -FEBH
TERERUEEESERB -FHERD
ERSEHEANTREHBER FHibK
ATBENEBERN TR -

Y EREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 g7 —F—NE+—=H=+—HIF FF

41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP (Continued)

Major terms of the Bluesea Mobile
Structured Contracts

a)

Equity and Voting agreement

The Bluesea Mobile Shareholders shall irrevocably
grant to the FHTER ORI BERHEBR AR or
the person as designated by the FFER CFI)
B4R AP A an exclusive option to purchase,
subject to and as permitted by PRC laws, their entire
equity interest in Bluesea CMobile by way of one
or more times of exercise of the option at any time,
at an option price which is nil or nominal, or the
minimum price permitted by PRC laws. In addition,
the Bluesea Mobile Shareholders shall in attending to
the management of and exercising his shareholder’s
right in Bluesea Mobile, seek and follow the
instructions of the FITER (R BEBHEBR A
al.

A, EBELTHE @)
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41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS 4. BBt

(Continued)

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP (Continued) HEBBEE (&)

Major terms of the Bluesea Mobile HEBBIEENENZETER

Structured Contracts (Continued) (@)

b)  Exclusive service agreement b) BERE HE
Bluesea Mobile shall engage the ¥ &R CRII) 48 FATHIEEERFTER ORI
R ABR A 7] as its exclusive service provider. The BEMBERAAREBRRE
RETER ORI BB B R AT shall provide to RE@m-FFER ORYDBER
Bluesea Mobile technology support, business support RERRARBREEZHIRES
and relevant consultancy services that relate to the FR BB ES 2 S5 %755
business of Bluesea Mobile including but not limited X ¥ R AR - BIEETR
to (i) license to Bluesea Mobile the right to use the ROBRBEE S EBTER
intellectual property rights (including but not limited FERBETHIER OFRY)HE
to patent, trade mark and copyright) owned by the BEIERARAGMES 2 MHEE
RETER ORI MR B R A R according to #(BEETERERN &R KR
the business needs of Bluesea Mobile; (i) develop, ME)ZERRE: (% HELE
maintain and update the relevant software required BB EBE 2 HER
by the business of Bluesea Mobile; (i) purchase and T iREEERHEELEE
rent or obtain the right to use on behalf of Bluesea SEMEFERE  EBAE
Mobile machinery equipment, storage space, related SRR REEH HETRHRE
software and other software facilities required by the fth 8RR i 2 R ¢ (iv) R R B
business of Bluesea Mobile; (iv) provide to Bluesea BY B REGY B IRMEF XN
Mobile professional technical personnel and provide ABWRBEEREEI: (v) B
training to them on behalf of Bluesea Mobile; (v) assist VR ERIAREBEEY
Bluesea Mobile to collect and research technology B 2 Bl (v BB B AT
that is relevant to the business of Bluesea Mobile; (vi) REEHRSVHEBLE LS
advise on matters relating to the business operations ERHER WM SBBRMEE
of Bluesea Mobile raised by Bluesea Mobile, and TEHERE R TS S R & (vii) 1R
provide to Bluesea Mobile business promotion and BEERS CERWKEHINER
market sales services; and (vi)) according to the (FINBEXBBEERABIRE -
request of Bluesea Mobile and with the consent of MESYBIREBEERE 8B
the FFTEMR ORI BAEEFBR AT, provide to B HMEBRERRRE -

Bluesea Mobile other recommendations and services
relating to the business of Bluesea Mobile.

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS 41.

(Continued)

EBETEEm®m

BLUESEA MOBILE GROUP (Continued) HEBBEE (@)

Major terms of the Bluesea Mobile HEBBIEENENZETER
Structured Contracts (Continued) X ()

RIEE %
FEBBBR&GRFHER ORI
BEMEBERABDBERENRFE
BE 2 kE AERTIIRAE
BEEEET: (\FEBHRBRR
Bz T <BRE (\FHEBH
BEREFEEBZEHNRERRERE
e N ZBERE-

c)  Equity pledge agreement c)

Bluesea Mobile Shareholders shall pledge all their
equity interest in Bluesea Mobile to 1 ¥ &/ CGEII)
MBI AR A A to guarantee, the performance
of all the obligations of (i) Bluesea Mobile under the
Exclusive Service Agreement, (i) Bluesea Mobile
Shareholders and Bluesea Mobile under the Equity &
Voting Agreement.

REVENUE AND ASSETS SUBJECT TO BRREZHBEREE

THE CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The revenue and total assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements, in aggregate, are set out below:

BRRPHEF 2 WS R REEFHIIMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLHEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—h%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAT
Revenue g 308,809 171,051
Net Profit 4 1) 44,223 35,651
As at 31 December
BR+=-—A=+—H
2016 2015
—B-AF —F-—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Total assets BEE 1,199,623 360,845
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41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS A, #EBMTHE @)

(Continued)

REASONS FOR USING AND
RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Under the prevailing laws and regulations in the PRC,
companies with foreign ownership are restricted
from engaging in the provision of value-added
telecommunication services and manufacturing of
telecommunication system equipment for satellites
business in the PRC. As such, the Company relies on
BUN, CERNET Wifi and Bluesea Mobile (“OPCOs”
and each an “OPCQ”) to conduct certain parts of the
Group’s businesses in the PRC. The Company manages
to maintain an effective control over the financial and
operational policies of the OPCOs through the Contractual
Arrangements which effectively transfer the economic
benefits and pass the risks associated therewith of the
OPCO to the Company, and as a result, the OPCOs
have been consolidated as subsidiaries of the Group.
The Board wishes to emphasise that the Group relies
on the Contractual Arrangements to control and obtain
the economic benefits from the OPCOs, which may not
be as effective in providing operational control as direct
ownership. The Company may have to rely on the PRC
legal system to enforce the Contractual Arrangements,
which remedies may be less effective than those in
other developed jurisdictions. Any conflicts of interest or
deterioration of the relationship between the registered
holders of the equity interest in the OPCOs and our Group
may materially and adversely affect the overall business
operations of the Group. The pricing arrangement under
the Contractual Arrangements may be challenged by the
PRC tax authority. If the Group chooses to exercise the
option to acquire all or part of the equity interests in any of
the OPCOs under the respective option agreements under
the Contractual Arrangements, substantial amount of costs

@ Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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41. STRUCTURED ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

REASONS FOR USING AND
RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENT
(Continued)

and time may be involved in transferring the ownership of
the relevant OPCO held by its registered holder(s) to the
subsidiaries equity-owned by the Company. There can
be no assurance that the interpretation of the Contractual
Arrangements by the PRC legal advisers to the Company
is in line with the interpretation of the PRC governmental
authorities and that the Contractual Arrangements will not
be considered by such PRC governmental authorities and
courts to be in violation of the PRC laws. In addition, the
PRC governmental authorities may in the future interpret
or issue laws, regulations or policies that result in the
Contractual Arrangements being deemed to be in violation
of the then prevailing PRC laws. Despite the above, as
advised by the PRC legal advisers to the Company, the
Contractual Arrangements are in compliance with and, to
the extent governed by the PRC laws currently in force, are
enforceable under, the current PRC laws. The Company
will monitor the relevant PRC laws and regulations relevant
to the Contractual Arrangements and will take all necessary
actions to protect the Company’s interest in the OPCOs.

MATERIAL CHANGES

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report,
there has not been any material change in the Contractual
Arrangements and/or the circumstances under which they
were adopted.

UNWINDING OF THE STRUCTURED
ARRANGEMENTS

Other than that disclosed in note 36, up to the date of this
report, there has not been any unwinding of any Structured
Arrangements, nor has there been any failure to unwind
any Structured Arrangements when the restrictions that
led to the adoption of the Structured Arrangements are
removed.

41.

EBETEEm®m

RAGHLZHENEEKHEH
B B (@)

EREPENGHBELDR HAKEEE
TERANZHEAET 2 EBBEERZ
IEEBRAWBEAZFOPCORRZ
2ERSK AR Y XA HE S - R B B OPCO &
AlZERHBABEERBETAAF
BBEER HBARAIEFEEEEN
LREEZNRE YEREARAZF
BUAREAR A A& HF AR IS Hrh B
FIESPIR RN  TEBREZESR
#2285 18 5% o B BU B P9 A B
RAERTEER - 55 BB BT
] BE IR % SR AR R S AR MR AR R R R
R EHRFENLHRERERER
BITHBEAZ-BER LXAEA
NERBEDERBREESAN ZFE0LH
BRARPEZEHAIEEE BAR
BRITPBIARRBIBNT - AR AR
EBRZREENRE2FBEERERY
BRI — ) B Z 1B MR E A D B %
ZOPCOR Az °

EXE1
BREXFREBESIN RARE B S I
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BB R ERIEAE S
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42. WS AR LR

31 December

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
+=B=+—8 +-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET AT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB K& 337 54
Investment in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIRE 22177 120,513
22,514 120,567
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERT IR ~ s K H g WskIE
other receivables 618 5,290
Promissory note A E R 65,200 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B /B R FR IR 1,311,691 470,389
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE - -
Cash and cash equivalents BeNIREEEY 2,025 1,010,873
1,379,534 1,486,552
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H b pE ST 3018 K B R 5RIB 2,574 68,414
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASH B /B R R FRIA 1,063 10,403
Convertible notes AR =R - 157,364
3,637 236,181
Net current assets REEEFE 1,375,897 1,250,371
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8E)3E 1,398,411 1,370,938
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital A% 952,884 952,884
Reserves (Note) fwEfE (FsE) 445,527 418,054
Total equity W AEER 1,398,411 1,370,938

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017 and

signed on behalf by:

CHEUNG Sing Tai
REER
DIRECTOR
EF

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

MBRRN-_F—tF=A-+HhAE
EFSHAREENE YATIES

RERE:

ZHANG Xinyu
R F
DIRECTOR
EF
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42, B &k & (&)

(Continued)
Note: B 5
The movements of the reserves are as follows: HBEEERBEROT
Share options Convertible Accumulated
Share premium reserve notes reserve losses Total
THRREE
R EE BRERE 1 RiER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL T T TAL TAL
At 1 January 2015 RZE-h%-FA—H 1,043,755 20,657 7,131 (1,367,169 (295,626)
Total comprehensive loss FR2EFRLEE
for the year - - - (69,441) (69,441)
Issue of shares in relation to RMENB A RBIREG
acquisition of subsidiaries 208,639 - - - 208,639
Issue of shares upon exercise RiTRBERERTRA
of share options 16,177 (5,617) - - 10,560
Bonus issue of shares BOAR (307,792) - - - (307,792)
Open offer of shares AREERD 889,359 - - - 889,359
Transaction costs attributable AABEREIFRAE
to open offer (17,645) - - - (17,645)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-1%F
+-A=+-8 1,832,493 15,040 7131 (1,436,610) 418,054
Share options Convertible Accumulated
Share premium reserve notes reserve losses Total
B EE BRERE TRREBRE L4 | o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FHL TEz T
At 1 January 2016 RZE-"E-A—H 1,832,493 15,040 7,131 (1,436,610) 418,054
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2AMA 2% - - = 27473 27,473
Early redemption of convertible notes REERTARER - - (719) 713 =
Release of reserve upon maturity of RABRRE R B R
convertible notes £ - - (6418) 6,418 -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—1E
+-A=t-8 1,832,493 15,040 - (1,402,006) 445,527
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43. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material
transaction with connected and related parties during the
year.

COMPENSATION OF KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors and key executives was
stated in Note 14, which is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individual
and market trends.

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

BREEB%HERER AT (the “Purchaser A”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and {3 LR /&
ER AR AT (the “Vendor”) entered into the property
acquisition agreements on 8 April 2016, pursuant to which
the Purchaser had agreed to purchase and the Vendor
had agreed to sell the ten office units, namely room
1403, room 1404, room 1501, room 1502, room 1503,
room 1504, room 1601, room 1602, room 1603 and
room 1604 of Block 3, located at Smart City, No. 1 Zhi
Hui Road, Chan Cheng District, Foshan, the PRC at the
aggregate consideration of RMB62,020,620 (equivalent
to approximately HK$74,424,744). The consideration
of RMB62,020,620 (equivalent to approximately
HK$74,424,744) were paid to the Vendor and the
acquisition was completed during the year ended 31
December 2016.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF

43. FER S REEANLR S

Brir A MR bt T PR EEE S
REBRFANRTLIATEREE R HE
ALERFe

TEEEBAEZHM

EENRTETHRAB ZHIE N
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MIHBBEET -

WM BERRE

RZZE—XNEMANB AQRZEAN
BRARERESZHERAERA T ([E
FADSEGLRESEERRAA([E
FORIVEEERZ Bt EFH
EREEREFRELE AR AEA -
B A 5% 5 AP B 58 L 4B 0 R S B R SR S
ZIIMBRE1403% ~ F1404% ~ 51501
= $E1502%  £1503F  F1504%E ~ &
1601% ~ $£1602% * £1603%F K& 51604
= #BR{EAAREE2,020,6207T (18
LRUT4,424, 74478 T8) - REBEARE
62,020,6207T (1HE R 4174,424,7447%5
TIENTEFRZKBERBE=ZS
—RNET-_A=+—BLEFEREK-
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43. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

R ER ORI BB BERMER AR (the “Purchaser
B”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Vendor entered into the property acquisition agreements
on 28 August 2014, pursuant to which the Purchaser had
agreed to purchase and the Vendor had agreed to sell the
four office units, namely room 1601, room 1602, room
1603 and room 1604 of Block 4, Tower 1 located at Smart
City, No. 1 Zhi Hui Road, Chan Cheng District, Foshan, the
PRC at the aggregate consideration of RMB17,316,880.
As at 31 December 2014, deposit of RMB17,316,880
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,693,000) were paid to
the Vendor as deposit for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment. The acquisition was completed during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

The Vendor is substantially owned by Mr. Lie, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The Vendor, being an
associate of Mr. Lie, is therefore a connected person
of the Company under the Rule 20.07(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated
under the property acquisition agreements constituted a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

43. ER G RBEBEALR S

(%)

WM BERRE ()

R-ZE—WNFENA-+NH A a2z
BEMBRARIRHER OFN)BEBE
RWMERAR([EAB])HEFEIL
MEBEHZ B BEFREBER
BAFRELEMER QS BILTER
AR B % L) AR A [ S BB SR S BRI R
AR E1601%E  EB1602E » F1603FE &
F1604%E - BRE A AR17,316,880
T RZZE—WFE+=_A=+—8"
B4 AR®17,316,8807T (HHZE R4
21,693,000 7T) Bt F B A E AWK EE
ME-BEERSEBzZE ZBEER
HE-_Z-—AF+-A=1+—BLEE
FERK ©

BENTERARBZEIERRIIGEERE
BE-HREBENRINGEZHMEAL &
R IR A AR £ AR AI5520.07(1) R A A
NABAEAT -HIL RIFEAIFR EH
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43. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 43. BBRX G NEBALTRS

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

UNDERWRITING OF OPEN OFFER
SHARES

Reference is made to the prospectus of the Company
dated 8 December 2015 and the announcement dated
29 December 2015 in relation to the open offer at the
subscription price of HK$0.38 per offer share on the basis
of one offer share for every two shares held on 7 December
2015 (the “Open Offer”).

Winner Mind Investments Limited (“Winner Mind”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, was the Underwriter to the Open
Offer. Winner Mind is wholly-owned by Mr. LIE Haiquan
(“Mr. Lie”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
is therefore a connected person of the Company. The
allotment and issue of 1,425,887,357 untaken shares
to Winner Mind and the payment of the underwriting
commission HK$13,478,000 to Winner Mind pursuant to
the underwriting agreement dated 11 August 2015 (as
supplemented by the supplemental agreements dated 11
and 22 September 2015 and 10 November 2015) entered
into between the Company, Mr. Lie and Winner Mind
(the “Underwriting Agreement”) constituted connected
transactions for the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
The allotment and issue of the underwritten shares to the
underwriter is exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
However, the payment of the underwriting commission to
the underwriter is subject to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements, which
was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the adjourned extraordinary general meeting
held on 26 November 2015.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

LOAN FROM A SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

On 11 May 2015, the Company entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Mr. Lie, pursuant
to which, Mr. Lie agreed to lend to the Company a loan
of HK$100,000,000 (the “Loan”) for a period of one
year commencing from the drawdown date of the Loan
at an interest rate of 5% per annum. Pursuant to the
Underwriting Agreement, Mr. Lie and the Company agreed
that the aggregate subscription price required to be paid
by Mr. Lie and his associates under their subscription and/
or underwriting obligation of the irrevocable undertakings
and the Underwriting Agreement would be deemed to be
paid by way of the full capitalisation of the Loan in first
place and the remaining balance will be settled in cash (the
“Loan Capitalisation”).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2016.

43.

44.
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45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 28 March 2017, the Company entered into a Deed of
Assignment (the “DoA”) with an independent third party (the
“Assignee”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to
assign, and the Assignee agreed to accept an assignment
of a promissory note (the “Promissory Note”) with a
principal amount of HK$88,000,000 and all rights and
benefits derived thereon to the Assignee for a consideration
of HK$71,883,000 (comprising the discounted value of the
Promissory Note of HK$65,200,000 and the interest at 5%
per annum thereon of HK$6,683,000 in aggregate for two
years from the date of the DoA), payable on or before 28
March 2019. In relation to the DoA, a Deed of Guarantee
in favour of the Company was executed by another
independent third party (the “Guarantor”’) pursuant to
which the Guarantor agreed to guarantee to the Company
the due and timely performance of the Assignee’s
obligations under the DoA.

46. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2017.

Neo Telemedia Limited FE I EEEBERAF
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Financial Summary

BT =

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results A NARNEEE FE 2 G EE EENME
and of the assets and liabilities of the Group: BHE:
RESULTS 4
12 months 12 months 12 months 18 months 12 months
ended ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 30 June
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Bz =z S 5z
—-RE —RF Z—ZE-pmF Z—T-=% HE
+=8 +=A +=A +=ZAf =Z=-=Ff
Er=|g =175 =+—H =1+—H ~AA=1H
t+=@A tt+=@A tt+=EAR L+AER Lt+=fEA
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR THT AT
Turnover BXRE 2,513,845 1,914,902 34,550 61,067 100,180
Cost of sales HEMA (2,290,382) (1,813,983 (23,628) (29,900) (9,396)
Gross profit E7 223,463 100,919 10,922 31,167 90,784
Other income and gains Hi A R ez 19,873 537 755 20,528 3,180
Selling and marketing costs HERMSHEERR (15,540) (18,775) 2,718) (5,270) (1,741)
Administrative and other expenses  fTEU R Et B B (108,874) (87,695) (118,345) (124,706) (112,489)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLRZWE 143,229 = = = =
Impairment loss recognised in HEERRAZAEERE
respect of goodwill - - (254,966) (301,997) (541,458)
Net loss on de-consolidation of BB E AR—[
a subsidiary MBLRZEEFE - = (174,024) = =
Change in fair value of contingent ~ JEM S AR (B Z
consideration receivable NTEEY - - - = 33,972
Change in fair value of contingent ~ JEff sk AR (B2
consideration payable NTEEY (6,029) & = 93,587 183,415
Impairment loss recognised HEVEERRZ
in respect of intangible asset REEE - (6,378) (84,802) (23,769) (109,316)
Impairment loss recognised in REAEERRER
respect of promissory note BEER (22,800) = = = =
Loss on early redemption of REBRAREER
convertible notes BB - - - - (1,596)
Change in fair value of derivative 7 @Ei BEEL
financial assets NFEES - - (711) (5,495) =
Change in fair value of QESES:
convertible notes AFEES - - - - 702
Share of loss of an associate EE—RBEARER - - - (335) =
Loss from operation mEERERE 233,322 (11,392) (623,889) (316,290) (454,547)
Finance costs BAMKA (10,356) (24,541) (23,379) (11,986) (1,305)
Loss before taxation BREATE B 222,966 (35,933) (647,262) (328,276) (455,852)
Income tax (expense)/credit FiEH (A% /8% (20,779) (8,322) 14,770 2,758 35,630
Net profit/(loss) for the year/period R,/ ER%EFI,/ (E18)
FE 202,187 (44,255) (632,492) (325,518) (420,222)
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Financial Summary

B 1 =

At 31 December At 30 June

R+-A=+-H RAA=1H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

—E-xf —“T-1% -—T-WFE —T-=F —T-—-F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET AL AT T FHT

Non-current assets FRBEE 926,859 345,487 99,259 628,598 440,054
Current assets REEE 925,941 1,384,081 48,516 114,890 254,265
Current liabilties REEE 206,993 (373,971) (95.272) (58,318) (73,494)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/ (BF)FE 718,948 1,010,110 (46,756) 56,372 180,771
Non-current liability ERBBE 98,300 (36,737) (155,572) (183,6086) 9,772)
Net assets/(liabilties) BE/(BR)FE 1,547,507 1,318,860 (103,069) 501,564 611,053
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors recommended to the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 25 May 2017 (“AGM”) a final dividend of HK
cent 0.38 per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 to be paid on Thursday, 6 July 2017 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on Wednesday,
7 June 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 19 May 2017 to Thursday, 25 May 2017,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 18 May 2017.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed final dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 7 June 2017 to Thursday, 8 June
2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 June 2017.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms
of reference in compliance with Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) to review the Group’s
annual reports, interim reports and quarterly reports; (b) to discuss and review with the auditor of
the Company on the scope and findings of the audit; and (c) to supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG
Zihua, Ms. XI Lina and Mr. HUANG Zhixiong. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
ZHANG Zihua, who possesses extensive experience in finance and accounting.



The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

By order of the Board
Neo Telemedia Limited
CHEUNG Sing Tai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises three executive Directors, namely
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Tai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. ZHANG Xinyu and
Mr. XU Gang, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Zihua,
Ms. XI Lina and Mr. HUANG Zhixiong.

This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the Growth
Enterprise Market website at www.hkgem.com for at least seven days from the date of its posting
and on the website of the Company at www.neo-telemedia.com.





